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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
Dear Members,

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors, I am pleased to present the Annual Report of Gujarat Pipavav Port Limited ('the Company') with 
stthe first Ind AS compliant Financial Statements for the year ended 31  March 2017. 

Your Company holds 38.8% shares in Pipavav Railway Corporation Limited (PRCL), an Associate Company as per the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the Annual Report comprises the Standalone Financial Statements and the Consolidated Financial 

stStatements for the year ended 31  March 2017. 

During the year, your Company reported a Standalone Net Profit of Rs. 2,499 Million an increase of over 31% compared to the previous 
year. The Company's objective is to sustain a steady and consistent distribution of Dividend to its Shareholders subject to availability of 
profits, the Company's future funding needs and the applicable laws. Accordingly, the Company declared and paid an Interim Dividend of 
Rs. 2.00 per share and is pleased to recommend a Final Dividend of Rs. 1.80 per share. 

The Global Container Shipping Lines, our direct customers, faced historically low freight rates during the year 2016. The excess capacity build up coupled with continued 
slow down in global trade adversely impacted the Shipping Lines. This led to one of the major carrier going out of business. The Shipping Industry is also going through the 
consolidation phase and the Lines are getting into slot sharing arrangements to reduce their operating cost in the weak market conditions. The Industry is expecting that 
these measures will lead to gradual recovery in freight rates and provide relief to the highly stretched financials of the Shipping Lines. In the muted global environment, India 
continues to remain a country with potential of strong GDP growth ~7%. The Container Shipping trade on the West Coast of India that handles almost two-thirds of the 
country's container business, is growing at ~6%. Though it has caused certain imbalance in the trade because of strong imports and relatively low exports. As far as the Dry 
Bulk cargo business is concerned, Coal and Fertiliser are the two main commodities imported in the country. The trend of reduction in Coal imports continues due to much 
improved availability of domestic coal and competitive pricing of Solar Energy. The Fertiliser imports are driven by the Government's policies but the compulsory Neem 
coating required to be done by the Port at which the imported fertilizer is discharged as per the Government's directive in order to prevent diversion of this subsidized 
commodity has also resulted into reduction of its imports. The Government of India's launch of Pradhan Mantri Ujjwala Yojana scheme is targeted to increase the coverage of 
population having supply of LPG. The population getting covered with LPG connection is rapidly increasing from ~62% in April 2016  to ~73% in March 2017 and the target is 
to reach ~96% of the population by 2018-19. The Government is moving aggressively to meet its target by 2018-19. This development will have a positive effect of reducing 
air pollution and improving the local environment in rural areas. Your Company sees good potential in the growth of LPG imports in order for the Government to achieve its 
target. RORO is another business that is progressing well through Auto companies in Gujarat. Going forward, the Company's focus areas will be Containers, Liquid and 
RORO business. 

AP Moller Maersk in partnership with the Confederation of Indian Industries (CII) had recently carried out an extensive study on current obstacles to Indian logistics and 
associated trade growth. The study found that the cost of trade in India is amongst the highest in the world when compared to the peer countries. Indian transport and 
logistics costs represent 14.4% of its Gross Domestic Product (GDP) compared to 8% for China. The study covered four businesses namely Textiles and Garments, 
Pharmaceuticals, Electronics and Auto Components. The data indicated that India's indirect cost of trade (including delays, road congestion and non-essential paperwork) 
represent as much as 38% to 47% of total transportation and logistics cost. A reduction of these extraneous costs by 10% would create the potential for up to 5% to 8% in 
additional exports for the country or USD 5.5 billion in additional export revenue above the current level of about USD 63.3 billion in these four sectors. 

The State of Gujarat has been at the forefront in Industrialization and the Auto companies recently set up in Sanand- Mehsana region have been quite successful. These can be 
an example for the other industries to set up their manufacturing facility in the Dholera Industrial Region which is being promoted by the State Government. 

th thYour Company along with all other ports within the portfolio of its parent APM Terminals observed 17  to 20  April 2017 as Global Safety Day. The theme this year was “24/7 
SAFE” with focus on Night Operations and Night Shifts functioning at the Ports and Terminals. Several programmes were conducted during the period involving Skits and 
Spot Quiz by  various departments. The families of the employees were also involved wherein a Drawing Competition for Safety posters was conducted for children and the 
Ladies had conducted Skits. The winners were felicitated by the Executive team of the Company and the Programme concluded with the Managing Director's address to all 
the employees, their families and the Contractor's employees. As part of the global initiative, APM Terminals has four underlying principles- Safety is the license to operate; 
has no hierarchy; it means no compromise and all companies should be actively committed to it. Your Company is committed to highest Safety standards and has set 
stringent Safety rules for the Truck Drivers entering the Port. During the calendar year 2016, the Port's Health, Safety, Security and Environment (HSSE) Team conducted 
34,900 Training sessions for the Truck Drivers making them aware about the Safety measures they need to follow. The drivers are required to compulsorily undergo 
Refresher Safety course every six months before entering the Port. 

Your Company as a good and responsible Corporate Citizen has taken certain initiatives during the year towards providing the services that contribute to lifecycle 
sustainability. Some of the major initiatives taken are Conversion of 18 Rubber Tyre Gantry Cranes from Diesel to Electric, Purchase of 2 new Rubber Tyre Gantry Cranes 
operating on electric, Replacement of 2782 High Voltage Sodium Vapour Lamps with LED lights inside the port premises resulting into energy savings of over 50% and 100% 
utilization of treated domestic waste water for development of green belt and reducing the requirement for fresh water. The HSSE department has set up a dedicated Waste 
Management Cell which is responsible for segregation of all waste at source, its storage, recovery and recycle. All Hazardous waste is collected and stored in a dedicated area 
and is sold only to authorized re-cyclers and re-processors. Certain garbage and hazardous waste that can be used as fuel by the cement factories in the vicinity, is disposed 
off accordingly.     

On behalf of the Board of Directors of the Company, I take this opportunity to express our sincere appreciation to our Shareholders, Vendors, Customers for their continuous 
support, our Associate Company Pipavav Railway Corporation Limited and to our Employees for their dedication and commitment. I also thank the State and Central 
Government bodies and my colleagues on the Board for their support, guidance and valuable insight. I look forward with optimism towards a sustained economic growth in 
India and a very exciting and prosperous year ahead for Gujarat Pipavav Port Limited. 

With Best Wishes,

Yours truly,

Tejpreet Singh Chopra
Chairman
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NOTICE is hereby given that the 25th Annual General Meeting of the Members of Gujarat Pipavav Port Limited 
(CIN:L63010GJ1992PLC018106) (‘the Company’) will be held at its Registered office at Pipavav Port, At Post Rampara-2 via 
Rajula, District Amreli- 365560 on Thursday 10th August 2017 at 2.00 PM to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS
1.	 To receive, consider and adopt:
	 a. 	 the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March 2017, along with 

the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon; and 
	 b. 	 the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March 2017, along 

with the Report of the Auditors thereon. 

2.	 To declare a final dividend of Rs. 1.80 per equity share and to approve the interim dividend of Rs. 2.00 per equity share 
already paid during the year, for the financial year ended 31st March 2017.

3.	 To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Julian Bevis (DIN:00146000) who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself 
for re-appointment. 

4.	 To ratify the Appointment of Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP (Firm Regn. No. 012754N/N-500016) as approved 
by the Members in the 23rd Annual General Meeting held on 30th July 2015 as Statutory Auditors of the Company, to hold 
office until the conclusion of the 26th Annual General Meeting and to fix their remuneration for the financial year ending 31st 
March 2018. 

SPECIAL BUSINESS

5.	 Appointment of Mr. David Skov (DIN: 07810539) as a Director of the Company 
	 To consider and if thought fit, pass with or without modification (s) the following as an Ordinary Resolution:
	 “RESOLVED THAT Mr. David Skov (DIN: 07810539) who was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company with 

effect from 11th May 2017 by the Board of Directors to hold office upto the date of this Annual General Meeting under Section 
161 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and Article 109 of the Articles of Association of the Company, who is eligible for 
appointment and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing pursuant to Section 160 of the Act from a 
member proposing his candidature for the office of Director, be and is hereby appointed as Director of the Company, liable 
to retire by rotation.”

6.	 Appointment of Mr. Jan Damgaard Sorensen (DIN: 06408939) as a Director of the Company
	 To consider and if thought fit, pass with or without modification (s) the following as an Ordinary Resolution:
	 “RESOLVED THAT Mr. Jan Damgaard Sorensen (DIN: 06408939) who was appointed as an Additional Director of the 

Company with effect from 11th May 2017 by the Board of Directors to hold office upto the date of this Annual General Meeting 
under Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and Article 109 of the Articles of Association of the Company, who 
is eligible for appointment and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing pursuant to Section 160 
of the Act from a member proposing his candidature for the office of Director, be and is hereby appointed as Director of the 
Company, liable to retire by rotation.”

7.	 Approval of Related Party Transactions with Maersk Line A/S
	 To consider and if thought fit, pass with or without modification (s) following as an Ordinary Resolution:
	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Regulation 23(4) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015 (‘the Regulations’) governing the Related Party Transactions and all other applicable acts, rules, regulations, guidelines 
(including any statutory modifications or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force), approval of the shareholders of 
the Company be and is hereby accorded for contract(s)/ transaction(s) with Maersk Line A/S (including AP Moller- Maersk 
A/S and its affiliates), a related party in accordance with the Regulations, the details of which are provided herein below:

	 Details of contract/ transaction with Maersk Line A/S

Nature of Contract/ Transaction Rendering of Services related to Port Operations. These transactions are in the 
ordinary course of business and are conducted on an arm’s length basis. 

Period of Contract/ Transaction 1st April 2017 to 31st March 2020
Amount of Contract/ Transaction Based on the past trend as per the details mentioned in the Explanatory Statement, 

we expect the revenue during each financial year to exceed 10% of the total 
consolidated turnover of the Company. The exact amount per annum depends on 
actual volume and vessel calls handled and cannot be estimated. 
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	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to the above, the Board of Directors of the Company be and 
is hereby authorized to agree, make, accept and finalise all such terms, condition(s), modification(s) and alteration(s) as it 
may deem fit and the Board is hereby further authorized to resolve and settle all questions, difficulties or doubts that may 
arise with regard to the said transaction and to finalise and execute all agreements, documents and writings and to do all 
such acts, deeds and things in this connection and incidental thereto as the Board in its absolute discretion may deem fit 
without being required to seek any further consent or approval of the shareholders.”

	 By Order of the Board of Directors
	 For Gujarat Pipavav Port Limited

Manish Agnihotri
Company Secretary

ACS 12045

	 Registered Office:
	 Pipavav Port, At Post Ramapara - 2 via Rajula
	 District Amreli 365560
	 CIN: L63010GJ1992PLC018106

	 Mumbai
	 11th May 2017

Notes:

a)	 A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (“AGM” or “Meeting”) IS 
ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND A PROXY NEED NOT BE A 
MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. 

	 Proxies in order to be effective, must be received by the Company, duly filled, stamped and signed, at its Registered Office 
not less than 48 hours before the Meeting. 

	 Proxies submitted on behalf of the limited companies, societies etc. must be supported by appropriate resolutions/ authority, 
as applicable, issued on behalf of the nominating organization. 

	 A person can act as proxy on behalf of Members not exceeding fifty (50) and holding in the aggregate not more than 10% 
of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. In case a proxy is proposed to be appointed by a Member 
holding more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights, then such proxy shall not act as a 
proxy for any other person or Member. 

b)	 The Statement setting out the material facts pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), concerning the 
Special Business in the Notice is annexed hereto and forms part of the Notice. 

c)	 Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the AGM are requested to send a duly 
certified copy of their Board Resolution authorizing their representatives to attend and vote at the AGM. 

d)	 In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the order of names will be entitled to 
vote. 

e)	 Members/ Proxies/ Authorised Representatives should bring the enclosed Attendance Slip, duly filled in. for attending the 
Meeting. Copies of the Annual Report or Attendance Slip will not be distributed at the Meeting. 

f)	 Relevant documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and the Statement, are open for inspection by the Members 
at the Registered Office of the Company on all working days, except Saturdays, during business hours upto the date of the 
Meeting. 

g)	 The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from Friday 4th August 2017 to 
Thursday 10th August 2017 (both days inclusive) 

h)	 SEBI has mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number (PAN) for participating in the securities market, deletion 
of name of deceased holder and for transmission/ transposition of shares. Members are requested to submit the PAN details 
to their Depository Participant (DP) in case of holdings in dematerialized form or to Karvy Computershare Private Limited 
(Karvy) in case of holdings in physical form, mentioning your correct reference folio number. 

i)	 Members holding shares in physical form are requested to consider converting their holding to dematerialized form to 
eliminate all risks associated with physical shares and for ease in portfolio management. Members can contact Karvy for 
assistance in this regard. 
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j)	 Members who have not updated their bank details with the DP are requested to do so in order to enable the Company to 
execute NEFT/ Electronic Transfer of Dividend amount to their bank account to eliminate all risks associated with physical 
dividend warrants. 

k)	 The Annual Report 2016-17 of the Company circulated to the Members of the Company, will be made available on the 
Company’s website www.pipavav.com and also on the website of the respective Stock Exchanges www.bseindia.com and 
www.nseindia.com 

l)	 Members desirous of getting any information about the Accounts of the Company are requested to write to the Company at 
least seven days in advance of the Meeting, so that the information can be kept ready at the Meeting. 

m)	 Voting Options: 

	 Remote E-voting: In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 of the Act, Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015, the Members are provided with the facility to cast their vote electronically, through the remote e-voting services 
provided by Karvy Computershare Private Limited (Karvy), on all resolutions set forth in this Notice.

	 Voting at the AGM: The Members who have not casted their vote electronically can exercise their voting rights at the AGM. 
The Company will make necessary arrangements in this regard at the venue. 

The instructions for Remote E-voting are as under:

A.	 In case of Members receiving the Notice by E-mail:

	 In case of Members receiving E-mail of the AGM Notice from Karvy (For Members whose e-mail addresses have been 
registered with the Company/Depository Participant): 

	 (i)	 Open internet browser by typing the URL: https://evoting.karvy.com
	 (ii)	 Open e-mail and open the attached PDF file “pipavav.e-voting.pdf” giving your DP ID/ Client ID (in case you are 

holding shares in demat mode) or Folio No. ( in case you are holding shares in physical mode) as default password. 
The said PDF file contains your “User ID” and “Password for e-voting”. 

	 (iii)	 Click on “Shareholder-Login”.
	 (iv)	 Insert your User ID and Password as initial password as mentioned in step (ii) above and Login. In case you are 

already registered with Karvy, you can use your existing User ID and password for casting your vote. 
	 (v)	 “Password Change” menu appears. Change the password with the new password of your choice with minimum 8 

digits/ characters or combination thereof. Please note your new password. We strongly recommend that you do not 
share your new password and take utmost care to keep your password confidential. 

	 (vi)	 Home page of “e-voting” opens. Click on “e-voting-Active Voting Cycles”. 
	 (vii)	 Select “EVEN” (E-Voting Event Number) of Gujarat Pipavav Port Limited for casting your votes in favour of or against 

the resolutions. For an EVEN, you can login any number of times on e-voting platform of Karvy till you have voted 
on the resolutions or till the end of voting period i.e. upto close of working hours on Wednesday 9th August 2017 
whichever is earlier. 

	 (viii)	 Now you are ready for “e-voting” as “Cast Vote” page opens
	 (ix) 	 Cast your vote by selecting appropriate option and click “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted. Upon confirmation, 

the message, “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed. Once you have voted on the resolution, you will not be allowed 
to modify your vote. 

	 (x) 	 Institutional Members (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are also required to send scanned copy (PDF format) 
of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority Letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized 
signatory (ies) who are authorised to vote, to the Scrutinizer through e-mail at hsk@rathiandassociates.com with copy 
marked to evoting@karvy.com 

Please note that:
•	 Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an 

event, you will need to go through the ‘Forgot Password’ option available on the site to reset the password.
•	 Your login ID and password can be used by you exclusively for e-voting on the resolutions placed by the companies in which 

you are the Member.
•	 It is strongly recommended that you do not share your password with any other person and take care to keep it confidential.
	 In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and E-voting User Manual 

for Shareholders available at the “Downloads” section of https://evoting.karvy.com 
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B.	 In case of Members receiving Physical copy of Notice

	 In case a Member receives Physical copy of the Notice of AGM: 
	 (i)	 E-voting Event Number (EVEN), User ID and Password is provided in the E-voting letter. 
	 (ii)	 Please follow all steps from Sr. No. (ii) to (x) above, to cast your vote by electronic means

	 Voting at the AGM: The Members who have not cast their vote electronically can exercise their voting rights at the AGM. 
The Company will make necessary arrangements in this regard at the AGM Venue. 

	 Other Instructions:
	 (i)	 The e-voting commences on Monday, 7th August 2017 (9.00 am IST) and ends on Wednesday, 9th August 2017 

(5.00 pm IST). During the period, Members of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized 
form as on Thursday 3rd August 2017, may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by 
Karvy for voting thereafter. Once the vote on a resolution is cast by the Member, he/she/it shall not be allowed to 
change it subsequently. 

	 (ii)	 The voting rights of the Members shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid-up equity share capital of the 
Company 

	 (iii)	 Mr. Himanshu Kamdar of Messrs Rathi and Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, (Membership No. FCS 5171, 
CP No. 3030), has been appointed as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the voting process (electronically or otherwise) in a 
fair and transparent manner. 

	 (iv)	 The Scrutinizer shall unblock the votes in the presence of at least two witnesses not in the employment of the Company 
and make a Scrutinizer’s Report of the votes cast in favour or against, if any, forthwith to the Chairman of the Company 
and the Company shall submit it to the Stock Exchanges within Forty-eight hours of conclusion of the AGM. 

	 (v)	 The results declared along with the Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed on the Company’s website www.pipavav.com 
and on the website of Karvy https://evoting.karvy.com 

STATEMENT SETTING OUT MATERIAL FACTS UNDER SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Item no. 5

The Board of Directors appointed Mr. David Skov (DIN: 07810539) as an Additional Director of the Company with effect from 
11th May 2017. Pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, (“the Act”) and Article 109 of the Articles of Association of 
the Company, Mr. Skov holds office of Director upto the date of this Annual General Meeting but is eligible for appointment as a 
Director. The Company has received a notice pursuant to Section 160 of the Act, from a Member signifying his intention to propose 
the appointment of Mr. Skov as a Director of the Company along with requisite deposit of Rs. 100,000. 

Mr. Skov has a strong and extensive background of more than two decades in the Shipping Industry. He joined AP Moller 
Maersk Group in 1995 as Management Trainee and then went on to hold various positions in different business units within the 
Group including Head of Maersk Line in South China, Head of Maersk Line in Central and West Africa and now as Head of APM 
Terminals for Africa, Middle East and India. 

Mr. Skov holds Masters in Business Administration from Warwick Business School, UK and has degree in International Business 
as well as Organisations and Leadership. 

A brief profile of Mr. Skov in terms of Regulation 36 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015, is provided at the end of this Notice. 

The Board of Directors is confident that Mr. David Skov’s vast knowledge and varied experience in business will be of great value 
to the Company and hence recommends the Resolution for your approval. 

Except Mr. David Skov and his relatives, none of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives are concerned or 
interested in the proposed Ordinary Resolution as set out in Item no. 5 of this Notice. This explanatory statement may also be 
regarded as disclosure under Regulation 36 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

Item no. 6

The Board of Directors appointed Mr. Jan Damgaard Sorensen (DIN: 06408939) as an Additional Director of the Company with 
effect from 11th May 2017. Pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, (“the Act”) and Article 109 of the Articles of 
Association of the Company, Mr. Sorensen holds office of Director upto the date of this Annual General Meeting but is eligible for 
appointment as a Director. The Company has received a notice pursuant to Section 160 of the Act, from a Member signifying his 
intention to propose the appointment of Mr. Sorensen as a Director of the Company along with requisite deposit of Rs. 100,000.
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Mr. Sorensen joined AP Moller Maersk Group in 2001, where he has held various positions within the Group Functions and 
Maersk Line in Copenhagen, Prague and Vienna. In 2009, he became CFO of Suez Canal Container Terminal in Port Said, Egypt 
and then Regional CFO of APM Terminals for Asia Pacific Region. Currently he is the CFO of APM Terminals for Africa, Middle 
East and India. His main experiences have been in the areas of Finance and General Management. 

Mr. Sorensen holds a Masters Degree in Finance and Accounting from Aarhus School of Business in Denmark and an Executive 
MBA (Distinction) from INSEAD in Fontainebleau. 

A brief profile of Mr. Sorensen in terms of Regulation 36 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015, is provided at the end of this Notice. 

The Board of Directors is confident that Mr. Jan Damgaard Sorensen’s vast knowledge and expertise in Finance will be of great 
value to the Company and hence recommends the Resolution for your approval. 

Except Mr. Jan Damgaard Sorensen and his relatives, none of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives are 
concerned or interested in the proposed Ordinary Resolution as set out in Item no. 6 of this Notice. This explanatory statement may 
also be regarded as disclosure under Regulation 36 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015.

Item no. 7
The Company is engaged in operating and maintaining an all weather Port at Pipavav, District Amreli, in the State of Gujarat, 
having multi-cargo and multi user operations. The Company’s Port is one of the principal gateways on the West Coast of India 
and provides access to Shipping Lines through international routes as well as for the cargo belt in North and North-West Region 
of India. In its normal course of business, the Company has entered into transactions with Maersk Line A/S (Related Party to the 
Company in terms of the Listing Regulations) for providing port services and operations. 

The Contract with Maersk Line A/S has been renewed with effect from 1st April 2017 upto 31st March 2020. Pursuant to Regulation 
23(4) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company is required to obtain 
Shareholder’s approval for all the Material Transactions with a Related Party. Accordingly, the details of transactions with Maersk 
Line A/S during past five years are as follows:

Amount in Rupees Million

Particulars Year ended 
31st Dec 2012

Year ended 
31st Dec 2013

15 Months Period 
ended 31st March 2015

Year ended 
31st Mar 2016

Year ended 
31st Mar 2017

Revenue from Operations 4,160.33 5,179.35 8,670.27 6,599.55 6,831.04

Revenue from Maersk Line 909.95 898.57 1,798.43 1,213.03 1,184.30

% of Total Revenue from Operations 22% 17% 21% 18% 17%

Considering the past trend, it is expected that the aggregate amount of transactions with Maersk Line A/S would qualify as 
Material Transaction in terms of the provisions of the Regulations and requires shareholder’s approval by way of an Ordinary 
Resolution. The said transaction has been duly approved by the Audit Committee. 

Further, disclosures in connection with the Related Party Transaction/ Contract are:

Name of the Related Party Maersk Line A/S

Name of the Director or Key Managerial 
Personnel who are related, if any 

None

Nature of relationship Group Company, a Related Party as per Regulation 23 of SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

Nature and Particulars of Contract Rendering of Services related to Port Operations. These transactions are in the 
ordinary course of business and are conducted at an arm’s length basis.

Material Terms As a customer Maersk Line A/S shall pay the port related charges as per published 
tariff and subject to discount based on volume handled

Monetary Value The exact amount of contract/ transaction per annum depends on the volume and 
vessel calls handled and therefore cannot be estimated. However, based on past 
actual data as mentioned above, we expect the value of transactions to exceed the 
threshold limit of 10% of the total consolidated turnover of the Company. 

Period of Contract 1st April 2017 to 31st March 2020
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The above Related Party Transaction being in the ordinary course of business, at an arms’ length basis and in accordance with 
the Company’s Policy on Related Party Transactions, the requirement of shareholders’ approval as contemplated under Section 
188 of the Companies Act, 2013, is not applicable. However, the said transaction being Material Related Party Transaction, 
shareholders’ approval is sought under Regulation 23(4) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 by way of an Ordinary Resolution.

The Board of Directors recommend for your approval, the Ordinary Resolution as set out in Item no. 7 of this Notice. 

None of the Directors/ Key Managerial Personnel of the Company/ their respective relatives are interested in the resolution as 
set out in Item no. 7 of this Notice. Since this matter pertains to the transactions with Related Party as defined under the SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, none of the Related Parties shall be entitled to vote on the 
resolution. 

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Gujarat Pipavav Port Limited

Manish Agnihotri
Company Secretary

ACS 12045

Registered Office:
Pipavav Port, At Post Ramapara - 2 via Rajula
District Amreli 365 560
CIN: L63010GJ1992PLC018106

Mumbai
11th May 2017

Profile of the Directors being appointed/re-appointed as required under Regulation 36 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

Particulars Mr. Julian Bevis Mr. David Skov Mr. Jan Damgaard Sorensen

Date of Birth 28th April 1950 28th April 1971 29th July 1974

Date of Appointment 25th July 2014 11th May 2017 11th May 2017

Qualification Masters from Oxford University Masters in Business 
Administration and Degrees in 
International Business as well as 
Organisations and Leadership

Masters Degree in Finance and 
Executive MBA

Expertise in specific functional 
areas

Business Management Business Management Finance

Disclosure of Relationship 
between the Directors inter-se

None. He represents the Promoter 
APM Terminals Mauritius Limited

None. He represents the Promoter 
APM Terminals Mauritius Limited

None. He represents the Promoter 
APM Terminals Mauritius Limited

Directorships in other Public 
Listed Companies in India

None None None

Membership of Committees held 
in other Public Listed Companies 
in India

None None None

Shares held in the Company Nil Nil Nil
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To
The Members,
Gujarat Pipavav Port Limited 

The Directors of Gujarat Pipavav Port Limited (‘the Company’) have pleasure in submitting their 25th Annual Report to the 
Members of the Company together with the Audited Standalone and Consolidated Statement of Accounts for the year ended 
31st March, 2017. The Company has for the first time presented the Ind AS compliant financial statements as per the requirement 
under the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. Accordingly, the 
previous year’s figures have been re-grouped wherever applicable. 

1.	 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & RESULTS:

	 a. 	 Financial Results: 
(Rs. In Million)

Particulars For the year ended 31st 
March 2017

For the year ended 31st 
March 2016

Operating Income 6,831.04 6,599.54

Less: Total Expenditure 2,645.14 2,838.91

Operating Profit 4,185.90 3,760.63

Add: Other Income 353.59 303.69

Profit before Interest, Depreciation, Tax and Exceptional Item 4,539.49 4,064.32

Less: Interest 4.03 1.59

Less: Depreciation 1,065.15 973.39

Profit Before Tax 3,470.31 3,089.34

Less: Taxes * 971.19 1,177.50

Profit after Tax	 2,499.12 1,911.84

Balance carried forward to Balance sheet 2,498.41 1,907.36

		  *The Company was on a Tax Holiday under Section 80 (IA) of the Income tax Act and has Nil tax liability until 31st 
March 2017. However, the Company is required to pay Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) which has been appropriately 
reflected in the financial statements in accordance with the Accounting Principles. 

	 b. 	 Operations:

		  The Company is engaged in the business of Port Development and Operations at Pipavav Port, Gujarat under the 
30 year Concession vide Agreement dated 30th September 1998 from Gujarat Maritime Board. The Port located in 
Southwest Region of Gujarat handles Dry Bulk, Containers, Liquid, and RORO vessels. The performance details are 
as follows:

Particulars For the year ended  
31st March 2017

For the year ended  
31st March 2016

Bulk Cargo Handled (In MT) 2,112,078 2,478,743

Containers Handled (In TEUs) 663,380 694,614

Liquid Handled (In MT) 685,960 706,877

RORO (No. of Cars)* 83,607 19,644*

		  *The Company commenced handling of RORO vessels effective August 2015
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	 c. 	 REPORT ON PERFORMANCE OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURE COMPANIES:

		  The Company holds 38.8% shares in Pipavav Railway Corporation Limited (PRCL) and in view of the provisions of 
Section 2(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’), PRCL is an Associate Company and pursuant to the provisions of 
Section 129 of the Act, its accounts are to be consolidated with the Company’s accounts. More than 50% of PRCL’s 
shareholding is held by Government/ Public Sector Undertakings so PRCL is required to accomplish Statutory Audit 
followed with the CAG Audit. As on the date of this Report PRCL’s Audited Financial Statements are not available, 
therefore the Company has prepared its Consolidated Financial Statement based on Unaudited financial statements 
provided by the PRCL Management. 

	 d. 	 DIVIDEND:

		  The Board of Directors in the Meeting held on 4th November 2016 declared and paid an Interim Dividend of Rs. 2.00 
per share. The Board is pleased to recommend a Final Dividend of Rs. 1.80 per share on the Company’s outstanding 
Equity Share Capital. 

		  The Dividend is subject to the approval of the Members at the Annual General Meeting on 10th August 2017 and will be 
paid on or after 11th August 2017, within the stipulated time limit to all Members whose name appears in the Register 
of Members, as on the date of book closure ie. from Friday 4th August 2017 to Thursday 10th August 2017 (both days 
inclusive). The total dividend payout of Rs. 1.80 per equity share will aggregate to Rs. 1,047.34 Million including the 
Dividend Distribution Tax of Rs. 177.15 Million which will be borne by the Company.

		  Dividend is the Company’s primary distribution of profits to its Shareholders. The Company’s objective is to sustain a 
steady and consistent distribution of profits, by way of Dividend, to its Shareholders, supported by underlying earnings 
growth and subject to i) availability of profits and funding requirements, ii) future funding needs as per the Company’s 
growth plans, iii) applicable laws and in accordance with the recommendation of the Board of Directors and approval 
of Shareholders. 

	 e. 	 TRANSFER TO RESERVES:

		  The Board of Directors have not recommended any transfer of profit to reserves during the period under review. 
Hence, the entire amount of profit has been carried forward to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

	 f. 	 REVISION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENT:

		  The Company has not carried out any revision in its financial statements in any of the three preceding financial years as per 
the requirement under Section 131 of the Act. 

	 g. 	 DEPOSITS:

		  The Company has not accepted or renewed any amount falling within the purview of provisions of Section 73 of the Companies 
Act 2013 (“the Act”) read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2014 during the year under review. Hence, the 
requirement for furnishing of details of deposits which are not in compliance with the Chapter V of the Act is not applicable.

	 h. 	 DISCLOSURES UNDER SECTION 134(3)(l) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

		  Except as disclosed elsewhere in this report, no material changes and commitments which could affect the Company’s 
financial position, have occurred between the end of the financial period of the Company and date of this report.

	 i. 	 DISCLOSURE OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS: 

		  The Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements as designed and implemented by the Company 
are adequate. During the year under review, no material or serious observation has been made by the Statutory 
Auditors and the Internal Auditors of the Company for inefficiency or inadequacy of such controls. Wherever suggested 
by the Auditors, the improved control measures have been implemented and their functioning is reviewed from time to 
time. 

	 j. 	 DISCLOSURE OF ORDERS PASSED BY REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNAL:

		  No adverse orders have been passed by any Regulator or Court or Tribunal which can have impact on the Going Concern 
status and on the Company’s operations in future.

	 k. 	 PARTICULAR OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENT WITH RELATED PARTIES:

		  The transactions/contracts/arrangements entered by the Company with related party(ies) as defined under the 
provisions of Section 2(76) of the Companies Act, 2013, during the financial year under review, are in ordinary course 
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of business and at arms’ length. Therefore they do not come within the purview of the provisions of Section 188 of the 
Companies Act, 2013. 

		  All the transactions have prior approval of the Audit Committee as per the requirement under the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The related party transaction with Maersk Line A/S 
in connection with Income from Port Operations is a material transaction. The Contract with Maersk Line A/S has 
been renewed for three years from 1st April 2017 to 31st March 2020. Pursuant to Regulation 23(4) of SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company is required to obtain Shareholders 
approval. A resolution to that effect is included in the Notice convening the meeting. 

	 l. 	 PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES, INVESTMENTS AND SECURITIES:

		  The Company has not provided any loans, guarantees and securities. The Company does not have any investments 
except its shareholding in the Associate Company PRCL. 

		  Further, the Company is engaged in the business of providing infrastructural facilities and is therefore exempt from the 
provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

	 m. 	 DISCLOSURE UNDER SECTION 43(a)(ii) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

		  The Company has not issued any shares with differential rights and hence no information as per provisions of Section 
43(a)(ii) of the Act read with Rule 4(4) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014 is furnished.

	 n. 	 DISCLOSURE UNDER SECTION 54(1)(d) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

		  The Company has not issued any sweat equity shares during the year under review and hence no information as per 
provisions of Section 54(1)(d) of the Act read with Rule 8(13) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 
2014 is furnished.

	 o. 	 DISCLOSURE UNDER SECTION 62(1)(b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

		  The Company has not issued any equity shares under Employees Stock Option Scheme during the year under review 
and hence no information as per provisions of Section 62(1)(b) of the Act read with Rule 12(9) of the Companies 
(Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014 is furnished.

	 p. 	 DISCLOSURE UNDER SECTION 67(3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

		  During the year under review, there were no instances of non-exercising of voting rights in respect of shares purchased 
directly by employees under a scheme pursuant to Section 67(3) of the Act read with Rule 16(4) of Companies (Share 
Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014.

2.	 OUTLOOK:
	 As per the estimates released by the WTO, the world GDP is likely to be at 2.7% this year and 2.8% in the next year. The Container 

shipping industry is expecting the global container trade to grow by 2%. In view of subdued growth in global trade, the shipping lines 
are expected to reduce/ rationalize the capacity in various trades to align with global supply and demand requirements. 

	 The Container market on the West coast in India has increased by about 6% largely driven by strong imports. India is amongst the 
very few global markets reporting the growth numbers. The growth trend in imports is expected to continue during the current year 
while the exports remain under pressure. 

	 The dry bulk cargo comprises import of Coal and Fertiliser. Coal imports have been witnessing consistent decrease in volumes due 
to better availability of domestic coal and also because of the Government’s focus on promoting clean renewable energy through 
wind and solar power. The Fertiliser imports remain volatile depending upon the monsoon and the availability of the fertiliser stock 
in the domestic market. Moreover the compulsory Neem coating is also likely to reduce the imports. 

	 Liquid cargo mainly LPG and RORO are the two promising areas. The Government’s initiative of providing LPG connection in the 
rural areas is likely to increase the LPG imports. With Gujarat developing into an Auto Hub, the car exports from Gujarat has been 
doing well. 

3.	 RISKS AND AREAS OF CONCERN:

	 The global trade is faced with two main areas of uncertainties, one the policy changes that the US Administration might implement 
in the near future and two the impact of UK’s exit from the European Union. Any adverse movement in any of these two events is 
likely to impact the growth in the trade and impact the shipping lines. In India, the imports have been strong and are likely to maintain 
the trend. In case of below normal monsoon in the coming season, it could have an adverse impact on the consumption pattern in 
the rural areas. 
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4.	 MATTERS RELATED TO DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

	 a.	 BOARD OF DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

		  Mr. Tejpreet Singh Chopra (DIN: 00317683), Ms. Hina Shah (DIN: 06664927), Mr. Pradeep Mallick (DIN: 00061256) 
and Mr. Pravin Laheri, IAS (Retd.)(DIN:00499080) are the Company’s Independent Directors for a period of five 
consecutive years from the date of the Company’s Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on 30th July 2015. 

		  In accordance with the provisions of the Act, none of the Independent Directors is liable to retire by rotation. The 
Managing Director of the Company is also not liable to retire by rotation. 

		  Gujarat Maritime Board (GMB) the port regulator has one seat on the Company’s board. Due to the organizational 
changes their Nominee is yet to be advised by GMB. 

		  The Promoter APM Terminals Mauritius Limited had nominated Mr. Ahmed Hassan (DIN: 07588595) on the Company’s 
Board and he was appointed as Additional Director on 10th October 2016. He was appointed in place of Mr. Jan 
Damgaard Sorensen (DIN: 06408939) who ceased to be the Director of the Company from 16th September 2016. 
There has been further change in nomination by the Promoter. Mr. Hassan has resigned as the Company’s Director 
with effect from 5th April 2017 and Mr. Sorensen is appointed as Additional Director with effect from 11th May 2017. Mr. 
Sorensen is seeking appointment as Director of the Company. Your Board of Directors recommend the appointment 
of Mr. Jan Damgaard Sorensen (DIN: 06408939) as Director of the Company. 

		  Mr. Rizwan Soomar (DIN: 02398970) has resigned as the Company’s Director with effect from 5th April 2017. The 
Promoter has nominated Mr. David Skov (DIN:07810539) who is appointed as Additional Director of the Company 
with effect from 11th May 2017. Mr. Skov is seeking appointment as Director of the Company. Your Board of Directors 
recommend the appointment of Mr. David Skov (DIN:07810539) as Director of the Company. 

		  Pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Julian Bevis (DIN:00146000) is liable to 
retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. Your 
Directors recommend the re-appointment. 

		  Your Directors thank Mr. Rizwan Soomar and Mr. Ahmed Hassan for their valuable contribution during their tenure as 
Directors of the Company.

	 b.	 DECLARATIONS BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS: 

		  The Company has received declarations from all the Independent Directors under Section 149(6) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 confirming their independence vis-à-vis the Company.

		  The Independent Directors were appointed in the AGM held on 30th July 2015 for a period of five years. 

		  The Company has been regularly conducting Familiarisation Programme for its Independent Directors and has posted the 
details on its website http://pipavav.com/independent_director.php

5.	 DISCLOSURES RELATED TO BOARD, COMMITTEES AND POLICIES:

	 a.	 BOARD MEETINGS:

		  The Board of Directors met four times during the year ended 31st March 2017 in accordance with the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder. 

	 b.	 DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

		  In terms of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, in relation to the audited financial statements of the Company 
for the year ended 31st March, 2017, the Board of Directors hereby confirm that:

		  a.	 in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along with 
proper explanation relating to material departures;

		  b.	 such accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently and the Directors made judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company 
as at 31st March, 2017 and of the profit of the Company for that period;

		  c.	 proper and sufficient care was taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with 
the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and 
other irregularities;

		  d.	 the annual accounts of the Company have been prepared on a going concern basis; 
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		  e.	 internal financial controls have been laid down by the Company and that such internal financial controls are 
adequate and were operating effectively; 

		  f.	 proper systems have been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such 
systems were adequate and operating effectively;

	 c.	 NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:

		  The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of Directors was constituted by the Board of Directors of the Company 
in accordance with the requirements of Section 178 of the Act.

		  The composition of the Committee is as under:

		  1.	 Mr. Pradeep Mallick Chairman, Independent Director
		  2.	 Mr. Pravin Laheri, IAS (Retd.) Independent Director 
		  3.	 Mr. Tejpreet Singh Chopra, Independent Director; and
		  4.	 Mr. David Skov, Non Independent Director

 		  The Board has in accordance with the provisions of sub-section (3) of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, 
formulated the policy setting out the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes, independence of a 
Director and policy relating to remuneration for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees. 

		  Major criteria defined in the policy framed for appointment of and payment of remuneration to the Directors of the 
Company, are as under:

		  a)	 While appointing a Director, it shall always be ensured that the candidate possesses appropriate skills, 
experience and knowledge in one or more fields of finance, law, management, sales, marketing, administration, 
research, corporate governance, technical, operations or other disciplines related to the Company’s business.

		  b)	 In case of appointment as an Executive Director, the candidate must have the relevant technical or professional 
qualification and experience as considered necessary based on the job description of the position. In 
case no specific qualification or experience is prescribed or thought necessary for the position then, while 
recommending the appointment, the HR Department shall provide the job description to the Committee and justify 
that the qualification, experience and expertise of the recommended candidate is satisfactory for the 
relevant position. The Committee may also call for an expert opinion on the appropriateness of the qualification 
and experience of the candidate for the position of the Executive Director.

		  c)	 In case of appointment as a Non-Executive Director, the candidate must have a post graduate degree, diploma 
or a professional qualification in the field of his practice/ profession/ service and shall have not less than five 
years of working experience in such field as a professional in practice, advisor, consultant or as an employee. 
Provided that the Board may waive the requirement of qualification and/ or experience under this paragraph for 
a deserving candidate.

		  d)	 The Board, while making the appointment of a Director, shall also try to assess from the information available 
and from the interaction with the candidate that he is a fair achiever in his chosen field and that he is a person with 
integrity, diligence and open mind.

		  e)	 While determining the remuneration of Executive Directors and Key Managerial Personnel, the Board shall consider 
following factors:

			   i)	 Criteria/ norms for determining the remuneration of such employees prescribed in the HR Policy

			   ii)	 Existing remuneration drawn

			   iii)	 Industry standards, if the data in this regard is available

			   iv)	 The job description

			   v)	 Qualifications and experience levels of the candidate

			   vi)	 Remuneration drawn by the outgoing employee, in case the appointment is to fill a vacancy on the death, 
resignation, removal etc. of an existing employee

			   vii)	 The remuneration drawn by other employees in the grade with matching qualifications and seniority, if 
applicable.
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		  f)	 The remuneration payable to the Executive Directors, including the Commission and value of the perquisites, 
shall not exceed the permissible limits as are mentioned within the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. They 
shall not be eligible for any sitting fees for attending any meetings

		  g)	 The Non-Executive Directors shall not be eligible to receive any remuneration/ salary from the Company. 
However, they shall be paid sitting fees for attending the meeting of the Board or committees thereof and 
commission, as may be decided by the Board/ Shareholders from time to time. They shall also be eligible for 
reimbursement of out of pocket expenses for attending Board/ Committee Meetings. 

	 d.	 AUDIT COMMITTEE:

		  The Audit Committee of Directors was constituted pursuant to the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 
2013. The composition of the Audit Committee is in conformity with the provisions of the said section. The Audit 
Committee comprises:

		  1.	 Mr. Pravin Laheri, IAS (Retd.) Chairman, Independent Director
		  2.	 Mr. Pradeep Mallick, Independent Director 
		  3.	 Ms. Hina Shah, Independent Director
		  4.	 Mr. Jan Damgaard Sorensen, Non Independent Director 

		  The scope and terms of reference of the Audit Committee is in accordance with the Act and it reviews the information 
as required under the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

		  During the year under review, there were no instances of recommendation of the Committee not being accepted by 
the Board of Directors of the Company. 

		  The Company Secretary acts as Secretary of the Committee. 

	 e.	 STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE: 

		  During the year under review, pursuant to Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of the 
Company constituted the Stakeholders Relationship Committee, comprising: 

		  1.	 Mr. Pradeep Mallick, Chairman, Independent Director, 
		  2.	 Mr. Tejpreet Singh Chopra, Independent Director and 
		  3.	 Mr. Keld Pedersen, Managing Director 

		  The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee.

	 f.	 VIGIL MECHANISM POLICY FOR THE DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES: 

		  The Board of Directors of the Company has, as per the requirements under Section 178(9) of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, framed the Whistle Blower 
Policy of the Company. 

		  The Policy provides a formal mechanism for all employees of the Company to make disclosure at the designated 
email id about suspected fraud or unethical behaviour. It also provides a designated phone number to directly report 
an instance. The Policy encourages its employees to immediately raise his/her concern to the respective Manager or 
to Head of HR whenever they notice any contravention with the Company’s Code of Conduct or fraud or any unethical 
behaviour. In case the concerned person is not comfortable in reporting the matter to his/her Manager or to the 
Manager’s Manager or to the Head of HR, he/she can also report to the Compliance Officer of the parent Company 
APM Terminals. 

		  The policy also provides direct access to the Chairman of Audit Committee through his personal email id. 

		  The Company has also constituted an Internal Complaints Committee as per the provisions of The Sexual Harassment 
of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder for reporting 
the instances related to Sexual Harassment and deal with them in a timely manner. 

		  As part of APM Terminals the Company shares the distinctive set of the Group’s Core Values that drive the way 
we do business. The Company is committed to adhere to the highest standards of ethical, moral and legal conduct 
of business operations, the Group’s commitment to the UN Global Compact and our commitment to our people, 
customers and communities. 



16

	 g.	 RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY:

		  The Board of Directors of the Company has designed Risk Management Policy and Guidelines to avoid events, 
situations or circumstances which may lead to negative consequences on the Company’s businesses, and define 
a structured approach to manage uncertainty and to make use of these in their decision making pertaining to all 
business divisions and corporate functions. Key business risks and their mitigation are considered in the annual/
strategic business plans and in periodic management reviews. 

	 h.	 CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY POLICY: 

		  As per the provisions of Section 135 of the Act read with Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 
2014, the Board of Directors has constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee as under:

		  1.	 Ms. Hina Shah, Chairperson, Independent Director

		  2.	 Mr. Pravin Laheri, IAS (Retd.), Independent Director and 

		  3.	 Mr. Keld Pedersen, Managing Director 

		  The Board of Directors of the Company has approved CSR Policy based on the recommendation of the CSR 
Committee. The Company has initiated activities in accordance with the said Policy, the details of which have been 
prescribed in Annexure A attached.

		  The CSR Policy of the Company is available on the Company’s web-site and can be accessed in the link provided 
http://pipavav.com/csr.php

		  During the year ended 31st March 2017 the Company was required to spend Rs. 63.9 Million towards the CSR 
activities out of which Rs. 40.4 Million has been spent in the areas of Education, Health, Safety & Environment, 
Women Empowerment and Skill Development and the Rural Development Projects. Certain projects that have been 
identified are ongoing and in progress as of 31st March 2017 for which the unspent amount of Rs. 23.5 Million will get 
utilized. The Company is also committed to use the unspent amount from previous years of Rs. 25.6 Million and has 
been carried forward. 

	 i.	 ANNUAL EVALUATION OF DIRECTORS, COMMITTEE AND BOARD:

		  The Independent Directors held their meeting to evaluate the performance of each Non Independent Director and 
also of the entire Board as a whole. Each Board member’s attendance, participation and contribution of his expertise 
was evaluated. The Board also carried out the evaluation of Directors and the various Board Committees did their 
respective evaluation. 

		  The Board also evaluated the manner in which the information flows between the Board and the Management and the 
manner in which the board papers and other documents are prepared and furnished. 

	 j.	 INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS:

		  Adequate internal control systems commensurate to the size of the Company’s business and its nature of business and 
its complexities, are in place and have been operating satisfactorily. The adequacy and their functioning is reviewed by 
the Internal Auditors from time to time and wherever necessary the corrective measures are taken. 

		  Internal control systems consisting of policies and procedures are designed to ensure reliability of financial reporting, 
timely feedback on achievement of operational and strategic goals, compliance with policies, procedure, applicable 
laws and regulations and that all assets and resources are acquired economically, used efficiently and adequately 
protected.

	 k.	 DISCLOSURE UNDER SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 AND OTHER DISCLOSURES AS PER 
RULE 5 OF COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT & REMUNERATION) RULES, 2014:

		  In terms of the requirement under Section 197(12) of the Act, the Median Employee’s Remuneration of the Company 
is Rs. 371,179 and the Managing Director’s remuneration is Rs. 33,592,559. 

		  The percentage increase in remuneration of the Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs) i.e. Managing Director, Chief 
Financial Officer and Company Secretary is 8.50% , 6.00% and 10.00% respectively. The average increase for KMPs 
works out to approximately 8%.

		  The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year is 11.31%.

		  The Company has a total of 503 permanent employees on its rolls.
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		  The Company follows the global practice of its parent wherein the Company’s Objectives and the individual employee’s 
objectives are set against which their actual performance is appraised which in turn determines the percentage 
increase in their remuneration. The Company follows the Bell Curve for the performance rating of all its employees.

		  The remuneration of KMPs has also been determined based on their performance against their respective objectives 
vis-à-vis the Company’s objectives.

		  The Company’s Market Capitalization has reduced by 5.8% based on the closing price as of 31st March 2017 compared 
to 31st March 2016. The Net Worth as per the audited accounts is Rs. 20,101.75 Million as of 31st March 2017 
compared to Rs. 19,716.16 Million as of the previous year.

		  The copies of Annual Report as per Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013 are being sent to the Members excluding 
the information on employees’ particulars under Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment & Remuneration) Rules, 2014. 
Any Member who is interested in a copy of the employees’ particulars may write to the Company Secretary. The details 
will also be available for inspection by the Members at the Registered Office of the Company during the business 
hours on working days upto the date of the Company’s forthcoming Annual General Meeting. 

		  The Company has paid Commission of Rs. 15 Million to all the four Independent Directors pursuant to the shareholder’s 
approval in the previous AGM. 

	 l.	 PAYMENT OF REMUNERATION / COMMISSION TO DIRECTORS FROM HOLDING OR SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES:

		  None of the managerial personnel of the Company are in receipt of remuneration/commission from the Holding or 
Subsidiary Company of the Company.

6.	 AUDITORS AND REPORTS:

	 The matters related to Auditors and their Reports are as under:

	 a.	 OBSERVATIONS OF STATUTORY AUDITORS ON ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2017: 

		  There are no Audit Observations on the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 31st 
March 2017.

		  The Statutory Auditors have made an observation in their Audit Report for the Consolidated Financial Statements of 
the Company for the year ended 31st March 2017 in Clause 7(a) and (b) of their Report as follows:

		  Basis for Qualified Opinion
		  6(a)	 The consolidated Ind AS financial statements include the Company’s share of net profit of Rs. 361.19 million, 

based on unaudited Ind AS financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2017 in respect of its 
associate company not audited by us. Further the comparative consolidated Ind AS financial information for the 
year ended 31 March 2016 included in these consolidated Ind AS financial statements include Ind AS financial 
information of the associate company not audited by us. The Ind AS financial statement as at and for the year 
ended 31 March 2017 and the comparative Ind AS financial information as at and for the year ended 31 March 
2016 in respect of the associate company is pending audit by their auditors. Our opinion on the consolidated 
Ind AS financial statements insofar as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included for the year ended 
on 31 March 2017 in respect of this associate company is based solely on such Ind AS financial information 
of the associate company for the year ended on 31 March 2017, as furnished to us by the Management of the 
Company. 

		  (b)	 Further, pending the audit of the associate company for the year ended on 31 March 2017 by their auditors, 
we are unable to report on the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting and operating 
effectiveness of such controls of the associate company incorporated in India as required to be reported by us. 

		  In this connection the Board of Directors would like to state that the Company holds 38.8% shares in Pipavav Railway 
Corporation Limited (PRCL) and in view of the provisions of Section 2(6) of the Companies Act, 2013, PRCL is an 
Associate Company. PRCL’s more than 50% shareholding is held by Government/ Public Sector Undertakings. So 
PRCL is required to accomplish Statutory Audit followed with the CAG Audit. As on the date of this Report PRCL’s audit 
is currently in progress and the Audited Ind AS Financial Statements are yet to be released. Therefore the Company 
has prepared its Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statement based on Unaudited Ind AS financial statements provided 
by the PRCL Management.

	 b.	 SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2017: 
		  Provisions of Section 204 read with Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, mandates to obtain Secretarial Audit 

Report from Practicing Company Secretary. Accordingly M/s Rathi and Associates, Company Secretaries have issued 
the Secretarial Audit Report for the year ended 31st March 2017.
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		  The Secretarial Audit Report issued in Form MR-3 forms part of this report. The said report does not contain any 
observation or qualification requiring explanation or comments from the Board under Section 134(3) of the Companies 
Act, 2013.

	 c.	 RATIFICATION OF APPOINTMENT OF AUDITORS:
		  Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) 

Rules, 2014, M/s Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP have been appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the 
Company for a period of five years in the Annual General Meeting held on 30th July 2015 subject to ratification of their 
appointment by the Members at every Annual General Meeting. 

		  The matter for ratification of appointment of the said Auditors is included in the Notice of AGM.

	 d.	 COST AUDITORS:
		  The Company is engaged in providing Port Services and as per Notification dated 31st December 2014 issued by 

the Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 the Company is not required to 
appoint Cost Auditors. 

7.	 OTHER DISCLOSURES:
	 Other disclosures as per provisions of Section 134 of the Act read with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are furnished as under:

	 a.	 EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN:
		  Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013, Extract of the Annual Return for the year 

ended 31st March 2017 made under the provisions of Section 92(3) of the Act is attached as Annexure B to this Report.

	 b.	 CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND 
OUTGO: 

		  The Company is engaged in the business of developing and operating a Port, Cargo handling incidental to Water 
Transport. Considering the nature of business activity, the particulars regarding conservation of energy and technology 
absorption as required under the provisions of Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are not applicable and have not been included. 

	 c.	 REMUNERATION PAYABLE BY COMPANIES HAVING NO PROFIT OR INADEQUATE PROFIT (in terms of 
Section II of Schedule V):

		  The Company has adequate profits and therefore the provision of Section II in Schedule V regarding remuneration 
payable by Companies having no profit or inadequate profit without Central Government approval, is not applicable. 

	 d. 	 CHANGE IN SHARE CAPITAL:
		  The Company has not made any issue of shares during the year and its Share Capital for the year ended 31st March 

2017 remains unchanged. 

8.	 ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS AND APPRECIATION:
	 Your Directors thank Customers, Shareholders, Suppliers, Bankers, Business Partners/Associates and the Central and 

State Government and Gujarat Maritime Board for their continued support and encouragement to the Company. Your 
Directors also wish to place on record their sincere appreciation of the commitment and enthusiasm of all employees for 
their significant role in the Company’s performance.    

For and on behalf of the Board 

CHAIRMAN
Date: 11th May 2017	 DIN: 00317683
Place: Mumbai

Registered Office
Pipavav Port, 
At Post Rampara-2 via Rajula
District Amreli 365560
CIN L63010GJ1992PLC018106
Tel. No. : 02794 302400 Fax No. 02794 302413
Email : investorrelationinppv@apmterminals.com 
Website : www.pipavav.com 
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ANNEXURE A
Annual Report on CSR Activities 

1.	 A brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy, including overview of projects or programmes proposed to be 
undertaken and a reference to the web- link to the CSR policy and projects and programmes.

	 The CSR Policy is stated on the Company website: http://pipavav.com/policies.php

2.	 Composition of the CSR Committee:

	 Ms. Hina Shah, Chairperson, Independent Director

	 Mr. Pravin Laheri, IAS (Retd.), Independent Director and 

	 Mr. Keld Pedersen, Managing Director

3.	 Average Net Profit of the Company for last three financial years.

	 Rs. 3,198.2 Million

4.	 Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two percent of the amount as per item 3 above)

	 Rs. 63.9 Million 

5. 	 Details of CSR spent during the financial year;

	 (a) 	 Total amount to be spent for the financial year; Rs. 40.4 Million 

	 (b) 	 Amount unspent if any; Rs. 23.5 Million (in progress on on-going projects)

	 (c) 	 Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below:

 Rs. in Million

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)

CSR Project or 
activity identified

Sector in which 
the project is 
covered 

Project or 
programmes 
(1) Local area 
or other (2) 
Specify the 
state and 
district where 
projects or 
programmes 
was undertaken 

Amount outlay
(budget) project 
or programme 
wise

Amount spent 
on the projects 
or programme  
sub heads: 
(1) Direct 
Expenditure on 
projects and 
programmes
(2) Overheads:

Cumulative 
expenditure up 
to the reporting 
period 

Amount 
spent Direct 
or through 
implementing 
agency*

1 Supply of 
Education 
Material, 
Upgradation 
of school 
infrastructure 

Education Shiyal Bet, 
Kumbhariya, 
Rampara, 
Kadiyali, 
Dungar, Bherai 
villages 

6.2 6.2 6.2 Direct and 
through an 
NGO Swadeep 

2 Organising 
Health Camps, 
Provide Bio Gas 
units, Safety & 
Environment 
awareness 
courses 

Health, Safety 
& Environment 

Kumbhariya, 
Devpara 
villages and 
Rajula Taluka & 
Vadodara

0.16 0.16 0.16 Direct
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(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)

3 Conducting Skill 
Development for 
women

Women 
Empowerment 
& Skill 
Development

33 villages in 
Rajula Block 

7.9 7.9 7.9 Saurashtra 
Economic 
Development 
Centre, Chetna 
& Ambuja 
Cement 
Foundation

4 Animal 
Husbandry 
Development 
Programme, 
Construction of 
sanitation units, 
Providing clean 
drinking water & 
Other expenses

Rural 
Development 
Project

Kumbhariya, 
Bherai, 
Rampara, 
Kadiyali in 
Rajula Block 

26.2 26.2 26.2 GRISERV, 
BAIF, Direct 

	 	 * Details of the Implementing Agency:

6. 	 In case the Company has failed to spend the two percent of the average net profit of the last three financial years 
or any part thereof, the Company shall provide the reasons for not spending the amount in its Board Report.

	 The Company was required to spend Rs. 63.9 Million towards the CSR activities out of which an amount of Rs. 40.4 Million 
was spent in the areas of Education, Health, Safety & Environment, Women Empowerment and Skill Development and the 
Rural Development Project. Certain projects that are ongoing and in progress as of 31st March 2017 will utilize the unspent 
amount of Rs. 23.5 Million. 

	 The Company is also committed to utilize the unspent amount from past years of Rs. 25.6 Million, towards CSR activities. 
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ANNEXURE B
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As on year ended on 31st March 2017

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014]

I.	 REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

CIN : L63010GJ1992PLC018106

Registration Date : 5th August 1992

Name of the Company : Gujarat Pipavav Port Limited

Category / Sub-Category of the 
Company

: Company having Share Capital

Address of the Registered office and 
contact details

: Pipavav Port, At Post Rampara-2 via Rajula, District Amreli, Gujarat 365560

Whether listed company : Yes 

Name, Address and Contact 
details of Registrar and Transfer Agent, 
if any:

: Karvy Computershare Private Limited
Karvy Selenium Tower B, Plot 31-32,
Gachibowli, Financial District, Nanakramguda,
Hyderabad- 500032

II.	 PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

	 All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:-

Name and Description of main  
products/ services

NIC Code of the Product/ service % to total turnover of the company

Cargo handling incidental to Water Transport 52242 100%

	 PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 

Name and address of the
Company

CIN / GLN Holding / subsidiary/ 
associate

% of shares  
held

Applicable 
section

Pipavav Railway Corporation Limited
B-1202 (B-Wing)
12th Floor Statesman House
148, Barakhamba Road
Connaught Place
New Delhi-110001

U45200DL2000PLC151199 Associate 38.8% 2(6)
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I	 SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity):

	 i.	 Category-wise Share Holding:

Category of
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning 
of the period 

No. of Shares held at the end of
the period % Change 

during
the yearDemat Physical Total % of Total

Shares Demat Physical Total
% of 
Total

Shares
A.	Promoters
(1) Indian
a)Individual/HUF
b) Central Govt
c) State Govt(s)
d) Bodies Corp.
e) Banks / FI
f) Any other
Sub-total(A)(1):

(2) Foreign
a) NRIs - Individuals
b) Other – Individuals
c) Bodies Corp. 207,903,931 207,903,931 43.01 207,903,931 207,903,931 43.01 ---
d) Banks / FI
e) Any other
Sub-total (A)(2): 207,903,931 207,903,931 43.01 207,903,931 207,903,931 43.01 ---
Total shareholding
of Promoter (A) =
(A)(1)+(A)(2)

207,903,931 207,903,931 43.01 207,903,931 207,903,931 43.01 ---

B.	Public 
Shareholding

(1) Institutions
a) 	Mutual Funds 45,772,210 45,772,210 9.47 59,136,533 59,136,533 12.23 2.76
b) 	Banks / FI 5,369,940 5,369,940 1.11 5,345,379 5,345,379 1.11 0
c) 	Central Govt
d) 	State Govt(s)
e)	 Venture Capital 

Funds
f)	 Insurance
	 Companies
g) 	FIIs 192,772,138 192,772,138 39.88 178,461,630 178,461,630 36.91 (2.97)
h)	 Foreign Venture 

Capital Funds
i) 	 Others (specify)
Sub-total (B)(1): 243,914,288 243,914,288 50.45 242,943,542 242,943,542 50.25 (0.20)

(2)	Non-Institutions
a) 	Bodies Corp.
i) 	 Indian 9,322,692 28,000 9,350,692 1.93 8,643,216 28,000 8,671,216 1.79 (0.14)
ii) 	Overseas
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Category of
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning 
of the period 

No. of Shares held at the end of
the period % Change 

during
the yearDemat Physical Total % of Total

Shares Demat Physical Total
% of 
Total

Shares

b) 	Individuals

i) 	 Individual 
shareholders 
holding nominal 
share capital upto 
Rs. 2 lakh

15,277,474 513,808 15,791,282 3.27 15,760,967 479,208 16,240,175 3.36 0.09

ii) 	 Individual 
shareholders 
holding nominal 
share capital in 
excess of Rs 2 
lakh

4,279,446 4,279,446 0.89 3,920,801 3,920,801 0.81 (0.08)

c)	 Others (specify)
	 Foreign National
	 NBFCs
	 Trusts
	 NRIs
	 Clearing Members

6,125
31,552
10,900

1,024,583
909,511

217,600

6,125
31,552
10,900

1,242,183
909,511

0.00
0.01
0.00
0.26
0.19

3,000
25,961
12,400

1,123,906
2,377,378

217,600

3,000
25,961
12,400

1,341,506
2,377,378

0.00
0.01
0.00
0.28
0.49

0.02
0.30

Sub-total(B)(2): 30,856,158 759,408 31,621,691 6.54 31,867,629 724,808 32,592,437 6.74 0.19

Total Public 
Shareholding 
(B)=(B)(1)+(B)(2)

274,776,571 759,408 275,535,979 56.99 274,811,171 724,808 275,535,979 56.99

C.	Shares held by
	 Custodian for
	 GDRs & ADRs

Grand Total
(A+B+C)

482,680,502 759,408 483,439,910 100 482,715,102 724,808 483,439,910 100

ii.	 SHAREHOLDING OF PROMOTERS:

Shareholder’s Name Shareholding at the beginning of the year Shareholding at the end of the Year

No. of Shares
% of total 

Shares of the 
Company

% of Shares 
Pledged/ 

encumbered 
to total 
shares

No. of Shares
% of total 

Shares of the 
Company

% of Shares 
Pledged / 

encumbered 
to total 
shares

% change
in share
holding
during

the year

APM Terminals 
Mauritius Ltd

207,903,931 43.01 0 207,903,931 43.01 0 0

Total 207,903,931 43.01 0 207,903,931 43.01 0
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CHANGE IN PROMOTERS’ SHAREHOLDING ( PLEASE SPECIFY, IF THERE IS NO CHANGE)
Shareholding at the beginning of the year Cumulative Shareholding during the year

No. of shares % of total shares of 
the Company No. of shares % of total shares of 

the Company

At the beginning of the year 207,903,931 43.01 207,903,931 43.01

Date wise Increase/ Decrease in Promoters 
Share holding during the year specifying the rea-
sons for increase/decrease (e.g. allotment/trans-
fer/bonus/ sweat equity etc)

NIL NIL NIL NIL

At the End of the year 207,903,931 43.01 207,903,931 43.01

iii.	 SHAREHOLDING PATTERN OF TOP TEN SHAREHOLDERS (OTHER THAN DIRECTORS, PROMOTERS AND 
HOLDERS OF GDRS AND ADRS):

Sl. No. For each of the Top 10 Shareholders
Shareholding at the beginning of the year

No. of shares % of total shares of the Company

1 New World Fund Inc 20,480,000 4.24%

2 Smallcap World Fund 19,559,000 4.05%

3 Kotak Mahindra (International) Limited 17,650,000 3.65%

4 Ashoka Pte Ltd 14,624,116 3.03%

5 ICICI Prudential Discovery Fund 9,981,210 2.06%

6 Vanguard International Explorer Fund 9,210,502 1.91%

7 Matthews India Fund 8,578,564 1.77%

8 JP Morgan Sicav Investment Company (Mauritius) Ltd 7,549,818 1.56%

9 Schroder Asian Alpha Plus Fund 5,137,873 1.06%

10 Bajaj Allianz Life Insurance Co Ltd 4,902,911 1.01%

Sl. No. For each of the Top 10 Shareholders
Shareholding at the end of the year

No. of shares % of total shares of the Company
1 Franklin Templeton Mutual Fund 22,228,776 4.60%

2 Matthews Asia Dividend Fund 21,381,946 4.42%

3 ICICI Prudential Mutual Fund 19,682,063 4.07%

4 Kotak Mahindra (International) Limited 16,480,233 3.41%

5 Franklin Templeton Investment 13,765,000 2.85%

6 Matthews India Fund 8,578,564 1.77%

7 Nomura India Investment Fund 7,701,060 1.59%

8 JP Morgan Investment Company Mauritius Ltd 7,549,818 1.56%

9 Smallcap World Fund 7,189,000 1.49%

10 Vanguard International Explorer Fund 6,724,221 1.39%

iv.	 SHAREHOLDING OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

Sl.  
No. For each of the Directors and KMP

Shareholding at the  
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding  
during the year

No. of  
shares

% of total shares 
of the Company

No. of  
shares

% of total shares 
of the Company

1 Mr. Keld Pedersen, Managing Director 

At the beginning of the year -- -- -- --

Date wise Increase / Decrease in Share holding during the 
year specifying the reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. 
allotment / transfer / bonus / sweat equity etc)

-- -- -- --

At the End of the year -- -- -- --
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Sl.  
No. For each of the Directors and KMP

Shareholding at the  
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding  
during the year

No. of  
shares

% of total shares 
of the Company

No. of  
shares

% of total shares 
of the Company

2 Mr Hariharan Iyer, Chief Financial Officer

At the beginning of the year 2655 -- 2655 ---

Date wise Increase / Decrease in Share holding during the 
year specifying the reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. 
allotment / transfer / bonus / sweat equity etc)

--- -- --- ---

At the End of the year 2655 -- 2655 ---

3 Mr. Manish Agnihotri, Company Secretary & Compliance 
Officer

At the beginning of the year 5 -- 5 --

Date wise Increase / Decrease in Share holding during the 
year specifying the reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. 
allotment / transfer / bonus / sweat equity etc)

-- -- -- --

At the End of the year 5 -- 5 --

	 INDEBTEDNESS:
	 Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment.

Secured Loans
excluding
deposits

Unsecured
Loans Deposits Total

Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year NIL NIL NIL NIL

i) 	 Principal Amount

ii)   	 Interest due but not paid

iii)  	 Interest accrued but not due

Total (i+ii+iii)

Change in Indebtedness during the financial year

•	 Addition

•	 Reduction

Net Change

Indebtedness at the end of the financial year NIL NIL NIL NIL

i)   	 Principal Amount

ii)  	 Interest due but not paid

iii) 	 Interest accrued but not due

Total (i+ii+iii)

II.	 REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:
A.	 Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

Particulars of Remuneration
Name of MD/ WTD/ Manager Total Amount

Mr. Keld Pedersen

1 Gross salary

(a) 	 Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the 
Income-tax Act, 1961

Rs. 16.19 Mn Rs. 16.19 Mn

(b) 	 Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 Rs. 15.18 Mn Rs. 15.18 Mn

(c) 	 Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961 Nil Nil
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Particulars of Remuneration
Name of MD/ WTD/ Manager Total Amount

Mr. Keld Pedersen

2 Stock Option Nil Nil

3 Sweat Equity Nil Nil

4 Commission Nil Nil

- as % of profit

- others, specify

5 Others, please specify -Performance Bonus Rs. 2.23 Mn Rs. 2.23 Mn

Total (A) Rs. 33.60 Mn Rs. 33.60 Mn

Ceiling as per the Act Rs. 132.78 Mn Rs. 132.78 Mn

B.	 REMUNERATION TO OTHER DIRECTORS:

Particulars of 
Remuneration

Name of Directors Total Amount

1. Independent Directors

Mr. Tejpreet 
Singh Chopra

Ms. Hina Shah Mr. Pradeep 
Mallick

Mr. Pravin 
Laheri, IAS 
(Retd.)

Fee for attending board 
/ committee meetings

Rs. 600,000 Rs. 950,000 Rs. 1,000,000 Rs. 1,100,000 Rs. 3,650,000

Commission Rs. 6,000,000 Rs. 3,000,000 Rs. 3,000,000 Rs. 3,000,000 Rs. 15,000,000

Others, please specify Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Total (1) Rs. 6,600,000 Rs. 3,950,000 Rs. 4,000,000 Rs. 4,100,000 Rs. 18,650,000

2. Other Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Jan 
Damgaard 
Sorensen*

Mr. Rizwan 
Soomar

Mr. Julian 
Bevis

Mr. Ahmed 
Hassan*

Mr. A. K. 
Rakesh, IAS*

Fee for attending board 
/ committee meetings

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Commission Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Others, please specify Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Total (2) Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Total (B)=(1+2) Rs. 6,600,000 Rs. 3,950,000 Rs. 4,000,000 Rs. 4,100,000 Nil Rs. 18,650,000

Total Managerial 
Remuneration

Rs. 6,600,000 Rs. 3,950,000 Rs. 4,000,000 Rs. 4,100,000 Nil Rs. 18,650,000

Overall Ceiling as per 
the Act

Rs. 292.12 Mn

	 *Held Directorship for part of the year
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C.	 REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD

Particulars of Remuneration
Key Managerial Personnel

CEO Company
Secretary CFO Total

1 Gross salary

(a)	 Salary as per provisions contained in 
section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 
1961

NA Rs. 4.76 Mn Rs. 14.02 Mn Rs. 18.78 Mn

(b)	 Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-
tax Act, 1961

NA NA NA

(c)	 Profits in lieu of salary under section 
17(3) Income tax Act, 1961

NA NA NA

2 Stock Option NA NA NA

3 Sweat Equity NA NA NA

4 Commission NA NA NA

- as % of profit

- others, specify

5 Others, please Specify- Performance Bonus Rs. 0.88 Mn Rs. 3.51 Mn Rs. 4.39 Mn

Total Rs. 5.64 Mn Rs. 17.53 Mn Rs. 23.17 Mn

	 PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: 

Type Section of the 
Companies Act Brief Description

Details of Penalty /
Punishment/ 

Compounding fees 
imposed

Authority [RD /
NCLT/ COURT]

Appeal made, 
if any (give 

Details)

A. COMPANY

Penalty NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

Punishment NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

Compounding NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

B. DIRECTORS

Penalty NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

Punishment NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

Compounding NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penalty NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

Punishment NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

Compounding NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
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DISCLOSURE FOR RATIO OF REMUNERATION OF EACH DIRECTOR TO THE MEDIAN EMPLOYEE’S REMUNERATION 
AND OTHER DETAILS AS PER RULE 5 OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT & REMUNERATION) RULES, 2014

Median Remuneration:  Rs. 371,179

Managing Director’s Remuneration: Rs. 33,592,559

The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary 
or Manager, if any, in the financial year:

Name of Director/ KMP Percentage increase in remuneration

Mr. Keld Pedersen, Managing Director 8.5%

Mr. Hariharan Iyer, CFO 6% 

Mr. Manish Agnihotri, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer 10% 

The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year: 11.31%

The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company:  503     

The Company has a comprehensive Performance Appraisal process which is based on the appraisal process carried out by APM 
Terminals globally. Under the process, the concerned Manager and the Employee agree on the Objectives. The performance is 
appraised through mid-term appraisals and the final appraisal at the end of the year, where the concerned Manager provides 
feedback to the employee.
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SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration 

Personnel) Rules, 2014]

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2017

To,
The Members
Gujarat Pipavav Port Limited
Pipavav Port
At Post Ucchaiya via-Rajula, Amreli
Gujarat 365 560

Dear Sirs,

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate 
governance practice by Gujarat Pipavav Port Limited (hereinafter called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in 
a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our 
opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s Books, Papers, Minutes Books, Forms and Returns filed and other records maintained 
by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during 
the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the financial year ended 31st 
March, 2017, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board processes and 
compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

1.	 We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by Gujarat 
Pipavav Port Limited ("the Company") as given in Annexure I, for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2017, according 
to the provisions of:

	 (i)	 The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under to the extent applicable;

	 (ii)	 The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA') and the rules made there under;

	 (iii)	 The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;

	 (iv)	 Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign 
Direct Investment; 

	 (v)	 The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 
('SEBI Act'):-

	 i.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

	 ii.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

	 iii.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015; 

2.	 Provisions of the following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 
1992 ('SEBI Act') were not applicable to the Company under the financial year under report:-

	 i.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009;

	 ii.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; and

	 iii.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998;

	 iv.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to a Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993, 
regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

	 v.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase 
Scheme) guidelines, 1999;

	 vi.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014;
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3.	 We further report that, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company and on examination of the 
relevant documents and records in pursuance thereof, on test- check basis, the Company has complied with other Acts, 
Laws and Regulations applicable specifically to the Company as per the list given in Annexure – II.  

	 We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company 
Secretaries of India under the provisions of Companies Act, 2013.

	 During the financial year under report, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, 
Guidelines, Standards, etc. as mentioned above subject to the fact that the consolidated financial statements of the 
Company for the year ended 31st March, 2016 were prepared on the basis of unaudited financial statements of Pipavav 
Railway Corporation Limited, an Associate Company, for the year ended on that date.

	 We further report that:

	 The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive 
Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the 
year under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

	 Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent 
at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the 
agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

	 None of the members have dissenting views while carried out the majority decision during the period under the review, 
hence are not required to captured and recorded as part of the minutes.

	 Based on the records and process explained to us for compliances under the provisions of other specific acts applicable to 
the Company, we report that there are adequate systems and processes commensurate with the size and operations of the 
Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

	 We further report that during the year under report, the Company has not undertaken event/action having a major bearing 
on the Company's affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc.

For Rathi & Associates
  Company Secretaries

Himanshu S. Kamdar
Partner

FCS No. 5171
COP No. 3030

Date: 06.05.2017 
Mumbai 

Note:	 This report should be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure-III and forms an integral part of this report.
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ANNEXURE - I

List of documents verified

1.	 Memorandum & Articles of Association of the Company.

2.	 Annual Report for the financial year ended 31st March 2016.

3.	 Minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors, Audit Committee, Nomination & Remuneration Committee, Stakeholders’ 
Relationship Committee and Corporate Social Responsibility Committee held during the financial year under report along 
with Attendance Register.

4.	 Minutes of General Body Meetings held during the financial year under report.

5.	 Statutory Registers viz. 

	 -	 Register of Directors & Key Managerial Personnel

	 -	 Register of loans, guarantees and security and acquisition made by the Company

	 -	 Register of Renewed and Duplicate Share Certificate  

6.	 Agenda papers submitted to all the Directors/members for the Board Meetings and Committee Meetings.

7.	 Declarations received from the Directors of the Company pursuant to the provisions of Section 184 and 149(7) of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

8.	 Intimations received from Directors under the Prohibition of Insider Trading Code.

9.	 e-Forms filed by the Company from time to time under applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and attachments 
thereof during the financial year under report.

10.	 Intimations/documents/reports/returns filed with the Stock Exchanges pursuant to the provisions of Listing Agreements with 
the stock exchanges and the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 during the financial year under report.

11.	 Filings made with the Reserve Bank of India under the Foreign Direct Investment Guidelines.

12.	 Various Policies made under the Companies Act, 2013, Listing Agreements with the stock exchanges and the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

13.	 Internal Code of Conduct for prevention of Insider Trading by Employees / Directors / Designated Persons of the Company;

14.	 E-mails evidencing dissemination of information related to closure of trading window;

15.	 E-mails evidencing notice of Board and Committee meetings circulated to Board and Committee members;
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ANNEXURE - II

List of applicable laws to the Company and its plans situated at:

Registered office:
Pipavav Port at Post Ucchaiya via - Rajula 
Dist. Amreli, Gujarat - 365 560

Corporate office:
301, Trade Centre, Bandra Kurla Complex, 
Bandra (East), Mumbai – 400 098

Port:
Pipavav Port at Post Ucchaiya via - Rajula 
Dist. Amreli, Gujarat - 365 560

Under the Major Group and Head

1.	 Industries (Development & Regulation) Act, 1951; 

2.	 Acts prescribed related to port management and such other ancillary activities;

3.	 Labour Laws and other incidental laws related to labour and employees appointed by the Company either on it payroll or on 
contractual basis as related to wages, gratuity, provident fund, ESIC, compensation etc.;

4.	 Acts prescribed under prevention and control of Pollution;

5.	 Acts prescribed under Environmental protection;

6.	 Acts as prescribed under Direct Tax and Indirect Tax;

7.	 Land Revenue laws of respective States;

8.	 Labour Welfare Act of respective States;

9.	 Local laws as applicable to various offices, port, terminals etc. 
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ANNEXURE III

To,
The Members
Gujarat Pipavav Port Limited
Mumbai

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.	 Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company our responsibility is to express 
an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2.	 We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the 
correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts 
are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for 
our opinion.

3.	 We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the company.

4.	 Whereever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations 
and happening of events etc.

5.	 The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility 
of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6.	 The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness 
with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

For Rathi & Associates
  Company Secretaries

Himanshu S. Kamdar
Partner

FCS No. 5171
COP No. 3030

Place: Mumbai
Date: 06.05.2017
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Management Discussion and Analysis
For the year ended 31st March 2017

Introduction

The Company is presenting its first Ind AS compliant financial statements as per the requirement under the Companies Act and SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. Accordingly, the previous year’s figures have been re-grouped 
wherever applicable. 

The following discussion and analysis of the financial performance and activity of Gujarat Pipavav Port Limited is intended to 
provide an analysis of the business and the financial statements for the year under review, with selected comparative information 
for the year ended 31 March 2016. This section has been prepared by the Management of Gujarat Pipavav Port Limited (referred 
to as “APM Terminals Pipavav” or “the Port” or “the Company”) and should be read in conjunction with the financial statements 
and the notes thereon, which follow the section.

The Company holds 38.8% shares in Pipavav Railway Corporation Limited (PRCL) and in view of the provisions of Section 
2(6) of the Companies Act, 2013, PRCL is an Associate Company and pursuant to the provisions of Section 129 of the Act, its 
accounts are to be consolidated with the Company’s accounts. More than 50% of PRCL’s shareholding is held by Government/ 
Public Sector Undertakings so PRCL is required to accomplish Statutory Audit followed with the CAG Audit. As on the date of this 
Report PRCL’s Audited Financial Statements are not available, therefore the Company has prepared its Consolidated Financial 
Statement based on Unaudited financial statements provided by the PRCL Management. 

The financial statements have been prepared on Going Concern basis and on Accrual basis of Accounting under the Historical 
Cost Convention and in accordance with Ind AS. 

Background

APM Terminals Pipavav, India’s first private sector port, operates an all-weather port located on the Southwest coast of Gujarat 
at a distance of 140 kms Southwest of Bhavnagar and around 152 nautical miles Northwest of Mumbai. The port lies on a 
strategic international maritime trade route which connects India with the Far East, Middle East, Africa, Europe and the US. The 
Port’s Container handling capacity is 1.35 Million TEUs. The Bulk Cargo capacity is approximately 4 to 5 Million MT per annum 
depending on cargo mix and Liquid Cargo capacity is approximately 2 Million MT per annum. The Container berth is also used 
for handling the RORO vessels. 

APM Terminals is the Lead Promoter and holds 43.01% of the total shareholding of the Company. APM Terminals operates a 
Global Terminal Network of 20,000 employees serving 76 Port and Terminal facilities in 41 countries and 103 Inland Services 
Operations in 38 Countries around the Globe. It provides Port Management and Operations to over 60 Liner Shipping Companies 
which serve the world’s leading Importers and Exporters. 

Economy & Port Sector 

The WTO is forecasting that global trade is expected to grow at ~2.4% in 2017. However, the uncertainty about near-term 
economic and policy developments raise the risk. The international trade has the potential to strengthen global growth if the 
movement of goods and supply of services across borders remains largely unfettered. However, if policymakers attempt to 
address job losses at home with severe restrictions on imports, trade cannot help boost growth and may even constitute a drag on 
the recovery. The WTO advises that the unpredictable direction of the global economy in the near term and the lack of clarity about 
action on monetary, fiscal and trade policies by various governments with tighter fiscal policies and the imposition of measures 
to curtail trade could all undermine higher trade growth over the next two years. The WTO expects the global GDP growth at 
2.7% in 2017 and 2.8% in 2018. While there are reasonable expectations that such growth could be achieved, expansion along 
these lines would represent a significant improvement on the 2.3% GDP growth in 2016. This GDP estimate also assumes that 
developed economies maintain generally expansionary monetary and fiscal policies, and that developing economies continue to 
emerge from their recent slowdown.

The challenging market conditions for our key customers, the Global Shipping Lines, continued during the Year 2016. Since the financial 
crisis of Year 2008-09, the shipping industry has been impacted by both supply and demand. While too many ships were being built and 
not enough of them were being scrapped, the global trade also continued to slow down. Another factor that has led to excess capacity 
build up is that due to the drop in global fuel prices, the shipping lines are not slow-steaming their vessels. This has resulted into shorter 
transit time for the vessels and further increase in the capacity. All this has led to multiple years of losses and stretched Balance Sheets 
which saw a major carrier Hanjin go out of business, first such instance in 30 years which is a testimony to the market situation for the 
lines. The industry is in consolidation mode with CMA CGM completing its acquisition of Neptune Orient Lines (NOL) and two Chinese 
carriers COSCO and China Shipping completed their merger. Maersk Line has completed the signing of Agreement for purchase of 
Hamburg Süd. The other mergers and acquisitions that have been completed or are in their various stages of completion are merger of 
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Hapag Lloyd and UASC and merger between the three Japanese carriers namely NYK, MOL and K Line. Further, the Shipping Lines are 
trying to strengthen themselves by forming alliances to share the slots on the vessels. But these alliances have not been able to reduce 
the overall capacity so the freight rates continued their downward trend. The Shipping Lines have indicated that they plan to release  
surplus charter capacity by returning the charter vessels to the vessel owners. This action will lead to reduction in their operating cost and 
taking out some excess capacity which in turn can improve the freight rates for the carriers.  

The Indian trade is showing steady growth with the Container market on West Coast that handles almost two-thirds of the country’s 
container business, growing at about 6%. In the context of the overall global trade it is a strong number and is one of the very few growth 
markets but India has much larger potential to grow. AP Moller Maersk in partnership with the Confederation of Indian Industry (CII) had 
recently carried out an extensive study on current obstacles to Indian logistics and associated trade growth. The study found that the 
cost of trade in India is among the highest in the world when compared with peer countries. Indian transport and logistics costs represent 
14.4% of India’s Gross Domestic Product (GDP) as compared with 8% for China. The report states that there is often much debate about 
the direct costs of transportation and logistics, such as terminal rates, freight rates and inland transport costs, the most significant costs 
can be the indirect and hidden costs stemming from delays and inefficiencies. Reducing these costs is a significant source of potential 
savings and improved competitiveness for Indian exporters and importers. The study covered four businesses namely textiles and 
garments; pharmaceuticals; electronics; and auto components. The data indicated that India’s indirect costs of trade (including delays, 
road congestion and non-essential paperwork) represent as much as 38% to 47% of total transportation and logistics costs. A reduction 
of these extraneous costs by 10% would create the potential for up to 5% to 8% in additional exports for the country, or $5.5 billion in 
additional export revenue above the current level of $63.3 billion, in these four sectors. 

The Government of India’s focus on ‘port-led’ development by bringing the industries closer to the coast and promoting water 
transportation is likely to considerably reduce the overall logistics cost thus improving the export competitiveness of various 
businesses and create more employment opportunities for the country’s growing youth population. The country with its 7,500 
kms long coastline covering 13 states and Union territories has vast potential for increasing the coastal trade. The Government of 
Gujarat has taken lead by developing an Auto Hub in the Sanand- Mehsana area and the region has already commenced Export 
of cars. The sector shows strong promise of growth opportunity from the State. This can be a good example for other industries to 
take lead and set up their manufacturing base in Dholera, the State Government’s  project for port based development. The Non-
major ports in Gujarat have an edge over Major ports due to better draft and availability of larger Handling as well as Evacuation 
capacity. Such efficiencies can contribute to the export competitiveness of businesses. 

In the case of Dry Bulk cargo, Coal and Fertiliser are the two main commodities imported in the country and Iron Ore is exported 
but mainly from Eastern part of the country. The Coal Imports continue to witness reduction due to improved availability of 
Domestic Coal and the Government’s focus on encouraging renewable energy sector. The cost per unit for solar power is cost 
competitive and provides clean power. All this has consistently contributed in lower coal imports over last few years. The Fertilizer 
imports have been subdued because of the availability of the stock but there is always a seasonal fluctuation in the demand 
and import of the cargo. The Government’s initiative of directing all the Ports handling imported fertilizer to carry out compulsory 
coating of Neem on the cargo in order to prevent its misuse and ensure that the subsidized commodity is indeed used only for the 
agricultural purpose could also be the reason for reduced imports. 

Operations Review

Container volume throughput for the year ended 31 March 2017 was 663,380 TEUs compared to 694,614 TEUs in the previous 
year. The reduction in volume has been mainly on account of the shift of one service from the port, discontinuance of one service 
and Hanjin going out of business. 

The Dry Bulk cargo volumes at Pipavav continue to be driven primarily by Coal and Fertilizer albeit a significantly reduced Coal 
imports due to lower imports and the existing rail freight differential issues accentuated by every hike in rail freight. The Port 
handled 2.11 Million MT during the year ended 31st March 2017, compared to 2.47 Million MT during the previous year. 

On Liquid cargo front, the Port handled over about 685,960 MT during 31st March 2017 compared to 706,877 MT during the year 
ended 31st March 2016. The volume has been led mainly by the LPG imports with the Government’s focus on providing LPG gas 
connection in the rural areas of the country.  

The RORO business continues to be promising as the Port handled 83,607 cars during 31st March 2017 against 19,644 cars after 
commencing the business in August 2015 in the previous financial year. With the Government’s focus on the costal movement of 
cargo, movement of cars through costal route has a huge potential which can reduce the pressure on roads.

The lower diesel prices and repeated increase in the rail freight had put Indian Railways at a disadvantage compared to the trucks 
for freight movement. The initiatives by Railways is likely to reverse this trend slowly and steadily which is faster and environment 
friendly mode of transport. 
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Financial Review

Dividend declared/ recommended and the Dividend Policy

During the year under review, the Board of Directors had declared and paid an Interim Dividend of Rs. 2.00 per share in November 
2016 and now recommend a Final Dividend of Rs. 1.80 per share subject to the approval by the Members in the Company’s 
Annual General Meeting proposed for Thursday 10th August 2017. 

The Company’s Dividend Policy states as follows:

Dividend is the Company’s primary distribution of profits to its Shareholders. The Company’s objective is to sustain a steady and 
consistent distribution of profits, by way of Dividend, to its Shareholders while considering the following:

(a)	 The circumstances under which the shareholders can or cannot expect dividend

	 The Company shall endeavour to pay Dividend to its shareholders in a steady and consistent manner except the following 
circumstances:

	 (i)	 During no growth or weak growth in the trade requiring the Company to retain its earnings to be able to absorb 
unfavourable market conditions and for meeting the business requirements; 

	 (ii)	 To meet its funding requirements for expansion and growth; 
	 (iii)	 The Company’s Joint Venture with Indian Railways, Pipavav Railway Corporation Limited requires equity infusion from 

its shareholders.

	 During such times the Company may decide to retain the earnings instead of distributing to the shareholders. The distribution 
of Dividend can be by way of Interim Dividend and/or by way of Final Dividend. 

(b) 	 The financial parameters that will be considered while declaring dividend

	 The Company shall consider the following parameters while declaring dividend:

	 i)	 Current year’s profit:
		  a)	 after setting off carried over previous losses, if any;
		  b)	 after providing for depreciation in accordance with the provisions of Schedule II of the Act;
		  c)	 after transferring to reserves such amount as may be prescribed or as may be otherwise considered appropriate 

by the Board at its discretion.

	 ii)	 The profits for any previous financial year(s):
		  a)	 after providing for depreciation in accordance with law;
		  b)	 remaining undistributed; or

	 iii)	 out of (i) or (ii) or both.
	 In computing the above, the Board may at its discretion, subject to provisions of the law, exclude any or all of (i) extraordinary 

and exceptional income, generated from activities other than regular business (ii) extraordinary charges (iii) exceptional 
charges (iv) one off charges on account of change in law or rules or accounting policies or accounting standards (v) 
provisions or write offs on account of impairment in investments (long term or short term) (vi) noncash charges pertaining to 
amortization or ESOP or resulting from change in accounting policies or accounting standards.

(c)	 Internal and External factors that would be considered for declaration of dividend
	 The Company’s Board shall always consider various Internal and External factors while considering the quantum for 

declaration of dividend such as the overall Economic scenario of the country, the Export Import trade of the country, the 
statutory and regulatory provisions, the Company’s own performance, its profitability, its growth plans, the performance and 
funding requirements of its joint venture Rail Company and such other factors as may be deemed fit by the Board.

(d) 	 Policy as to how the retained earnings will be utilised
	 The retained earnings would mainly be utilised for the purpose of the Company’s growth plans, the funding requirements of 

its joint venture Rail Company and for all such activities that in the Board’s opinion shall enhance the shareholder’s value. 

(e) 	 Provisions with regard to various classes of shares

	 The Company currently has only one class of shares namely Equity shares. In case the Company issues any other class of 
shares, this Policy shall be modified suitably for stipulating the parameters for distribution of dividend to all classes of shares. 
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Financial Results

As mentioned hereinabove, the Company has for the first time presented the Ind AS compliant financial statements as per the 
requirement under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. Accordingly, the previous year’s 
figures have been re-grouped wherever applicable.

The Company’s Revenue from Operations consists of Income from Port Services and Other Operating Income. Total Revenue 
from Operations for the year ended 31st March 2017 was Rs. 6,831.04 Million against Rs. 6,599.54 during the year ended 31st 
March, 2016.

Income from Port Services consists of Income from Marine Services, Container & Cargo Handling, Storage services as well value-
added Port Services. Income from Port Services totaled Rs. 6,233.20 Million for the year ended 31st March 2017 compared to  
Rs. 6,049.04 Million for the year ended 31st March 2016, driven mainly by increase in RORO exports and improvement in 
realization.

Other Operating Income comprises lease rentals from sub-leasing of land to various Port users and other incidental Income 
from Operations. Other Operating Income marginally increased to Rs. 597.84 Million for the year ended 31st March 2017 from  
Rs. 550.50 Million for the year ended 31st March 2016.  

Total Expenditure consists of Operating expenses, Employee benefits, Depreciation and Other expenses. The Company incurred 
a Total Expenditure of Rs. 3,710.29 Million for the year ended 31st March 2017 compared to Rs. 3,812.30 Million for the year 
ended 31st March 2016.  

Operating Expenses primarily include Equipment Hire charges, Handling expenses, Waterfront Royalty and Other direct costs. 
Operating expenses totaled Rs. 1,212.88  Million for the year ended 31st March 2017 against Rs. 1,320.68  Million for the year 
ended March 31, 2016.

EBITDA amounted to Rs. 4,539.49 Million for the year ended 31st March 2017 against Rs. 4,064.32 Million for the year ended 31st 
March 2016. The Margins have increased during the year due to better commodity mix, increase in liquid and RORO operations 
and gains from cost efficiency measures. 

Dividend Income

The Company received dividend income of Rs. 38 Million during the year from its Associate Company PRCL.  

Other Income

Other Income consists Dividend Income from PRCL, Interest on short-term bank deposits, Gain or Loss from foreign exchange 
and other Miscellaneous Income. The Other Income was Rs. 353.59 Million for the year ended 31st March 2017 compared to Rs. 
303.69 Million in the previous year. 

Debt 

The Company continues to be debt free and is in a position to leverage its strong Balance Sheet for future growth opportunities 
as and when they arise depending upon the market conditions. 

Deferred Tax Liability

The Company has been assessing its Deferred Tax position at each Balance Sheet date. Until prior to the year ended 31st March 
2016, the Company had Net Deferred Tax Asset position mainly due to carried forward tax losses of earlier years. The carried 
forward tax losses reduced significantly and the position of Deferred Tax Asset changed to Deferred Tax Liability during 31st March 
2016, mainly constituting the timing difference of book depreciation and tax depreciation. Accordingly, the Company has started 
recording the Tax charge. During the year ended 31st March 2017 it was Rs. 971.19 Million compared to Rs. 1,177.50 Million in 
the previous year. As mentioned herein above, with adoption of Ind AS for the first time, the previous year’s figures have been 
re-aligned. 

The Company is under Tax Holiday as per Section 80IA of the Income Tax Act, until 31st March 2017 and has paid the Minimum 
Alternate Tax (MAT) on its book profits. 

Net Profit

The Company has reported a Net Profit of Rs. 2, 499.12 Million for the year ended 31st March 2017 as against Rs. 1,911.84 Million 
for year ended 31st March, 2016. 

Risk Management and Internal Control

The SEBI Listing Regulations stipulate Top 100 companies to constitute a Risk Management Committee of the Board. But the 
Company has voluntarily set up a Board Sub-committee for review of the Risks and the Committee is responsible for advising the 
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Board on high-level risk related matters. The Committee oversees the identification, mitigation and monitoring of the Company’s 
material risks and exposures. The Risk Register provides a consistent and measurable management assurance metric on the 
broad risks involved and its impact on Company’s objectives. The Risk Register is also reviewed by the Audit Committee and 
Minutes of the Risk Committee are presented to the Audit Committee and the Board.

The Board has the overall responsibility to maintain a sound and effective internal control environment. The Company has put in 
place an internal control framework commensurate to the size of its business and it encompasses both robust internal controls, 
and an efficient and effective internal control monitoring and reporting system. The Audit Committee on behalf of the Board 
reviews the adequacy and integrity of the Company’s internal control system. A firm of Independent Internal Auditors Mukesh M 
Shah & Co. Chartered Accountants, is retained to also review the Internal Controls. The Internal Auditors directly report to the 
Audit Committee of the Company. 

The Statutory Auditors have reviewed the Internal Financial Controls, their adequacy and have found them in order and the 
Internal Auditors have reviewed the Business and Operational Control measures and their adequacy from time to time. Wherever 
suggested by the Auditors, the improved control measures have been implemented and their functioning is reviewed from time 
to time. 

APM Terminals Group’s initiatives, the Audit Questionnaire (AQ) and the Control Manual are the overarching framework that sets 
out the Company’s approach to internal controls. It aims to bring in a certain discipline and consistency in the way activities are 
carried out on a daily basis. Looking at fraud prevention and reliable reporting through the lens of finance, these   provide guidance 
to all departments on the minimum required controls in relation to a process flow.  The Company has been consistently rated 
amongst the top APM Terminals entities within the Portfolio towards the effectiveness and maturity levels of the internal control 
measures commensurate to the size and nature of the business.  

Health, Safety, Security and Environment (HSSE)

APM Terminals is committed to improving Safety performance at its Ports/Terminals and Inland Service locations. The Group’s 
commitment to Safety has four underlying fundamental principles – Safety is the license to operate; has no hierarchy, it means 
no compromise and all companies should be actively committed to it. Facilities where APM Terminals has Operational Control 
have implemented Global Operational Standards for Safety, a set of Minimum Controls developed to manage the Top five risks 
identified to be related to 90% of the most serious incidents and fatalities occurring in APM Terminals namely, Transportation, 
Suspended loads & lifting, Working at height, Stored energy, and Control of Contractors. 

As a part of the Global initiative by APM Terminals all terminals within its portfolio observe Global Safety Day. This year too the 
Global Safety Day was observed from 17th to 20th April 2017. The theme was “24/7 SAFE” with focus on night operations and 
night shifts. The port conducted several programmes during the period including Safety Skit followed by Spot Quiz performed by 
various departments, Conducting tool box meeting and organizing Safety Walk. The families of the employees were also  involved 
in the programme by organizing a Drawing Competition for the kids with Safety as a theme, Organising of the Photography contest 
and Skits by the ladies. The event closed with winners being awarded by the Managing Director and the Executive Team members 
of the Company followed by an address by the Managing Director to all the employees and their families. The entire event was 
very well received and appreciated by the employees and their families, the Company’s Contractors and their employees as it 
demonstrates the Company’s commitment to the Safety and Security of all its stakeholders. 

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

APM Terminals Pipavav sees CSR as an integrated part of the way the Company does business. In order to provide a meaningful 
change and contribution to the local communities and to support community development, the Port carries out a need based 
assessment before taking up any initiative so that the activity once implemented is well received by the local community.  

The Company has formulated policies for social development that are based on the following guiding principles:

	 •	 Adopt an approach that aims at achieving a greater balance between social development and economic development;
	 •	 Adopt new measures to accelerate and ensure the basic needs of all people including health and sanitation and 

working towards elimination of barriers for the social inclusion of disadvantaged groups;
	 •	 Focus on educating the girl child and the underprivileged by providing appropriate infrastructure, and groom them as 

future value creators;
	 •	 Assist in skill development by providing direction and technical expertise to the vulnerable with special focus on 

women thereby empowering them towards a dignified and better quality life;
	 •	 Promote an inclusive work culture; 
	 •	 Work towards generating awareness for creating public infrastructure that is barrier free, inclusive and enabling for all 

including the elderly and the disabled; 
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	 •	 Employee participation is an important part of developing responsible citizenship. Our company encourages and 
motivates employees to spend time volunteering on issues pertaining to CSR;

	 •	 At the time of local or national crisis, to respond to emergency situations & disasters by providing timely help to 
affected victims and their families.

Our Core Focus Areas are:
	 •	 Education

	 •	 Health & Environment Sustainability 

	 •	 Socio Economic Development and Social Business Projects

	 •	 Women Empowerment

During the year ended 31 March 2017 some of the key CSR Projects carried out were:

	 •	 Supply of Education Material, Upgradation of school infrastructure

	 •	 Organising Health Camps, Provide Bio Gas units,  Safety & Environment awareness courses

	 •	 Conducting Skill Development for women

	 •	 Animal Husbandry Development Programme, Construction of sanitation units, Providing clean drinking water 

Outlook

As per the forecast by IMF, India’s growth forecast for 2017-18 is expected to be 7.2% after reducing it by 0.4% mainly due to 
the short term negative consumption from the cash shortage. The weather bureau is expecting near normal monsoon during the 
current year which can also improve the rural economy and the overall GDP of the country.

The shipping industry is going through the consolidation process which should remove some overcapacity in the short and 
medium term. Also the alliances by Shipping Lines are being firmed up to share slots on the vessels in their attempt to reduce 
the per unit cost. The Lines are also planning to return the excess Charter capacity to the ship owners. All these initiatives by the 
Lines should hopefully provide them some relief. 

Human Resources/ Industrial Relations

As part of the overall Global policy, APM Terminals requires all the Employees to participate in its Annual Employee Engagement 
Survey which is carried out entirely in confidence by an External Agency to understand the requirements at each Port/Terminal. 
Based on the results of the survey, feedback is provided to the Management of APM Terminals which in turn is intimated to the 
respective Port/ Terminal Management for necessary action. 

The survey score of APM Terminals Pipavav places it amongst the top quartile. The Company has about 503 employees and 
the Management encourages them to provide feedback in all the areas in order to carry out the necessary improvements on an 
ongoing basis in an effort to make the Company a better place to work. 

APM Terminals globally also conducts an Annual Customer and Third Party Satisfaction Survey for all its 76 Ports/ Terminals 
within the Portfolio. The Survey evaluates the performance by the respective Port/Terminal in various areas of Commercial and 
Operational parameters. APM Terminals Pipavav has in the Survey consistently achieved high scores and has maintained its 
position amongst the Top Quartile.

Cautionary Statement

Certain statements found in the Management Discussion and Analysis may constitute “forward-looking statements” within the 
meaning of applicable Securities Laws and Regulations. These forward-looking statements involve known and unknown risks, 
uncertainties and other factors that are difficult to predict and which may cause our actual results, performance or achievements 
to be different from any future results, performance and achievements expressed or implied by these statements.



40

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 

The Directors present the Annual Corporate Governance Report of Gujarat Pipavav Port Limited (“the Company” or “APM 
Terminals Pipavav”) for the year ended 31 March 2017. 

The Company’s philosophy on Corporate Governance

The Company strives to follow highest standards of ethics, transparency and integrity as its philosophy on Corporate Governance 
while conducting business. The Company has adopted Code of Conduct for its Employees, Managing Director and Non-Executive 
Directors. The code is in line with the Core Values followed by its promoter APM Terminals and shares the distinctive set of the 
Maersk Group core values that drive the way we do business. This code contains guiding principles for our conduct based on 
those values, our commitment to the UN Global Compact, and our commitment to our people, customers and communities. 

A Code for Prevention of Insider Trading and a Whistle Blower Policy also forms an integral part of Corporate Governance. These 
codes are also in compliance with the requirements of Corporate Governance stipulated under SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The copy of these codes and policies are available on Company’s website www.
pipavav.com/policies.php

Board of Directors

The Company’s Board of Directors comprises  total 8 Directors, out of which 1 is an Executive Director, 4 Independent Directors 
(including the Chairman of the Board) and 3 Non-Executive Non-Independent Directors. Gujarat Maritime Board ”GMB” is also 
entitled to 1 board seat which is currently vacant. 

The Independent Directors also include a woman Director. The composition is in compliance with the requirements stipulated 
under Regulation 17 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

None of the Directors of the Company is a Member of more than 10 Committees or Chairman of more than 5 Committees across 
the Companies in which they hold Directorships. 

None of the Directors have any relationship between them.

The name and category of Directors on the Board, their attendance at Board Meetings, number of directorships and committee 
chairmanship/ membership held by them in Audit Committee and Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee is given below:

Name Category

No. of Board  
Meetings attended 

during the year 
ended 31 March 

2017

Whether 
attended 

last Annual 
General 
Meeting 
(AGM) 

No. of 
Directorships 

in other 
public limited 
companies $

No. of Committee 
positions held in 

other public limited 
companies @

Number of 
shares held 

as of 31 
March 2017

Held Attended Chairman Member

Mr. Tejpreet Singh 
Chopra- Chairman
DIN:00317683

Independent
Non-Executive 

4 4 Yes 3 1 Nil Nil

Mr. A. K. Rakesh, 
IAS*   
DIN: 00063819

Non- Independent
Non-Executive (GMB 
Nominee)

2 Nil No 7 Nil Nil Nil

Mr. Ahmed Hassan^
DIN: 07588595

Non- Independent
Non-Executive

2 Nil NA Nil Nil Nil Nil

Ms. Hina Shah
DIN:06664927

Independent Non- 
Executive 

4 4 Yes Nil Nil Nil Nil

Mr. Jan Damgaard 
Sorensen#
DIN: 06408939

Non- Independent
Non-Executive

2 1 No Nil Nil Nil Nil

Mr. Julian Bevis
DIN: 00146000

Non- Independent
Non-Executive

4 4 Yes Nil Nil Nil Nil

Mr. Pradeep Mallick
DIN:00061256 

Independent
Non-Executive

4 4 Yes 3 1 3 Nil

Mr. Pravin Laheri, 
IAS (Retd.)
DIN:00499080 

Independent
Non-Executive

4 4 Yes 3 1 Nil Nil
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Name Category

No. of Board  
Meetings attended 

during the year 
ended 31 March 

2017

Whether 
attended 

last Annual 
General 
Meeting 
(AGM) 

No. of 
Directorships 

in other 
public limited 
companies $

No. of Committee 
positions held in 

other public limited 
companies @

Number of 
shares held 

as of 31 
March 2017

Held Attended Chairman Member

Mr. Rizwan Soomar
DIN: 02398970

Non- Independent
Non-Executive

4 4 Yes Nil Nil Nil Nil

Mr. Keld Pedersen
DIN: 07144184

Managing Director 4 4 Yes 1 Nil Nil Nil

*	 Mr. A. K. Rakesh, IAS ceased to be Director effective 7 September 2016
^	 Mr. Ahmed Hassan was appointed effective 10 October 2016
#	 Mr. Jan Damgaard Sorensen ceased to be Director effective 16 September 2016
$ 	 Other Directorships do not include Directorships of Private Limited Companies, Alternate Directorships, Directorships in Section 8 Companies 

and in the Companies incorporated outside India. 
@ Committees refer to Audit Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee only. 

The Company conducts Familiarization Programmes for its Independent Directors on a regular basis. The details of such 
Familiarization Programmes are available on the Company website http://www.pipavav.com/independent_director.php 

The Board of Directors met 4 times during the year ended 31 March 2017 on: 19 May 2016, 11 August 2016, 4 November 2016 
and 1 February 2017. The details on matters mentioned in Part A of Schedule II of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 are provided to the Directors for consideration at the Board Meetings.

Mr. Hassan participated in the Board Meeting through teleconference due to his inability to travel into the country for physically 
attending the Board Meetings. 

Except the sitting fees and Commission paid to Independent Directors and sitting fees to GMB Nominee, the Company does not 
have any pecuniary relationship with the Non- Executive Directors. 

None of the Director holds any shares in the Company. 

Various Committees of the Board of Directors

1.	 Audit Committee 
	 The Audit Committee of the Company is constituted as per Regulation 18 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read with Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Committee comprises 4 Non- 
Executive Directors out of which 3 including the Chairman are Independent.  

	 The Audit Committee held discussions with the Statutory Auditors as well as Internal Auditors regarding the Company’s 
accounts, its internal control systems and reviewed the quarterly reports of Internal Auditor. 

	 The Audit Committee reviewed the information mentioned in Part C of Schedule II of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. Its Terms of Reference inter alia include the following: 

	 ■	 To monitor the integrity of the financial statements of the company, and any formal announcements relating to the 
company’s financial performance

	 ■	 To review the company’s internal financial controls and the company’s internal control and risk management systems
	 ■	 To monitor and review the effectiveness of the company’s internal audit function
	 ■	 To make recommendations to the board, for it to put to the shareholders for their approval in general meeting, in 

relation to the appointment, re-appointment and removal of the external auditor and to approve the remuneration and 
terms of engagement of the external auditor

	 ■	 To review and monitor the external auditors’ independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process, 
taking into considerations relevant professional and regulatory requirements

	 ■	 To develop and implement policy on the engagement of the external auditor to supply non-audit services, taking into 
account the safeguarding of auditor objectivity and independence

	 ■	 The audit committee shall be provided with sufficient resources to undertake its duties and have access to the services 
of the company secretariat on all audit committee matters including: assisting the chairman in planning the audit 
committee’s work, drawing up meeting agendas, maintenance of minutes, drafting of material about its activities, 
collection and distribution of information and provision of any practical support.
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	 ■	 The board shall make necessary funds available to the audit committee to enable it to take independent legal, 
accounting or other advice when the audit committee reasonably believes it necessary to do so.

	 ■	 The audit committee shall hear the views of the external auditors before forwarding the annual accounts to the board 
for approval.

	 ■	 Considering the name of the auditor in context of their independence (particularly with reference to any other non 
audit services), fee and terms of engagement and recommending its name to the board for putting before AGM for 
appointment.

	 ■	 Reviewing the audit plan and results of the audit and as to whether auditors have full access to all relevant documents.
	 ■	 Checking financial fraud particularly fictitious and fraudulent portions of the financial statement.  They should put in 

place an appropriate system to ensure adoption of appropriate accounting policies and principles leading to fairness 
in financial statements.

	 ■	 Oversight of the internal audit function in general and with particular reference to reviewing of scope of internal audit 
plan for the year, reviewing the reports of internal auditors pertaining to critical areas, reviewing the efficacy of internal 
auditing and reviewing as to whether internal auditors have full access to all relevant documents.

	 ■	 Oversight of the adequacy of the internal control system through the regular reports of the internal and external 
auditors.  They may appoint external consultants if the need arose.

	 ■	 Oversight of the financial statements in general and with particular reference to review of annual and quarterly financial 
statements before issue, review of qualifications in the draft financial statements and discussion of accounting 
principles.  In particular, change in accounting principles and accounting estimates in comparison to previous year, 
any adoption of new accounting policy, any departure from Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) and non-compliance 
with disclosure requirements prescribed should be critically reviewed.

	 ■	 Serving as a channel of communication between external auditors and the board and also internal auditors and the 
board.

	 ■	 Reviewing risk management policies and looking into the reasons of defaults in payment obligations of the company 
if any

	 ■	 Reviewing proposed specific transactions with related parties for making suitable recommendations to the board.
	 ■	 While the audit committee has the responsibilities and powers set forth in this manual, it is not the duty of the audit 

committee to plan or conduct audits or to ensure that the company’s financial statements are complete and accurate 
and are in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles.

	 ■	 Management is responsible for the preparation, presentation, and integrity of the company’s financial statements, for 
the appropriateness of the accounting principles and reporting policies that are used by the company. The independent 
auditors are responsible for auditing the company’s financial statements and when requoted, for reviewing the 
company’s un-audited interim financial statements. 

	 The Audit Committee Meeting is attended by the Managing Director, CFO, Statutory Auditors and the Internal Auditors. The 
Company Secretary acts as Secretary of the Committee. The Minutes of Audit Committee Meeting are submitted to the 
Board of Directors for reference. 

	 The details of composition of Audit Committee and the meetings attended by Directors are as follows:

Name Category
No. of Committee Meetings during the 

year ended 31 March 2017

Held Attended

Mr. Pravin Laheri, IAS (Retd), Chairman Non- Executive Independent 4 4

Ms. Hina Shah Non- Executive Independent 4 4

Mr. Jan Damgaard Sorensen* Non- Executive Non- Independent 2 1

Mr. Pradeep Mallick Non- Executive Independent 4 4

Mr. Ahmed Hassan# Non- Executive Non- Independent 2 Nil

*	 Mr. Jan Damgaard Sorensen ceased to be Director effective 16 September 2016
#	 Mr. Ahmed Hassan was appointed effective 10 October 2016
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	 The Members of Audit Committee have requisite financial, legal and management expertise. During the year 4 Audit 
Committee Meetings were held on: 18 May 2016,  10 August 2016, 3 November 2016 and 31 January 2017. The necessary 
quorum was present at the Meetings. 

	 Mr. Hassan participated through teleconference in the meetings due to his inability in traveling into India for physically 
attending the Meetings.  

	 The Chairman of Audit Committee briefs the Board about deliberations of the Audit Committee Meetings. 

2.	 Nomination and Remuneration Committee

	 In view of the requirements under Regulation 19 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 read with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has constituted Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee.  

	 The Committee’s role is as per Part D of Schedule II of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015. The Committee also has its Policy which contains the following: 

	 ■	 Process for the selection and appointment of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel;

	 ■	 Criteria for determining remuneration of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees of the Company;

	 ■	 Board Diversity and criteria for the independence, positive attributes, qualifications and experience of directors;

	 ■	 Training of independent directors; and

	 ■	 Performance evaluation of directors.

	 The composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and details of the Meeting are: 

Name Category
No. of Committee Meetings during the  

year ended 31 March 2017

Held Attended

Mr. Pradeep Mallick, Chairman Non- Executive Independent 3 3

Mr. Tejpreet Singh Chopra Non- Executive Independent 3 3

Mr. Pravin Laheri, IAS (Retd.) Non- Executive Independent 3 3

Mr. Rizwan Soomar Non- Executive Non- Independent 3 3

	 The Nomination and Remuneration Committee held its Meetings on 19 May 2016, 3 November 2016 and 1 February 2017. 

	 The Board has approved the Nomination and Remuneration Committee Policy that provides for Evaluation of Non-Executive 
Directors including Independent Directors. It provides for the Evaluation of Chairman of the Board, Individual Directors and 
the Committees of the Board. Accordingly the Evaluation exercise was carried out internally and was led by the Chairman 
of Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The evaluation process focused on various aspects such as Composition 
of the Board and various Committees, Degree of fulfilment of their responsibilities, Effectiveness of the Board/Committee 
process, information and functioning, Board/Committee Culture and Dynamics, Quality of relationship between the Board/
Committees and Management, Attendance and Contribution by Individual Directors and their Guidance and Support to the 
Management.  

	 The Independent Directors are evaluated on five criteria as follows:

	 (i)	 Ethics and Values
	 (ii)	 Knowledge and Proficiency 
	 (iii)	 Diligence 
	 (iv)	 Behavioural traits; and
	 (v)	 Efforts for Personal Development

	 Remuneration Policy

	 The remuneration payable to the Executive Directors, including the Commission and value of the perquisites, shall not 
exceed the permissible limits as are mentioned within the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. They shall not be entitled to 
any sitting fees. 
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	 The Non-Executive Independent Directors shall be paid sitting fees for attending the meeting of the Board or committees 
thereof and commission, as may be decided by the Board/ Shareholders from time to time.

	 The Non-Executive Non-Independent Directors representing the Promoters shall neither be paid any sitting fees nor any 
commission. 

	 The Non- Executive Non- Independent Director representing Gujarat Maritime Board (GMB) shall be paid sitting fee for 
attending the Board Meetings. 

	 A sitting fee is paid to the Directors at Rs. 100,000 per meeting for Audit Committee Meeting and Board Meeting and Rs. 
50,000 for attending all other Committee Meetings. 

	 Directors Remuneration

Name
Sitting Fees for attending Board and 
Committee Meetings during the year 

ended 31 March 2017
Commission Paid Total amount Paid 

Mr. Tejpreet Singh Chopra, Chairman Rs. 0.60 Mn Rs. 6.00 Mn Rs. 6.60 Mn

Ms. Hina Shah Rs. 0.95 Mn Rs. 3.00 Mn Rs. 3.95 Mn

Mr. Pradeep Mallick Rs. 1.00 Mn Rs. 3.00 Mn Rs. 4.00 Mn

Mr. Pravin Laheri, IAS (Retd.) Rs. 1.10 Mn Rs. 3.00 Mn Rs. 4.10 Mn

	 Managing Director

Name Salary Perquisites & Allowances Performance Bonus Total Amount

Mr. Keld Pedersen Rs. 16.19 Mn Rs. 15.18 Mn Rs. 2.23 Mn Rs. 33.60 Mn

	 The appointment of Mr. Pedersen is for a period of 3 years from 1 May 2015. His terms of appointment were approved by 
the Members by way of a Special Resolution in the AGM held on 30 July 2015. He is not entitled for severance fees as per 
his terms of appointment. The Company does not have a Policy for Stock Options for its employees and has not granted him 
any Stock Options. In case the Company terminates his employment he would be given four month notice and if he wishes 
to prematurely terminate his employment then he would need to observe two month notice period.

3.	 Stakeholders Relationship Committee 

	 The Company has constituted Stakeholders Relationship Committee as per Regulation 20 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. The role of the Committee 
is as specified in Part D of Schedule II of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The 
composition of the Committee and details of the meetings are:

Name Category
No. of Committee Meetings during the  

year ended 31 March 2017

Held Attended

Mr. Pradeep Mallick- Chairman Non-Executive Independent 1 1

Mr. Tejpreet Singh Chopra Non-Executive Independent 1 1

Mr. Keld Pedersen Managing Director 1 1

	 The Committee had its meeting on 1 February 2017. 

	 The details of complaints received, cleared/ pending during the year ended 31 March 2017 are given below:

Nature of Complaint Opening Received Replied Pending

1 Status of applications lodged for Public Issue 0 0 0 0

2 Non-receipt of Dividend 0 9 9 0

3 Non-receipt of Annual Report 0 6 6 0

4 Non-receipt of Refund order 0 0 0 0

5 Non-receipt of Securities 0 2 2 0

6 Non-receipt of Securities after Transfer 0 6 6 0

TOTAL 0 23 23 0
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	 There were no pending requests for share transfer/dematerialisation of shares as of 31st March 2017.

	 The contact details of the Compliance Officer of the Company are:

	 (a)	 Name & Designation of Compliance Officer:	 Mr. Manish Agnihotri, 
			   Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

	 (b)	 Email Id for correspondence:	 manish.agnihotri@apmterminals.com;  
			   investorrelationinppv@apmterminals.com   

4.	 Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee

	 The CSR Committee formed by the Company formulates the policy and recommends to the Board to undertake various 
activities mentioned under Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013. It also meets to review the progress made by the 
Company on various CSR activities. The Company has dedicated human resources for undertaking and monitoring all the 
CSR activities and provide update to the CSR Committee. 

	 The composition of the Committee and details of the meetings are:

Name Category
No. of Committee Meetings during the year  

ended 31 March 2017

Held Attended

Ms. Hina Shah- Chairperson Non-Executive Independent 3 3

Mr. Pravin Laheri, IAS (Retd.) Non-Executive Independent 3 3

Mr. Keld Pedersen Managing Director 3 3

	 The CSR Committee held its meetings on 12 April 2016, 26 October 2016 and 16 January 2017. 

5.	 Risk Management Committee

	 As per Regulation 21 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 Top 100 companies 
based on market capitalization as at the end of immediate previous financial year are required to constitute Risk Management 
Committee. Although not mandatorily required, the Company has voluntarily constituted Risk Management Committee 
comprising the Directors. The Committee reviews the potential risk areas and steps to mitigate those risks. The Minutes of 
the Risk Committee Meeting are presented to the Audit Committee and to the Board. The composition of the Committee and 
details of the meetings are:

Name Category

Mr. Julian Bevis- Chairman Non-Executive Non-Independent

Mr. Keld Pedersen Managing Director

	 Independent Directors’ Meeting

	 The Independent Directors held their meeting on 1 February 2017, inter alia, to discuss and evaluate the performance of 
Non Independent Directors and the Board as a whole, the management and the quality, content and timelines of flow of 
information in order to enable the Board to effectively and reasonably perform its duties. 

	 All Independent Directors attended the meeting. 

	 Code of Conduct: 

	 The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for all employees including Managing Director and for the Non-executive 
Directors. As an annual practice, the Company receives confirmation of compliance of the Code from all its employees and 
from Non-executive Directors. The Code of Conduct for Employees and for Non-executive Directors is available on the 
Company’s website www.pipavav.com/policies.php

	 Whistle Blower Policy – Vigil Mechanism 

	 The Company has a Whistle Blower Policy that provides a formal mechanism for all employees of the Company to make 
disclosure at the designated email id about suspected fraud or unethical behaviour. It also provides a designated phone 
number to directly report an instance. The Policy encourages its employees to immediately raise his/her concern to the 
respective Manager or to Head of HR whenever they notice any contravention with the Company’s Code of Conduct or fraud 
or any unethical behaviour. In case the concerned person is not comfortable in reporting the matter to his/her Manager or 
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to the Manager’s Manager or to the Head of HR, he/she can also report to the Compliance Officer of the parent Company 
APM Terminals. 

	 The policy also provides direct access to the Chairman of Audit Committee through his personal email id.  

	 The Company has also constituted an Internal Complaints Committee as per the provisions of The Sexual Harassment 
of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder for reporting the 
instances related to Sexual Harassment and deal with them in a timely manner. 

	 As part of APM Terminals, the Company shares the distinctive set of the Group’s Core Values that drive the way we do 
business. The Company is committed to adhere to the highest standards of ethical, moral and legal conduct of business 
operations, the Group’s commitment to the UN Global Compact and our commitment to our people, customers and 
communities. 

	 Subsidiary Companies

	 The Company does not have any subsidiary. 

	 Related Party Transactions

	 All transactions entered into with the Related Parties as defined under the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 23 of the 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 during the year ended 31 March 2017 were 
in the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length pricing basis. The details are included in Note 37 to financial 
statements of the Annual Report. These do not attract the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013. All the 
transactions have prior approval of the Audit Committee as per the requirement under the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The related party transaction with Maersk Line A/S in connection with Income 
from Port Operations is a material transaction in terms of the Listing Regulations. The contract was for 3 years period 
from April 2014 to March 2017 and was approved by the shareholders. The contract has been renewed for 3 years from 
1 April 2017 to 31 March 2020 and in accordance with the provisions of Listing Regulations, the Company will be seeking 
shareholders’ approval in the forthcoming AGM. The policy on Related Party Transactions is available on the Company’s 
website. 

6.	 Details of General Meetings

	 Location and time of meetings held during last 3 years

Meeting Date Time Venue

AGM 6 May 2014 2:00 PM Pipavav Port, At Post Ucchaiya via Rajula, Dist Amreli, Gujarat 

AGM 30 July 2015 2:00 PM Pipavav Port, At Post Ucchaiya via Rajula, Dist Amreli, Gujarat 

AGM 11 August 2016 2:00 PM Pipavav Port, At Post Ucchaiya via Rajula, Dist Amreli, Gujarat 

	 All resolutions were passed as follows:

	 (i)	 For the meeting held on 6 May 2014, by a show of hands in the meeting;
	 (ii)	 For the meeting held on 30 July 2015, through remote e-voting facility from Monday 27 July, 2015 at 9:00 AM to 

Wednesday 29 July 2015 at 5:00 PM and later at the venue of the meeting
	 (iii)	 For the meeting held on 11 August 2016, through remote e-voting facility from Monday 8 August 2016 at 9:00 AM to 

Wednesday 10 August 2016 at 5:00 PM and later at the venue of the meeting

	 The details of Special Resolutions passed by show of hands are:

Meeting Special Resolution Passed Summary of the Resolution

AGM on 6 May 2014 Yes Re-appointment of Mr. Prakash Tulsiani as Managing Director and approve 
his Remuneration. 

	 The details of Special Resolutions passed by e-voting facility in the AGM held on 30 July 2015 are:

	 (i)	 Appointment of Mr. Keld Pedersen (DIN:07144184) as Managing Director of the Company and approval of the payment 
of his remuneration 

	 (ii)	 Approval of transactions with Maersk Line A/S
	 (iii)	 Borrowing powers of the Company 
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	 (iv)	 Creation of Charge on the Movable and Immovable Properties of the Company, both present and future, in respect of 
borrowings

	 In the AGM held on 11 August 2016 the matter of Payment of Commission to Independent Directors of the Company was 
approved as a Special Resolution. 

	 No resolutions have been passed by Postal ballot during the year.

7.	 Disclosures

	 (i)	  Strictures and Penalties

		  No strictures or penalties have been imposed on the Company by the Stock Exchanges or by the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (SEBI) or by any statutory authority on any matters related to capital markets during the last 
three years. 

	 (ii)	 Compliance with Accounting Standards

		  The Company has followed the Accounting Standards notified u/s 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 [Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014] in the preparation of its financial statements. The significant accounting policies that have 
been consistently applied are mentioned in the Notes to Financial Statements. 

	 (iii)	 Internal Controls

		  The Company has put in place an internal control framework commensurate to the size of its business and it 
encompasses both robust internal controls, and an efficient and effective internal control monitoring and reporting 
system. The Audit Committee on behalf of the Board reviews the adequacy and integrity of the Company’s internal 
control system.

		  As part of the global policy of APM Terminals, the Audit Questionnaire (AQ) and the Control Manual are the overarching 
framework that sets out the Company’s approach to internal controls.  The Company has been consistently rated 
amongst the top APM Terminals entities within the Portfolio towards the effectiveness and maturity levels of the 
internal control measures commensurate to the size and nature of the business. 

	 (iv) 	 CEO and CFO Certification

		  The CEO and CFO certificate, stating that the financial statements do not contain any untrue statement and represent 
true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and affirmation of Code of Conduct by the Board of Directors and Senior 
Management of the Company  is enclosed as part of the Annual Report. 

	 (v) 	 Share Transfer System

		  The share transfer requests for physical shares are processed and approved within the prescribed time limit of fifteen 
days subject to compliance with all the necessary requirements. 

	 (vi)	 Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any Convertible Instruments, conversion date and likely impact on 
equity

		  The Company has neither issued any such instruments nor are they outstanding during the year under review.

	 (vii)	 Details of Commodity Price Risks and Hedging activities

		  The Company does not have any exposure towards the Commodity price risks and the Hedging activities considering 
the nature of the Company’s business of Port Development and Operations.

	 (viii)	 Compliances under mandatory requirement and non mandatory requirements  

		  The Company does comply with the mandatory requirements mentioned in Schedule II Part A of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. With regards to the Discretionary Requirements 
mentioned in Part E, the Company has adopted the practice of having separate posts of Chairperson and Chief 
Executive Officer. The reporting by Internal Auditors of the Company is directly to the Audit Committee.  

	 (ix)	 Non-compliance of Corporate Governance with reasons

		  There are no instances of Non-compliance of Corporate Governance.
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	 (x) 	 Disclosures of the Compliance with requirements specified in Regulation 17 to 27 and Regulation 46(2)(b) of 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

		  The Company is in compliance with the various requirements specified under Regulation 17 to 27 and Regulation 
46(2)(b)to(i) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

	 (xi)	 Details of Directors to be re-appointed
		  Pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Julian Bevis (DIN:00146000) is liable to 

retire by rotation at the ensuing AGM and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. Your Board of Directors 
recommend his re-appointment.

		  Mr. David Skov (DIN:07810539) and Mr. Jan Damgaard Sorensen (DIN: 06408939) are appointed as Additional 
Directors in the Board Meeting held on 11 May 2017. They shall cease to hold office of Director at the AGM and are 
proposed to be appointed as Directors of the Company. Your Board of Directors recommend their Appointment as 
Director of the Company liable to retire by rotation. 

	 (xii)	 Disclosure of Demat Suspense Account / Unclaimed Suspense Account and Undelivered Share Certificates 
as per Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

		  The Company does not have any demat Suspense Account/ Unclaimed Suspense Account. The Company is also not 
holding any undelivered share certificates. 

8.	 Means of Communication

	 The Company submits its Quarterly Results to the Stock Exchanges and publishes them in the newspapers in all editions 
of Financial Express in English and in Awadh Times in Gujarati. The results are also displayed on the Company’s Website 
www.pipavav.com/quarterlyResults.php

	 The Company arranges conference calls after the quarterly results and meets the institutional investors/ analysts from time 
to time. The presentation made during the conference calls is submitted to the Stock Exchanges and is displayed on the 
Company’s website www.pipavav.com/quarterlyPresentation.php  The transcript of the conference calls is also displayed on 
the Company’s website www.pipavav.com/conferenceCallTranscripts.php 

	 There aren’t any separate Presentation made to the Institutional Investors/ Analysts except those submitted to the Exchange 
and displayed on the Company Website www.pipavav.com 

9.	 Secretarial Audit for Reconciliation of Capital

	 A Practicing Company Secretary has carried out Secretarial Audit to reconcile the total admitted capital with NSDL and 
CDSL and in physical form and the total issued and listed capital. The audit confirms that the total issued/ paid up capital is 
in agreement with the aggregate of total number of shares in physical form and the total number of shares in dematerialised 
form held with the two depositories namely NSDL and CDSL. 

	 General Shareholder Information

Annual General Meeting

Date and Time Thursday 10 August 2017 at 2.00 P. M. 

Venue Pipavav Port, At Post Ramapra-2 via Rajula

Date of book closure Friday 4 August 2017 to Thursday 10 August 2017  
(both days inclusive) 

Listing on Stock Exchanges BSE Limited 
Floor 14, P J Towers,
Dalal Street, Mumbai 400 001
The National Stock Exchange of India Limited
Exchange Plaza,  Bandra Kurla Complex, 
Bandra (East), Mumbai 400 051

Dividend Payment Date On or after 11 August 2017

Financial Year 1 April 2016- 31 March 2017

	 The Company has only Equity Shares listed on the Stock Exchanges and they were not suspended from trading by the 
Stock Exchanges during the year. 
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	 Stock Code:

Stock Exchange Equity

BSE 533248

NSE GPPL

	 Status of Payment of Annual listing fees

	 The Company has paid all its dues till date towards Annual Listing Fees to both the Stock Exchanges. 

	 Market Information:

	 The monthly high and low prices of your Company’s shares at BSE and NSE for the year ended 31 March 2017  are given 
as follows:

BSE NSE

High (Rs) Low (Rs) High (Rs) Low (Rs)

Apr-2016 185.45 166.30 187.80 166.00

May-2016 173.65 153.40 173.15 153.10

June-2016 169.70 152.55 169.80 152.20

July-2016 195.00 160.00 194.90 161.65

Aug-2016 183.90 163.50 184.10 165.00

Sep-2016 197.35 168.60 197.80 168.05

Oct-2016 191.50 161.50 192.00 161.60

Nov-2016 173.95 128.85 174.95 128.50

Dec-2016 153.00 121.20 148.70 121.00

Jan- 2017 143.80 128.60 143.90 128.85

Feb- 2017 169.95 139.25 170.30 138.95

Mar- 2017 170.90 151.80 172.00 151.20

	 High and low are in rupees per traded share. 

Comparative Chart of Share price during the financial year
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	 Distribution of Shareholder holdings:

	 The distribution pattern of shareholding of your Company as on 31 March, 2017 by ownership and size, class, respectively, 
is as follows:

  31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16

No. of Equity Shares Shares Held (%) No. of Equity Shares Shares Held (%)

A Promoter and Promoter Group        

Bodies Corporate 207,903,931 43.01% 207,903,931 43.01%

Total A: 207,903,931 43.01% 207,903,931 43.01%

B Public Shareholding    

  Foreign Institutional Investors 178,461,630 36.91 192,772,138 39.88

Mutual Funds /UTI 59,136,533 12.23 45,772,210 9.47

  Bodies Corporate 8,671,216 1.79 9,350,692 1.93

  Financial Institutions/ NBFCs/ 
Banks/Venture Capital Funds

5,371,340 1.12 5,401,492 1.12

  Individuals

  (i)	 Individuals holding nominal 
share capital upto Rs. 2 
lakh 

16,240,175 3.36 15,791,282 3.27

  (ii)	 Individuals holding nominal 
share capital in excess of 
Rs. 2 lakh 

3,920,801 0.81 4,279,446 0.89

  Trusts 12,400 0.00 10,900 0.00

  Non-Resident Indians 1,341,506 0.28 1,242,183 0.26

  Clearing Members 2,377,378 0.49 909,511 0.19

Foreign Nationals 3000 0.00 6,125 0.00

  Total B : 275,535,979 56.99% 275,535,979 56.99%

  GRAND TOTAL (A+B) : 483,439,910 100.00% 483,439,910 100.00%

Registrar & Share Transfer Agents:

Karvy Computershare Private Limited
Karvy Selenium Tower B, Plot 31-32,
Gachibowli, Financial District, Nanakramguda, Hyderabad- 500032

The company’s shares are held in dematerialised form with NSDL and CDSL to the extent of 99.85% and 0.15% in physical form 
as of 31 March 2017. 

The shares are regularly traded in electronic form on both the Stock Exchanges. 

Location of the Facility

The Company operates Pipavav Port located on Southwest Coast in Saurashtra Region of Gujarat at about 140 kms from 
Bhavnagar the nearest main Railway Station and at 80 kms from Diu the nearest Airport. 

Address for correspondence: 	 Gujarat Pipavav Port Limited 
	 301, Trade Centre, Bandra Kurla Complex,
	 Bandra (East),
	 Mumbai- 400 098
	 Tel: 022- 300 11 300
	 Fax: 022- 300 11 333
	 Email: manish.agnihotri@apmterminals.com 
	           investorrelationinppv@apmterminals.com
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Auditors’ Certificate regarding compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance 

To the Members of Gujarat Pipavav Port Limited

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Gujarat Pipavav Port Limited, for the year ended 
31 March 2017 as stipulated in Regulations 17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24, 25, 26, 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) 
of regulation 46 and para C , D and E of Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (collectively referred to as “SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015). 

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our examination 
was carried out in accordance with the Guidance Note on Certification of Corporate Governance, issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India and was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring 
the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial 
statements of the Company. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that the Company has 
complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015.

We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness 
with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

	 For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
	 Firm Registration Number: 012754N/ N-500016
	 Chartered Accountants
						    
						    
						    
	 Priyanshu Gundana 
Ahmedabad	 Partner
11 May 2017	 Membership Number 109553
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	 Section A: General Information about the Company

1. Corporate Identity Number (CIN) L63010GJ1992PLC018106

2. Name of the Company Gujarat Pipavav Port Limited

3. Registered address Pipavav Port, At Post Rampara 2, via Rajula, District Amreli 365560

4. Website www.pipavav.com 

5. Email id investorrelationinppv@apmterminals.com 

6. Financial year reported 2016-17 (for the year ended 31st March, 2017)

7. Sector(s) that the Company is engaged in (industrial 
activity code-wise)

5224 Cargo Handling (as per the NIC Code)

8. List three  key  products / services that the Company 
manufactures/ provides (as in balance sheet)

52242 Cargo handling incidental to Water Transport
The Company has only one activity namely Port Operations

9. Total number of locations where business activity is 
undertaken by the Company 

Number of international locations (Provide details of 
major five) Number of national locations

The Company has its offices at 6 locations:
Registered Office at Pipavav 
Corporate Office at Mumbai
Sales Offices at Ahmedabad, Delhi, Indore & Jaipur

International - Nil
National - 6 locations

10. Markets served by the Company - Local / State / Na-
tional / International

Local

	 Section B: Financial Details of the Company- As on 31.03.2017

1. Paid up Capital of the Company Rs. 4,834.39 Million

2. Total turnover Rs. 6,831.04 Million

3. Total profit after tax Rs. 2,499.12 Million

4. Total spending on Corporate Social Responsibility 
(CSR) as percentage of profit after tax (%):

Rs. 40.4 Million (1.62%)

5. List of activities in which expenditure in four above was 
incurred:

•	 Supply of Education Material, Upgradation of school infrastructure
•	 Organising Health Camps, Provide Bio Gas units,  Safety & 

Environment awareness courses
•	 Conducting Skill Development for women
•	 Animal Husbandry Development Programme, Construction of 

sanitation units, Providing clean drinking water 

	 Section C: Other Details

1. Does the Company have any Subsidiary Company / 
Companies?

None

2. Does the subsidiary Company / Companies participate 
in the BR initiatives of the parent Company? If yes, then 
indicate the number of such subsidiary company(s).

Not Applicable

3. Does any other entity / entities (e.g. suppliers, 
distributors etc.), that the Company does business 
with, participate in the BR initiatives of the Company? 
If yes, then indicate the percentage of such entity/ 
entities? [Less than 30%, 30-60%, More than 60%]

None
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	 Section D: BR Information

1. Details of Director / Directors responsible for BR

a) Details of the Director / Directors responsible for the 
implementation of the BR policy / policies

Mr. Keld Pedersen, Managing Director
DIN: 07144184
Tel: 022 30011300

b) Details of the BR head: The Executive Management of the CSR activities is carried out by 
the Head of HR, CSR & Admin and her details are as follows:

DIN NA

Name Ms. Harsha Mashelkar

Designation Head- HR, Admin & CSR

Telephone No. 02794 302560

E-mail ID harsha.mashelkar@apmterminals.com 

1.	 Principle-wise (as per NVGs) BR Policy / policies (Reply in Y / N)
	 The National Voluntary Guidelines (NVGs) on Social, Environmental and Economic Responsibilities of Business released by the Ministry of 

Corporate Affairs has adopted nine areas of Business Responsibility:

Principle 1 P1 Businesses should conduct and govern themselves with Ethics, Transparency and Accountability

Principle 2 P2 Businesses should provide goods and services that are safe, and contribute to sustainability throughout their life cycle

Principle 3 P3 Businesses should promote the wellbeing of all employees	

Principle 4 P4 Businesses should respect the interests of, and be responsive towards all stakeholders, especially those who are 
disadvantaged, vulnerable and marginalised

Principle 5 P5 Businesses should respect and promote human rights

Principle 6 P6 Businesses should respect, protect and make efforts to restore the environment

Principle 7 P7 Businesses, when engaged in influencing public and regulatory policy, should do so in a responsible manner	

Principle 8 P8 Businesses should support inclusive growth and equitable development

Principle 9 P9 Businesses should engage with and provide value to their customers and consumers in a responsible manner

P1 P2 P3 P4 P5 P6 P7 P8 P9

1. Do you have a policy/ policies for Principle 1 to 9 
listed above

Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

2. Has the policy been formulated in consultation with 
the relevant stakeholders?

Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

3. Does the policy conform to national / international 
standards? If yes, specify? 

Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

4. Has the policy been approved by the Board? If 
yes, has it been signed by the MD / Owner / CEO 
appropriate Board Director? 

Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

5. Does the Company have a specified committee of 
the Board/ Director / Official to oversee the
 implementation of the policy?

Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

6. Indicate the link to view the policy online? Y
Note 2 
below

Y
Note 2 
below 

Y 
Note 2 
below

Y
Note 2 
below

Y 
Note 2 
below

Y 
Note 2 
below

Y 
Note 2 
below

Y 
Note 2 
below

Y 
Note 2 
below

7. Has the policy been formally communicated to all 
relevant internal and external stakeholders?

Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

8. Does the Company have in-house structure to 
implement its policy / policies? 

Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
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9. Does the Company have a grievance redressal 
mechanism related to the policy / policies to 
address stakeholders’ grievances related to the 
policy/ policies?

Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

10. Has the Company carried out independent audit/
evaluation of the working of this policy by an internal 
or external agency?

Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

	 Notes

	 1.	 As per company practice, all the policies are approved by the concerned authority depending upon the nature of policy. The concerned 
authority could be either Board or MD or concerned Functional Head. 

	 2.	 The Company’s Code of Conduct, CSR Policy and Whistleblower Policy are available on website of the Company. The documents can be 
accessed on www.pipavav.com 

	 3.	 Any grievance relating to any of the policy can be escalated to the concerned Functional Head or to MD 

1.	 If answer to question at Sr. No. 1 against any principle, is ‘No’, please explain why? (Tick up to two options)

P1 P2 P3 P4 P5 P6 P7 P8 P9

1. The Company has not understood the Principles -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- --

2. The Company is not at a stage where it finds itself in 
a position to  formulate and implement the policies on 
specified Principles

-- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- --

3. The Company does not have financial or manpower 
resources available for the task

-- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- --

4. It is planned to be done within next six months -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- --

5. It is planned to be done within next one year -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- --

6. Any other reason (please specify) -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- --

2.	 Governance related to BR

1. Indicate the frequency with which the Board of Directors, 
Committee of the Board or the CEO assess the BR performance 
of the Company. Within 3 months, 3-6 months, annually, more 
than 1 year

The Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee meets 
at least two times in the year to review the progress on various 
initiatives. The progress of CSR and other BR initiatives are 
discussed in every Board Meeting. The CSR Committee Report 
forms part of the Director’s Report in the Company’s Annual 
Report. 

2. Does the Company publish a BR or a Sustainability Report? 
What is the hyperlink for viewing the report? How frequently it is 
published?

This is the first year for the requirement to publish the Business 
Responsbility Report becoming applicable to the Company. It will 
be published annually. 

The Company’s Sustainability initiatives are available on 
http://www.pipavav.com/sustainability.php  
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	 Section E:  Principle wise Performance

	 Principle 1: Ethics, Transparency and Accountability

	 Businesses should conduct and govern themselves with Ethics, Transparency and Accountability

1. Does the policy relating to ethics, bribery and 
corruption cover only the Company? Yes / No. Does 
it extend to the Group / Joint Ventures / Suppliers / 
Contractors /NGOs / Others?

The Company is committed to adhere to the highest level of ethical business 
practices as articulated by its Code of Conduct to achieve its performance 
with integrity by all its employees and is in line with the global practices of 
the parent Company. The Company conducts regular workshops for its 
employees on Compliance and the Code of Conduct. 
The Company also has a separate Code of Conduct for its Non-Executive 
Directors. 
The Company’s policy pertaining to ethics, bribery and corruption extends 
to all its vendors, suppliers, contractors and service providers by way of 
including the relevant clauses in their agreements. 

2. How many stakeholder complaints were received 
in the past financial year and what percentage was 
satisfactorily resolved by the management? If so, 
provide details thereof in about 50 words or so.

There were 23 complaints received from the investors during the financial 
year 1st April 2016 to 31 March, 2017. All these complaints were properly 
attended and necessary actions were taken for their redressal. 

	 Principle 2: Product Lifecycle Sustainability

	 Businesses should provide goods and services that are safe and contribute to sustainability throughout their life cycle

1. List three of your products or services whose 
design has incorporated social or environmental 
concerns, risks and / or opportunities

The Company is engaged in the service activity of operating the Port at Pipavav in 
Gujarat.  Commensurate to its size of business and nature of activity being carried 
out at the Port, the Company has a full-fledged Department of Health, Safety, 
Security & Environment (HSSE) headed by a General Manager. The responsibility 
of this department is to ensure safe and secure operations 24x7 and 365 days 
at the Port by formulating and implementing the Standard Operating Procedures 
(SOPs) in line with the global best practices and knowledge sharing amongst 76 
terminals within the portfolio of the parent company APM Terminals. The Company 
as a responsible corporate citizen is also committed to fulfill all the Environment 
related compliances in a timely manner. 

2. For each such product, provide the following 
details in respect of resource use (energy, water, 
raw material and so on) per unit of product 
(optional)

Some of the key activities are: 
•	 Conversion of 18 Rubber Tyre Gantry Cranes from Diesel to Electric 
•	 Purchased 2 new Rubber Tyre Gantry Cranes operating on Electric
•	 Replacement of 2782 High Voltage Sodium Vapor Lamps with LED lights inside 

the Port premises resulting into energy savings of over 50%
•	 Over 7000 saplings planted in the Port
•	 100% utilization of treated domestic waste water used for development of the 

Green belt and reducing the requirement for fresh water
•	 Over 600 hectares of mangrove planation carried out in the coastal areas of 

Surat and Bharuch 
•	 Best practices in handling bulk cargo implemented to prevent spillage and 

protecting the marine life
•	 Regular monitoring and protection of ambient air quality is carried out

3. Does the Company have procedures in place for 
sustainable sourcing (including transportation)? 
If yes, what percentage of your inputs was 
sourced sustainably? Also provide details 
thereof, in about 50 words or so

Yes. The Company’s sourcing practices are targeted at seeking cost 
optimization ensuring environment sustainability, societal interest and resource 
efficiency. The criteria used for selection of suppliers/ vendors go beyond 
cost relevance and include resource efficiency, product quality and lifecycle, 
environment impact, etc. Company gives preference in selection of vendors 
which comply with the various principles of sustainability. At the time of award of 
contract to vendors, various clauses are incorporated in the contract document 
related to health and safety, human resource practices, work environment, etc. 
Engagement of transporters is done based on conditions like deploying newer 
vehicles, drivers to carry PUC certificates, drivers and support staff to always 
carry safety jackets, helmets, driving license. The Port follows stringent Safety 
rules for the Drivers. They have to compulsorily undergo Refresher Safety 
training course every six months before entering into the Port. 
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4. Has the Company taken any steps to procure 
goods and services from local and small 
producers, including communities surrounding 
their place of work? If yes, what initiatives were 
taken to improve their capacity and capability of 
local and small vendors?

The Company is engaged in the business of operating a Port at Pipavav located 
in Gujarat. Depending upon the nature of product/ service requirement and its 
availability locally, the Company does procure them locally. 

The Company also engages the local workforce in employment. The skillful 
job of operating the cranes in the Port is carried out by the locals from Gujarat 
comprising about 80% of the crane operators in the Company.

5. Does the Company have a mechanism to 
recycle products and waste? If yes, what is 
the percentage of recycling them (separately 
as <5%, 5-10%, >10%)? Also provide details 
thereof, in about 50 words or so

The HSSE Department of the Company has Standard Operating Procedures  
for re-cycling of products or their disposal in an environment friendly manner. 
The details are as follows:
-	 Recycle/re-processing of Hazardous wastes  : >10 %
-	 Recycle/reuse of non  hazardous wastes : 5-10 %
-	 Recovery of hazardous and non hazardous wastes : <5 %
The hazardous waste is collected and stored in dedicated storage area and is 
sold only to Authorized recyclers & Re processors.
The non-hazardous waste i.e. plastic, papers, wood wastes, ferrous & 
nonferrous  wastes, too is sold only to authorised Recyclers.
The Port is processing garbage and few hazardous wastes in nearby Cement 
Factory and it is used by the factory as fuel.
The Port also has dedicated Waste Management Cell which is responsible for 
segregation of all waste at source, its storage, recovery and recycle for reuse of 
waste in order to reduce the quantity of waste for final disposal.

	 Principle 3: Employee Wellbeing

	 Businesses should promote the wellbeing of all employees

1. Total number of employees. As on 31 March 2017, the Company has 503 employees. 

2. Total number of employees hired on temporary / con-
tractual / casual basis

Nil

3. Total number of permanent women employees 15

4. Total number of permanent employees with disabilities 1

5. Do you have an employee association that is recog-
nized by the Management?

Yes

6. What percentage of your permanent employees are 
members of this recognised employee association?

Around 58%

7. Please indicate the number of complaints relating to 
child labour, forced labour, involuntary labour, sexual 
harassment in the last financial year and pending, as 
on the end of the financial year

Nil

8. What percentage of your under-mentioned employees 
that were given safety and skill up-gradation training 
in the last year? Category %

Permanent employees (includes classroom and e-learning) 100

Permanent women employees 100

Casual / temporary / contractual employees 100

Employees with disabilities 100
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	 Principle 4: Stakeholder Engagement

	 Businesses should respect the interests of, and be responsive towards all stakeholders, especially those who are 
disadvantaged, vulnerable and marginalised

1. Has the Company mapped its internal and external 
stakeholders? Yes / No

Yes, the Company actively engages with its stakeholders as per the details 
below: 
•	 The parent Company APM Terminals carries out a global exercise of 

Customer Satisfaction Survey annually for all its 76 ports including 
Pipavav Port wherein the customers of these ports participate to provide 
their ratings. The entire exercise is administered by an external agency. 
The Company has consistently achieved high scores and has maintained 
its position amongst the Top Quartile in these Customer Satisfaction 
Surveys;   

•	 The engagement with Investors is through Earnings Call conducted every 
quarter and Attending Investor Conferences;

•	 The Procurement process is done in a fair and transparent manner through 
E-bidding process conducted by the Global Procurement Department of 
the parent with the vendors/ suppliers;

•	 Town hall meetings are regularly conducted with employees
•	 Engagement with Government authorities is done in transparent manner 

and in compliance with the local laws through duly authorized company 
officials  

•	 Engagement in the Industry forum is done through the Company’s 
authorized representatives 

•	 Engagement with the local community at large including the disadvantaged 
groups and vulnerable sections like children / women is done directly or 
through NGOs in order to determine the necessities of local community 
and developing CSR activities around them 

2. Out of the above, has the Company identified 
the disadvantaged, vulnerable and marginalized 
stakeholders?

The Company  has identified the disadvantaged and economically weaker 
sections and is carrying out either directly or through specialized NGOs the 
social development projects for  them especially for the women and children 
as part of CSR initiatives. 

3. Are there any special initiatives   undertaken   by 
the Company to engage with the disadvantaged, 
vulnerable and marginalised stakeholders?

Company’s initiatives have been to bring meaningful difference in the lives 
of the disadvantaged, marginalized, weaker sections through activities 
in healthcare, skill development, education, sanitation, providing safe 
drinking water, women empowerment. The Company officials engage with 
local community to address their needs and for planning, coordinating the 
CSR activities in order to provide meaningful change in their day to day 
lives.

	 Principle 5: Human Rights

	 Businesses should respect and promote human rights

1. Does the policy of the Company on human rights 
cover only the Company or extend to the Group / Joint 
Ventures / Suppliers / Contractors / NGOs / Others?

The Company through its Code of Conduct expects all  its employees to 
endevour that we do not carry out any activities that the violate human rights. 
It also encourages to raise the concern in case they see any human rights 
violation.

2. How many stakeholder complaints were received 
in the past financial year and what percent was 
satisfactorily resolved by the Management?

None
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	 Principle 6: Environmental Management

	 Businesses should respect, protect, and make efforts to restore the environment

1. Does the policies related to Principle 6 cover only the 
Company or extends to the Group / Joint Ventures / 
Suppliers / Contractors / NGOs / Others?

As part of the global imitative by APM Terminals to design, develop, operate 
and maintain the most environmentally sensitive and advanced facilities, 
the Port’s initiatives are aimed at reducing dependency on diesel as a fuel, 
developing low carbon solutions and exploring carbon  neutral options. 

Some of the key initiatives carried out are storage of Coal in the Environment 
friendly Coal yard having wind and water curtains to reduce coal dust, 
Improvements in handling bulk cargo to prevent spillage, Mangrove Plantation 
to protect the coastline, Water Re-cycling, Plantation for development of 
green belt, Rain water harvesting, Sewage Treatment Plant, Segregation, 
Recycle and Reuse of Waste, Conversion of cranes from diesel to electric 
and Replacement of Sodium Vapor Lamps with LED lights.

The Company encourages its vendors, suppliers, contractors, etc. to 
follow its principles envisaged in the policy by making them part of the 
Vendor contracts.

2. Does the Company have strategies / initiatives to 
address global environmental issues, such as climate 
change, global warming, and others? If yes, please 
give hyperlink for webpage etc.

The initiatives being carried out are mentioned in 1 above. The hyperlink on 
the website is
http://www.pipavav.com/sustainability.php

3. Does the Company identify and assess potential 
environmental risks? Y / N

Yes 

4. Project(s) related to Clean Development Mechanism The projects are mentioned in this section in 1 above. 

5. Has the Company undertaken any other initiatives on 
clean technology, energy efficiency, renewable energy 
and so on? If yes, please give hyperlink to web page 
and others.

As mentioned in this section in 1 above. 

6. Are the emissions / waste generated by the Company 
within the permissible limits given by CPCB / SPCB for 
the financial year being reported?

Emissions / wastes generated by the Company are within permissible limits. 
The Company has dedicated Waste Management Cell which is responsible 
for segregation of all waste at source, its storage, recovery and recycle for 
reuse of waste in order to reduce the quantity of waste for final disposal. 
The Company regularly submits reports on emission levels to Gujarat 
Pollution Control Board (GPCB).

7. Number of show cause / legal notices received from 
CPCB / SPCB, which are pending (i.e. not resolved to 
satisfaction) as on the end of the financial year

None

	 Principle 7: Public Advocacy

	 Businesses, when engaged in influencing public and regulatory policy, should do so in a responsible manner

1. Does   the   Company   represent   in   any trade   and 
chambers/ association? If yes, name only those major 
ones that the Company deals with

The Company is a member of the Confederation of Indian Industry (CII)

2. Has the Company advocated / lobbied through 
the above associations for the advancement or 
improvement of public good? If yes, specify the broad 
areas (drop box: governance and administration, 
economic reforms, inclusive development polices, 
energy security, water, food security, sustainable 
business principles and others)

The Company through its authorized representative participates to provide 
its inputs. 
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	 Principle 8: Inclusive Growth

	 Businesses should support inclusive growth and equitable development

1. Does the Company have specified programmes / 
initiatives / projects in pursuit of the policy related to 
Principle 8? If yes, provide details thereof

As a part of its CSR initiatives, the Company either directly or through NGOs 
specializing in activities has carried out projects in Education, Sanitation, Skill 
development for Women and projects for Rural Development as mentioned 
in B5 above.  

2. Are the programmes / projects undertaken through 
in-house team / own foundation / external NGO / 
government structures / any other organisation?

The projects are undertaken through the internal teams as well as through 
external agencies like NGOs.

3. Has the Company done any impact assessment for 
its initiative?

Impact assessment study is conducted for the CSR initiatives implemented. 
Based on findings from the study, the Company carries out appropriate 
intervention.

4. What is the Company’s direct   contribution   to 
community development projects (Amount in? and the 
details of the projects undertaken)?

Rs. 40.4 Million. The details of the amount incurred and areas covered are 
given in Annexure to the report on Corporate Social Responsibility forming 
part of Directors’ Report.

5. Has the Company taken steps to ensure that this 
community development initiative   is   successfully 
adopted by the community? Please explain in around 
50 words

Yes. The Company engages with the local community to understand their 
requirements and by carrying out the Need Assessment Survey. The CSR 
initiatives are carried out based on the findings from the Survey to ensure that 
the activities are adopted by them resulting into a meaningful contribution to 
the society.

	 Principle 9: Value for Customers

	 Businesses should engage with and provide value to their customers and consumers in a responsible manner

1. What percentage of customer complaints / consumer 
cases is pending, as on the end of the financial year?

Nil

2. Does the Company display product information on the 
product label, over and above what is mandated as 
per local   laws? Yes / No / N.A. / Remarks (additional 
information)

Not applicable

3. Cases filed by any stakeholder against the Company 
regarding unfair trade    practices, irresponsible 
advertising and / or anti-competitive behaviour during 
the last five years and pending as on the end of the 
financial year. If yes, provide details thereof, in about 
50 words or so

Nil 

4. Did the Company carry out any consumer survey / 
consumer satisfaction trends?

The parent Company APM Terminals carries out a global exercise of 
Customer Satisfaction Survey annually for all its 76 ports including Pipavav 
Port wherein the customers of these ports participate to provide their ratings. 
The entire exercise is administered by an external agency. The Company has 
consistently achieved high scores and has maintained its position amongst 
the Top Quartile in these Customer Satisfaction Surveys.
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CERTIFICATION BY CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER OF THE COMPANY
We, Keld Pedersen, Managing Director and Hariharan Iyer, Chief Financial Officer, of Gujarat Pipavav Port Limited (the Company), 
certify to the Board that:

A.	 We have reviewed the financial statements and cash flow statement for the year ended 31st March 2017 and to the best of 
our knowledge and belief:

	 1.	 these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that 
might be misleading;

	 2.	 these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with existing 
Accounting Standards, applicable laws and regulations.

B.	 To the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year ended 31st March 2017 
are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s Code of Conduct.

C.	 We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and we have evaluated 
the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting. Deficiencies in the design 
or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware have been disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit 
Committee and steps have been taken to rectify these deficiencies.

D. 	 We further state that:

	 1.	 There has not been any significant change in internal control over financial reporting during the year;

	 2. 	 There has not been any significant change in accounting policies during the year requiring disclosure in the notes to 
the financial statements; and 

	 3.	 We are not aware of any instance during the year of significant fraud with involvement of the management or an 
employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal control system over financial reporting.

E. 	 We further declare that all Board Members and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with Code of 
Conduct and Ethics for the year ended 31st March 2017.

		  Hariharan Iyer	 Keld Pedersen
	 	 Chief Financial Officer	 Managing Director
			   DIN: 07144184

Place: Mumbai
Date:	11th May 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
To the Members of Gujarat Pipavav Port Limited

Report on the Standalone Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) Financial Statements

1.	 We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of Gujarat Pipavav Port Limited (“the Company”), 
which comprise of the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2017, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive 
Income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of the 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements
2.	 The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 

(“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial statements to give a true and fair view of 
the financial position, financial performance (including other comprehensive income), cash flows and changes in equity 
of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting 
Standards specified in the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) under Section 133 of the 
Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the 
Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection 
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring 
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone 
Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error.

Auditors’ Responsibility
3.	 Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone Ind AS financial statements based on our audit.

4.	 We have taken into account the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder including the accounting and auditing 
standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules 
made thereunder.

5.	 We conducted our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified 
under Section 143(10) of the Act and other applicable authoritative pronouncements issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. Those Standards and pronouncements require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements are free from 
material misstatement.

6.	 An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the standalone 
Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In 
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation 
of the standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view, in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used 
and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements.

7.	 We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on 
the standalone Ind AS financial statements.

Opinion
8.	 In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone Ind 

AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 
2017, and its profit (including other comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on 
that date.

Other Matters
9.	 a)	 The transition date opening balance sheet as at 1 April 2015 included in these standalone Ind AS financial statements, 

are based on the previously issued statutory standalone financial statements as at 31 March 2015 and for the fifteen 
months period then ended prepared in accordance with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as 
amended) which were audited by the predecessor auditors, who expressed an unmodified opinion vide their report 
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dated 28 May 2015. The adjustments to those standalone financial statements for the differences in accounting 
principles adopted by the Company on transition to the Ind AS have been audited by us. 

	 b)	 The standalone Ind AS financial information of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2016 included in these 
standalone Ind AS financial statements, are based on the previously issued statutory standalone financial statements 
as at and for the year ended 31 March 2016 prepared in accordance with the Companies (Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2006 (as amended) which were audited by us, on which we expressed an unmodified opinion dated 19 May 
2016. The adjustments to those standalone financial statements for the differences in accounting principles adopted 
by the Company on transition to the Ind AS have been audited by us.

		  Our opinion is not qualified in respect of the above matters.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

10.	 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016, issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-
section (11) of section 143 of the Act (“the Order”), and on the basis of such checks of the books and records of the Company 
as we considered appropriate and according to the information and explanations given to us, we give in the Annexure B a 
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

11.	 As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:
	 (a)	 We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 

necessary for the purposes of our audit.
	 (b)	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from 

our examination of those books.
	 (c)	 The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the Cash Flow 

Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of 
account.

	 (d)	 In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards 
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

	 (e)	 On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2017 taken on record by the 
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2017 from being appointed as a director in 
terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

	 (f)	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in Annexure A.

	 (g)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the 
information and explanations given to us:

		  i.	 The Company has disclosed the impact, of pending litigations as at 31 March 2017 on its financial position in its 
standalone Ind AS financial statements – Refer Note 33;

		  ii.	 The Company has long-term contracts as at 31 March 2017 for which there were no material foreseeable losses. 
The Company did not have any derivative contracts as at 31 March 2017.

		  iii.	 There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by 
the Company during the year ended 31 March 2017.

		  iv.	 The Company has provided requisite disclosures in its standalone Ind AS financial statements as to holdings as 
well as dealings in Specified Bank Notes during the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016 and 
based on audit procedures and relying on the management representation, we report that the disclosures are 
in accordance with books of account maintained by the Company and as produced to us by the Management – 
Refer Note 40.

		  For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
		  Firm Registration Number: 012754N/ N-500016
		  Chartered Accountants
						    
		  Priyanshu Gundana 
Ahmedabad	 Partner
11 May 2017	 Membership Number 109553
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Annexure A to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 11(f) of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Gujarat Pipavav Port Limited 
on the standalone Ind AS financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2017

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

1.	 We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Gujarat Pipavav Port Limited (“the Company”) as of 
31 March 2017 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended 
on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2.	 The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal 
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including 
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required 
under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3.	 Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our 
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act to 
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and both 
issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting 
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

4.	 Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial 
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a 
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the 
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5.	 We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on 
the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

6.	 A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Ind AS financial statements for external purposes in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting 
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately 
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Ind AS financial statements in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with 
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or 
timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on 
the Ind AS financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

7.	 Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion 
or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. 
Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the 
risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or 
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion

8.	 In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March 2017, based 
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

	 	 For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
		  Firm Registration Number: 012754N/ N-500016
		  Chartered Accountants
						    
		  Priyanshu Gundana 
Ahmedabad	 Partner
11 May 2017	 Membership Number 109553
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Annexure B to Independent Auditors’ Report
Referred to in paragraph [10] of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Gujarat Pipavav Port Limited 
on the standalone Ind AS financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2017. 

i. 	 (a)	 The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation, of 
fixed assets.

	 (b)	 The fixed assets are physically verified by the Management according to a phased programme designed to cover all 
the items over a period of 3 years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and 
the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the programme, a portion of the fixed assets has been physically verified by the 
Management during the year and no material discrepancies have been noticed on such verification. 

	 (c)	 The title deeds of immovable properties, other than self constructed properties, as disclosed in Property Plant and 
Equipment Note 3(a) to the Ind AS financial statements, are held in the name of the Company, except for a free hold 
land of gross and net book value of Rs. 1.47 million registered in the name of Associate Company - Pipavav Railway 
Corporation Limited.

ii.	 The physical verification of inventory have been conducted at reasonable intervals by the Management during the year. The 
discrepancies noticed on physical verification of inventory as compared to book records were not material.

iii.	 The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other 
parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(iii)(a), (iii)(b) 
and (iii)(c) of the said Order are not applicable to the Company.

iv. 	 The Company has not granted any loans or made any investments, or provided any guarantees or security to the parties 
covered under Section 185 and 186. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(iv) of the said Order are not applicable to the 
Company. 

v.	 The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act 
and the Rules framed there under to the extent notified.

vi.	 The Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of 
the Act for any of the products of the Company.

vii. 	 (a)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us, in our 
opinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues in respect of professional tax, 
provident fund, income tax, service tax, value added tax and cess though there has been a slight delay in a few cases, 
and is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including duty of customs, duty of excise, and other material 
statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities.

	 (b)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us, there are 
no dues of sales-tax, duty of customs, duty of excise and value added tax which have not been deposited on account 
of any dispute. The particulars of dues of service tax and income tax as at 31 March 2017 which have not been 
deposited on account of a dispute, are as follows:

Name of the statute Nature of dues
Amount

(Rs in million)

Period to which the amount 
relates

(Financial year)

Forum where the 
dispute is pending

Income tax Act,  
1961

Tax deducted at 
source

6.50 2005-06
Commissioner of 

Income Tax appeals

Income tax Act,  
1961

Tax deducted at 
source

2.69 2006-07 and 2007-08
Income Tax Appellate 

Tribunal

Income tax Act,  
1961

Tax deducted at 
source

2.66
2007-08 to 2008-09 and 2010-

11 to 2016-17
Assessing Officer

Finance Act,  
1994

Service Tax 37.66 2008-09 and 2010-11
Customs, Excise and 
Service Tax Appellate 

Tribunal
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viii.	 As the Company does not have any loans or borrowings from any financial institution or bank or Government, nor has it 
issued any debentures as at the balance sheet date, the provisions of Clause 3(viii) of the Order are not applicable to the 
Company.

ix.	 The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer, further public offer (including debt instruments) and 
term loans during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(ix) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

x.	 During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance with the generally 
accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and explanations given to us, we have neither come 
across any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees, noticed or reported 
during the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the Management. 

xi.	 The Company has paid/ provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the 
provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act. 

xii	 As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the provisions of Clause 3(xii) 
of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xiii.	 The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the provisions of Sections 177 and 188 
of the Act. The details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the Ind AS financial statements as required 
under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015. 

xiv. 	 The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures 
during the year under review. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xv. 	 The Company has not entered into any non cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, 
the provisions of Clause 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xvi. 	 The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, the 
provisions of Clause 3(xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

		  For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
		  Firm Registration Number: 012754N/ N-500016
		  Chartered Accountants
						    
		  Priyanshu Gundana 
Ahmedabad	 Partner
11 May 2017	 Membership Number 109553
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standalone Balance sheet as at 31 March 2017
(All amounts are in Rupees Millions, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note No. As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016 As at 1 April 2015
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 3 (a)  16,753.33  13,417.13  14,016.54 
Capital work-in-progress 3 (b)  922.21  3,915.32  652.57 
Intangible assets 3 (c)  8.56  6.62  20.94 
Investments 4 (a)  830.00  830.00  830.00 
Financial Assets
(i)	 Investments
(i)	 Other financial assets 4 (b)  35.39  58.81  52.00 
Current tax assets (net) 5 (a)  304.16  378.72  353.81 
Deferred tax assets (net) 6 (b)  416.05  701.49  1,094.57 
Other non-current assets 7  170.96  1.25  479.29 
Total non-current assets  19,440.66  19,309.34  17,499.72 
Current assets
Inventories 8  155.58  154.93  134.89 
Financial Assets
(i)	 Trade receivables 9 (a)  285.73  288.49  355.97 
(ii)	 Cash and cash equivalents 9 (b)  534.01  1,194.99  155.45 
(iii)	 Bank balance other than (ii) above 9 (c)  2,988.44  1,754.02  2,345.32 
(iv) 	 Loans 9 (d)  2.40  3.00  2.72 
(v)	 Other financial assets 4 (b)  7.63  12.04  11.97 
 Other Current assets 10  91.28  70.22  203.51 
Total current assets  4,065.07  3,477.69  3,209.83 
Total Assets  23,505.73  22,787.03  20,709.55 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share capital 11  4,834.40  4,834.40  4,834.40 
Other equity
(i)	 Reserves and surplus 12  15,360.58  15,131.41  13,224.05 
Total equity  20,194.98  19,965.81  18,058.45 
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i)	 Other financial liabilities 13  52.91  46.27  140.65 
Employee benefit obligations 14  14.22  30.25  25.30 
Other non-current liabilities 15  813.16  533.03  588.63 
Total non-current liabilities  880.29  609.55  754.58 
Current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
(i)	 Trade payables 16  256.35  141.51  270.77 
(ii)	 Other financial liabilities 13  846.93  916.81  438.12 
Provisions 17  366.16  355.04  363.04 
Employee benefit obligations 14  79.34  67.70  72.48 
Current tax provisions (net) 5 (b)  47.91  24.78  18.94 
Other current liabilities 18  833.77  705.83  733.17 
Total current liabilities  2,430.46  2,211.67  1,896.52 
Total Liabilities  3,310.75  2,821.22  2,651.10 
Total equity and liabilities  23,505.73  22,787.03  20,709.55 

The above balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
As per our report of even date attached. 	  	  	

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP	 For and on Behalf of Board of Directors of	  
Chartered Accountants	 Gujarat Pipavav Port Limited	  	  	  
Firm Registration No: 012754N/ N-500016	 CIN: L63010GJ1992PLC018106	  	  	  

Priyanshu Gundana	 Keld Pedersen	 Pravin Laheri
Partner	 Managing Director	 Director
Membership No: 109553	 DIN : 07144184	 DIN: 00499080

 	 Hariharan Iyer	 Manish Agnihotri
 	 Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary 
Ahmedabad	  Mumbai
11 May 2017	 11 May 2017
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standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2017
(All amounts in Rupees Millions, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note No. For the year ended
31 March 2017

For the year ended
31 March 2016

Revenue from operations 19  6,831.04  6,599.54 

Other income 20  353.59  303.69 

Total Income  7,184.63  6,903.23 

Expenses
Operating expenses 21  1,212.88  1,320.68 

Employee benefits expense 22  484.15  464.12 

Finance costs 23  4.03  1.59 

Depreciation and amortisation expense 24  1,065.15  973.39 

Other expenses 25  948.11  1,054.11 

Total expenses  3,714.32  3,813.89 

Profit before tax  3,470.31  3,089.34 
Tax expense :
For the year

Current tax 6 (a)  735.20  782.00 

Less : Minimum Alternative Tax Credit Entitlement 6 (a)  (656.91)  (782.00)

Deferred tax 6 (a)  892.90  1,177.50 

For earlier year

Adjustment of current tax  (49.73)  - 

Adjustment of Minimum Alternative Tax Credit Entitlement  49.73  - 

Total tax expense  971.19  1,177.50 
Profit for the year  2,499.12  1,911.84 
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

- Re-measurement of post-employment benefit obligations  (0.99)  (6.90)

- Less: Income tax relating to above  0.28  2.42 

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax  (0.71)  (4.48)
Total comprehensive income for the year  2,498.41  1,907.36 
Earning per equity share [face value per share INR 10/- (31 March 2016: INR10/-)]

Basic earnings per share  5.17  3.95 

Diluted earnings per share  5.17  3.95 

The above statment of profit and loss should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
As per our report of even date attached. 	  	  	

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP	 For and on Behalf of Board of Directors of	  
Chartered Accountants	 Gujarat Pipavav Port Limited	  	  	  
Firm Registration No: 012754N/ N-500016	 CIN: L63010GJ1992PLC018106	  	  	  

Priyanshu Gundana	 Keld Pedersen	 Pravin Laheri
Partner	 Managing Director	 Director
Membership No: 109553	 DIN : 07144184	 DIN: 00499080

 	 Hariharan Iyer	 Manish Agnihotri
 	 Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary 
Ahmedabad	  Mumbai
11 May 2017	 11 May 2017
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Standalone Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2017
(All amounts in Rupees Millions, unless otherwise stated)

A.	 Equity share capital

Notes Amounts

As at 1 April 2015  4,834.40 

Changes in the equity share capital 11  - 

As at 31 March 2016  4,834.40 

Changes in the equity share capital 11  - 

As at 31 March 2017  4,834.40 

B.	 Other equity

Attributable to owners of Gujarat Pipavav Port Limited

Reserves & Surplus

Total Other 
Equity

Particulars

Notes
Securities 
Premium 
Reserve

Retained 
Earnings

Balance at 1 April 2015 12(i)  14,288.87  (1,064.82)  13,224.05 

Profit for the year 12(ii)  -  1,911.84  1,911.84 

Other Comprehensive Income  (4.48)  (4.48)

Total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2016  -  1,907.36  1,907.36 

Transaction with owners in their capacity as owners:

Dividends paid  -  -  - 

Balance at 31 March 2016  14,288.87  842.54  15,131.41 

Profit for the year  -  2,499.12  2,499.12 

Other Comprehensive Income  -  (0.71)  (0.71)

Total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2017  -  2,498.41  2,498.41 

Transaction with owners in their capacity as owners:

Dividends paid (Including Dividend distribution  tax) 12(ii)  -  (2,269.24)  (2,269.24)

Balance at 31 March 2017  14,288.87  1,071.71  15,360.58 

The above Statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

As per our report of even date attached.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP	 For and on Behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants	 Gujarat Pipavav Port Limited
Firm Registration No: 012754N/ N-500016	 CIN:  L63010GJ1992PLC018106

Priyanshu Gundana	 Keld Pedersen	 Pravin Laheri
Partner	 Managing Director	 Director
Membership No: 109553	 DIN : 07144184	 DIN: 00499080

 	 Hariharan Iyer	 Manish Agnihotri
 	 Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary 
Ahmedabad	  Mumbai
11 May 2017	 11 May 2017
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Year ended
31 March 2017

Year ended
31 March 2016

A. Cash flows from operating activities

Profit before tax  3,470.31  3,089.34 

Adjustments :

Deferred income recognised  (74.30)  (55.65)

Depreciation and amortisation expense  1,065.15  973.39 

Finance costs  4.03  1.59 

Dividend and interest income classified as investing cash flows  (227.47)  (217.87)

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment  20.15  61.35 

Sundry balances written back (net)  (0.98)  (16.21)

Write offs / provisions for current assets, loans and advances  -  23.79 

Foreign currency transactions and translations differences (net)  (4.36)  1.87 

Provision for claims  11.12  - 

Write down of Inventories  24.96  - 

 4,288.61  3,861.60 

Operating profit before working capital changes

Decrease in trade receivables  6.22  62.28 

Increase in inventories  (25.88)  (40.50)

(Increase)/Decrease in loans  0.60  (0.28)

Increase in other financial assets  (0.53)  (7.83)

(Increase)/Decrease in other non-current assets  (169.71)  478.04 

(Increase)/Decrease in other current assets  (21.06)  133.29 

Increase/(Decrease) in trade payables  117.30  (121.05)

Decrease in employee benefit obligations  (5.38)  (6.73)

Increase/(Decrease) in other financial liabilities  (64.68)  384.31 

Increase in non-current liabilities  373.08  - 

Increase/(Decrease) in other current liabilities  109.29  (48.00)

 319.25  833.53 

Cash generated from operations  4,607.86  4,695.13 

Income taxes paid  (587.78)  (801.07)

Net cash inflow from operating activities  4,020.08  3,894.06 

B. Cash flows from investing activities

Payments for property, plant and equipment  (1,430.43)  (3,648.18)

(Payment for dismantling of fixed assets on disposal) / Proceeds from sale of fixed assets (net)  0.10  (14.92)

Dividends received from Associate company  38.00  - 

Interest received  167.46  231.45 

Decrease/(Increase) in deposits with banks (including earmarked balances) (net)  (1,184.05)  578.72 

Net cash outflow from investing activities  (2,408.92)  (2,852.93)
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Year ended
31 March 2017

Year ended
31 March 2016

C. Cash flows from financing activities

Interest paid  (4.03)  (1.59)

Dividends paid to Company’s shareholders  (1,883.98)  - 

Dividend distribution tax paid on dividend  (383.82)  - 

Net cash outflow from financing activities  (2,271.83)  (1.59)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  (660.67)  1,039.54 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year  1,194.99  155.45 

Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents  (0.31)  - 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year  534.01  1,194.99 

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per the cash flow statement

Cash and cash equivalents as per above comprise of the following 31st March 2017 31st March 2016

Cash and cash equivalents [Refer note 9 (b)]  534.01  1,194.99 

Balance as per statement of cash flows  534.01  1,194.99 

Standalone statment of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2017
(All amounts in Rupees Millions, unless otherwise stated)

The above statment of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
As per our report of even date attached. 	  	  	

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP	 For and on Behalf of Board of Directors of	  
Chartered Accountants	 Gujarat Pipavav Port Limited	  	  	  
Firm Registration No: 012754N/ N-500016	 CIN: L63010GJ1992PLC018106	  	  	  

Priyanshu Gundana	 Keld Pedersen	 Pravin Laheri
Partner	 Managing Director	 Director
Membership No: 109553	 DIN : 07144184	 DIN: 00499080

 	 Hariharan Iyer	 Manish Agnihotri
 	 Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary 
Ahmedabad	  Mumbai
11 May 2017	 11 May 2017
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1.	 Company overview

	 i.	 Gujarat Pipavav Port Limited, (“the Company”) was incorporated on 5 August 1992 to construct, operate and 
maintain an all-weather port at Pipavav, District Amreli, in the State of Gujarat.

	 ii.	 The port is designed to handle bulk, container, liquid cargo and RORO and to provide port services such as marine 
services, material handling and storage operations.

	 iii.	 The Company has entered into a 30 year Concession Agreement with Government of Gujarat and Gujarat Maritime 
Board (“GMB”) dated 30 September 1998 to engage in the business of developing, constructing, operating and 
maintaining the port on a BOOT (Build Own Operate Transfer) basis.

	 iv.	 During the year 2005, AP Moller-Maersk group together with certain financial investors acquired the complete 
shareholdings held by the original promoter viz. Seaking Infrastructure Limited (“SKIL”) group, on receipt of approval 
from Government of Gujarat, and Gujarat Maritime Board. Accordingly, AP Moller-Maersk group became the key 
promoter of the Company under the Concession agreement.

	 v.	 Pursuant to the approval of the shareholders of the Company in an extra ordinary general meeting held on 17 
November 2009, the Company has issued and allotted through Initial Public Offering (IPO) 108,695,652 equity 
shares of INR 10 each at a premium of INR 36 per share aggregating to a total of INR 5,000 million to all categories 
of investors. The issue was made in accordance with the terms of the Company’s prospectus dated 30 August 2010 
and the shares got listed on 9 September 2010 on Bombay Stock Exchange and National Stock Exchange.

2.	 Significant accounting policies

	 This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements. 
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. 

2.1.	 Basis of preparation of financial statements 

	 (i)	 Compliance with Ind AS

		  The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under 
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and 
other relevant provisions of the Act. 

	 	 The financial statements up to year ended 31 March 2016 were prepared in accordance with the accounting 
standards notified under Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2006 (as amended) and other relevant provisions 
of the Act.

	 	 These financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017 are Company’s first Ind AS financial statements. 
Refer note 41 for changes in Company’s financial position, financial performance and cash flows due to transition 
from previous GAAP to Ind AS. 

	 (ii)	 Historical cost convention

		  The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:

		  l	 certain financial assets and liabilities and contingent consideration that is measured at fair value ; and 

		  l	 defined benefit plans – plan assets measured at fair value

	 	 All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s operating cycle 
and other criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Act. Based on the nature of services and the time between 
the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has 
ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current and non-current classification of assets and 
liabilities.

2.2.	 Use of estimates: 

	 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgments, estimates 
and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and 
expenses and the disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date of the financial statements. Actual results could differ from 
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those estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Any revision to accounting 
estimates is recognised prospectively in the accounting period in which such revision takes place. 

2.3.	 Segment reporting

	 Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision 
maker.

	 Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer of the Company are the chief operating decision makers. Refer note 38 for 
segment information presented.

2.4.	 Foreign currency transactions

	 Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which 
the Company operates (‘the functional currency’). The financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is 
Company’s functional and presentation currency. 

	 Foreign currency transactions are recorded in Indian rupees using the rates prevailing on the date of the respective 
transactions. Exchange differences arising on foreign currency transactions settled during the period are recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies as at the balance sheet 
date are translated into Indian rupees at the closing exchange rates on that date; the resultant exchange differences are 
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

	 As at the balance sheet date non-monetary items denominated in foreign currency are carried at historical cost. All non-
monetary items denominated in foreign currency are carried at historical cost or other similar valuations are reported using 
the exchange rate that existed when the values were determined.

2.5.	 Revenue recognition 

	 The Company recognises revenue from rendering of services when services are rendered as per the contractual obligations, 
when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured and it is probable that the future economic benefits will flow to the 
entity.

	 Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. The amount disclosed as revenue is 
exclusive of service tax, education cess and net of trade allowance and rebates wherever applicable.

	 Interest income on deposits with bank is recognised on a time proportion basis at applicable interest rates.

2.6.	 Government Grant

	 Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be 
received and the Company will comply with all attached conditions. 

	 Government grants relating to income are deferred and recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss over the period 
necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended to compensate and presented within other income. 

	 Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and equipment are included in non-current liabilities as 
deferred income and are credited to Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the expected lives of the 
related assets and presented within other income.

2.7.	  Income taxes

	 Income tax expense comprises current tax (i.e. amount of tax for the period determined in accordance with the income-
tax law) and deferred tax charge or credit (reflecting the tax effects of timing differences between accounting income and 
taxable income for the period). Provision for current tax is based on the results for the year ended 31 March, in accordance 
with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

	 Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of 
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. The deferred tax charge or credit and the 
corresponding deferred tax liabilities or assets are recognised using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted 
or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary 
differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those 
temporary differences and losses. 
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	 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and 
liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are 
offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the 
asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

	 Current and deferred tax is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items 
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. 

	 In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively. 

	 Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) under the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 is recognised as deferred tax. The credit 
available under the said Act in respect of MAT is recognised as Deferred Tax Asset only to the extent there is convincing 
evidence that the Company will pay income tax in future periods and MAT credit can be carried forward to set-off against 
the normal tax liability. MAT credit recognised as Deferred Tax Asset is reviewed at each Balance sheet date and written 
down to the extent there is no longer a convincing evidence to the effect that the Company will pay normal tax during the 
specified period.

2.8.	 Leases 

	 As a lessee

	 Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Company, as lessee, has substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s inception at the fair value of the 
leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding rental obligations, net 
of finance charges, are included in borrowings or other financial liabilities as appropriate. Each lease payment is allocated 
between the liability and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss over the lease period 
so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period. 

	 Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the Company as lessee 
are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) 
are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease unless the payments 
are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost 
increases. 

	 As a lessor

	 Lease income from operating leases where the Company is a lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line basis over 
the lease term unless the receipts are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the 
expected inflationary cost increases. The respective leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on their nature. 
Costs, including depreciation, incurred in earning the lease income are recognised as expenses.

2.9.	 Impairment

	 Assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine if there is any indication of impairment. An impairment loss is 
recognised if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of 
an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are 
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value 
of money and the risks specific to the asset or cash generating unit (CGU). 

	 For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets (CGU) that generates 
cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs. 

	 Impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

	 If as at the balance sheet date there is an indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists or has 
decreased, the assets or CGU’s recoverable amount is estimated. For assets, the impairment loss is reversed to the 
extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of 
depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised. Such a reversal is recognised in the Statement 
of Profit and Loss.
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2.10.	 Cash and cash equivalents

	 For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits 
held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months 
or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in 
value.

2.11.	 Exceptional Items

	 Company recognises exceptional item when items of income and expenses within Statement of Profit and Loss from 
ordinary activities are such size, nature or incidence that their disclosure is relevant to explain the performance of the 
enterprise for the period.

2.12.	 Inventories

	 Inventories comprise of stores, spares, loose tools, fuel and lubricants. Cost of inventories also include all other costs 
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Costs of purchased inventory are determined 
after deducting rebates and discounts. These are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs are assigned 
to individual items of inventory on the basis of first-in first-out basis. Systematic provisioning is made for inventories held for 
more than a year. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated 
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. 

2.13.	 Investment and Other Financial assets 

	 (i)	 Classification

	 The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
		  l	 those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through 

profit or loss) ; and
		  l	 those measured at amortised cost

	 The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms 
of the cash flows.

	 For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in the Statement of Profit and Loss or other 
comprehensive income. For investments in equity instruments, this will depend on whether the Company has made 
an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value through other 
comprehensive income.

	 (ii)	 Measurement

	 At initial recognition, the Company measures its financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of financial asset not 
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. 
Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss. 

	 Equity instruments 

	 The Company initially measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the Company’s management has elected 
to present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in other comprehensive income, there is no subsequent 
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

	 Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in other gain/ (losses) in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. Impairment losses and reversal of impairment losses on equity investments measured at 
FVOCI are not reported separately from other changes in fair value. 

	 (iii)	 Impairment of financial assets 

	 The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried at 
amortised cost. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit 
risk. 
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	 (iv)	 Derecognition of financial assets 

	 A financial asset is derecognised only when 
	 l	 The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or 
	 l	 retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual obligation 

to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients. 

	 Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and 
rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is derecognised. Where the entity has not 
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognised. 

	 Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the 
financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the Company has not retained control of the financial asset. Where 
the Company retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing 
involvement in the financial asset. 

	 (v)	 Income recognition

	 Dividends are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss only when the right to receive payment is established, it is 
probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Company, and the amount of the dividend 
can be measured reliably. 

	 Transition to Ind AS

	 On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its investment in equity 
recognised as at 1 April 2015 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of the 
investment in equity.

2.14.	 Offsetting financial instruments

	 Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a legally 
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset 
and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be 
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the 
counterparty.

2.15.	 Property, plant and equipment

	 Freehold land is carried at historical cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less 
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to 
the acquisition of items. Cost may also include transfers from equity of any gains or losses on qualifying cash flow hedges 
of foreign currency purchases of property, plant and equipment.

	 Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only 
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item 
can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when 
replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during the reporting period in 
which they are incurred.

	 Transition to Ind AS

	 On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and 
equipment recognised as at 1 April 2015 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed 
cost of the property, plant and equipment. 

	 Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value
	 Depreciation is provided on the straight-line method, over the estimated useful life of each asset from the subsequent 

month of the date of purchase. Assets are depreciated as per useful life specified in Part ‘C’ of the schedule II of the Act. 
Based on internal technical evaluation following assets have a different useful life than prescribed by schedule II of the Act.
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Asset Details Life as per Schedule II in Years Technical Estimate in Years

Ship to Shore Cranes 15 20

Power Distribution Systems 10 15

Carpeted Roads 10 20

Jetties Not defined 30

Dredging Not defined 50

Boundary Wall Not defined 20

Old Residential Complex 60 15

Marine Office Building 60 15

Warehouses 30 15

Guest houses 30 15

	 All assets costing individually INR 125,000 or less are depreciated fully in the year of purchase.

	 The useful lives are reviewed by the management at each reporting date and revised, if appropriate. In case of a revision, 
the unamortised depreciable amount is charged over the revised remaining useful life.

	 A fixed asset is eliminated from the financial statements on disposal or when no further benefit is expected from its use and 
disposal. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included 
in Statement of Profit and Loss within other gains/(losses). 

	 In accordance with Concession agreement all contracted immovable and movable assets shall be transferred to and shall 
vest in Gujarat Maritime Board (‘GMB’) at the end of the concession period, for consideration equivalent to the Depreciated 
Replacement Value (DRV). Since the DRV is currently not determinable, fixed assets are depreciated based on their 
estimated useful life.

2.16.	 Acquired intangible assets 
	 Intangible assets that are acquired by the Company are measured initially at cost. After initial recognition, an intangible 

asset is carried at its cost less any accumulated amortisation and / or any accumulated impairment loss, if any. 

	 Intangible assets are amortised in the Statement of Profit and Loss using the straight line method over their estimated 
useful lives, from the date that they are available for use. Accordingly, at present, these are being amortised on straight 
line basis based on the period of the licence in case of licensed software or for 3 years. Such intangible assets that are not 
yet available for use are tested annually for impairment. 

	 Amortisation method and useful lives are reviewed at each reporting date. If the useful life of an asset is estimated to be 
significantly different from previous estimates, the amortisation period is changed accordingly.

	 An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use and 
disposal. 

	 Losses arising from retirement and gains or losses arising from disposal of an intangible asset are measured as the 
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the Statement 
of Profit and Loss.

	 Transition to Ind AS

	 On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of intangible assets recognised 
as at 1 April 2015 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of intangible 
assets. 

2.17.	 Employee benefits

	 (i)	 Short-term obligations 
	 Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months 

after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employees’ 
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services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are 
settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet. 

	 (ii)	 Post-employment obligations

	 Defined contribution plans:

	 A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays specified contributions to a 
separate entity and has no obligation to pay any further amounts. The Company makes specified monthly contributions 
towards employee provident fund to Government administered provident fund scheme which is a defined contribution plan. 
The Company’s contribution is recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the period in which 
the employee renders the related service. 

	 Defined benefit plan: 

	 The Company’s gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company’s net obligation in respect of a defined 
benefit plan is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service 
in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value. Any unrecognised past service 
costs and the fair value of any plan assets are deducted. The calculation of the Company’s obligation under the plan is 
performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method, which recognises each period of service 
as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final 
obligation. The discount rates used for determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plan, are 
based on the market yields on Government securities as at the Balance sheet date.

	 All expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in employee benefits expense in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss. The Company recognises gains and losses on the curtailment or settlement of a defined benefit plan when the 
curtailment or settlement occurs.

	 The Company has funded its gratuity liability with Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC) under the Group Gratuity cum 
Life Assurance (Cash Accumulation) Scheme.

	 The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the 
fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefits expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

	 Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are 
recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in retained 
earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet. 

	 Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are 
recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss as past service cost. 

	 (iii)	 Other Long term employee benefit obligation 

	 The employees can carry-forward a portion of the unutilised accrued compensated absences and utilise it in future service 
periods or receive cash compensation on termination of employment. Since the compensated absences do not fall due 
wholly within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service and are also not 
expected to be utilized wholly within twelve months after the end of such period, the benefit is classified as a long-term 
employee benefit obligations. The Company records an obligation for such compensated absences in the period in which 
the employee renders the services that increase this entitlement. The obligation is measured on the basis of independent 
actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method. Actuarial losses/ gains are recognised in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss in the period in which they arise.

	 The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional right to 
defer settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting period, regardless of when the actual settlement is expected 
to occur.

2.18.	 Provisions

	 A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that 
can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. 
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses. 
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	 Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined 
by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect 
to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small. 

	 Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the 
present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax 
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase 
in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest expense. 

2.19.	 Contingent liabilities

	 A contingent liability exists when there is a possible but not probable obligation, or a present obligation that may, but 
probably will not, require an outflow of resources, or a present obligation whose amount cannot be estimated reliably. 
Contingent liabilities do not warrant provisions, but are disclosed unless the possibility of outflow of resources is remote. 

2.20.	 Earnings per share (EPS)

	 The basic EPS is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity shareholders for the period by the 
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is computed by dividing the net 
profit attributable to the equity shareholders for the period by the weighted average number of equity and dilutive equity 
equivalent shares outstanding during the period, except where the results would be anti-dilutive.

2.21.	 Dividends

	 Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriately authorised and no longer at the discretion 
of the entity, on or before the end of the reporting period but not distributed at the end of the reporting period. 

2.22.	 Contributed equity

	 Equity shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are 
shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds. 

2.23 	 Investment in Associate company

	 The Company carries its investments in associate at cost less impairment losses. The Company assesses at the end of 
each reporting period, if there are any indications that the said investment may be impaired. If so, the Company estimates 
the recoverable amount in accordance with policy given in 2.9.

2.24 	 Financial instruments measured at fair value

	 Financial instruments measured at fair value can be divided into three levels:

	 Level 1 – Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities; 

	 Level 2 – Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly 
(i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices);

	 Level 3 – Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data. Fair value of listed securities 
fall within level 1 of the fair value hierarchy. Non-listed shares and other securities fall within level 3 of the fair value 
hierarchy.	

	 Fair value of level 3 assets and liabilities are primarily based on the present value of expected future cash flows. A 
reasonably possible change in the discount rate is not estimated to affect the Company’s profit or equity significantly.



8080

No
tes t


o

 t
he 

S
tandal




o
ne 

f
inan


cial state






m
ents


 A
s at and 





f
o
r t
h

e yea


r
 ended 



3
1 Ma

r

ch
 2
01
7

(A
ll 

am
ou

nt
s 

in
 R

up
ee

s 
M

ill
io

ns
, u

nl
es

s 
ot

he
rw

is
e 

st
at

ed
)

3(
a)
(i)
 	
Pr
op

er
ty
, p
la
nt
 a
nd

 e
qu

ip
m
en
t [
1 
A
pr
il 
20
16
 to

 3
1 M

ar
ch
 2
01
7]

 G
ro
ss
 C
ar
ry
in
g 
A
m
ou

nt
 

 A
cc
um

ul
at
ed
 D
ep
re
ci
at
io
n 

N
et
 C
ar
ry
in
g 

A
m
ou

nt

 P
ar
tic
ul
ar
s 

 A
s 
at
  

1 
A
pr
il 
20
16
 

 A
dd

iti
on

s 
du

rin
g 
th
e 

ye
ar

 

 D
ed
uc
tio

ns
/ 

A
dj
us
tm

en
ts
 

du
rin

g 
th
e 

ye
ar

 

 A
s 
at
  

31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
7 

 1
 A
pr
il 
20
16

 
D
ep
re
ci
at
io
n

 C
ha
rg
e 

on
 

ac
co
un

t o
f 

D
ep
re
ci
at
io
n 

fo
r t
he
 y
ea
r 

 O
n 

 
D
ed
uc
tio

ns
 / 

A
dj
us
tm

en
ts

 

 A
s 
at
  

31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
7 

D
ep
re
ci
at
io
n

 A
s 
at

 
31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
7

La
nd

 a
nd

 s
ite

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
 3

21
.8

6 
 - 

 - 
 3

21
.8

6 
 - 

 - 
 - 

 - 
 3

21
.8

6 

B
ui

ld
in

gs
 

 3
,3

74
.5

5 
 1

,7
35

.5
5 

 - 
 5
,1
10
.1
0 

 5
2.

08
 

 2
43

.7
9 

 - 
 2

95
.8

7 
 4
,8
14
.2
3 

P
or

t R
oa

d 
- E

xt
er

na
l

 7
34

.6
8 

 - 
 - 

 7
34

.6
8 

 5
0.

24
 

 5
0.

24
 

 - 
 1

00
.4

8 
 6

34
.2

0 

P
la

nt
, M

ac
hi

ne
ry

 a
nd

 E
qu

ip
m

en
t 

 5
,8

12
.8

3 
 2

,6
70

.9
9 

 3
6.

82
 

 8
,4
47
.0
0 

 7
43

.9
1 

 6
57

.0
6 

 (1
6.

57
)

 1
,3
84
.4
0 

 7
,0
62
.6
0 

D
re

dg
in

g 
 3

,8
69

.1
7 

 - 
 - 

 3
,8
69
.1
7 

 8
9.

25
 

 9
0.

52
 

 - 
 1

79
.7

7 
 3
,6
89
.4
0 

R
ai

lw
ay

 s
id

in
gs

 
 2

32
.6

9 
 - 

 - 
 2

32
.6

9 
 1

2.
62

 
 1

3.
02

 
 - 

 2
5.

64
 

 2
07

.0
5 

Fu
rn

itu
re

, F
itt

in
gs

 a
nd

 L
ea

se
ho

ld
  

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 8
.9

2 
 2

.8
2 

 - 
 1

1.
74

 
 2

.8
9 

 2
.0

6 
 - 

 4
.9

5 
 6

.7
9 

M
ot

or
 V

eh
ic

le
s 

 1
7.

30
 

 6
.6

9 
 - 

 2
3.

99
 

 3
.8

8 
 2

.9
1 

 - 
 6

.7
9 

 1
7.

20
 

To
ta
l

 1
4,
37
2.
00
 

 4
,4
16
.0
5 

 3
6.

82
 

 1
8,
75
1.
23
 

 9
54

.8
7 

 1
,0
59
.6
0 

 (1
6.

57
)

 1
,9
97
.9
0 

 1
6,
75
3.
33
 

N
ot
es
 :

1.
	

La
nd

 a
nd

 s
ite

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t i
nc

lu
de

s 
	

-	
Fr

ee
ho

ld
 la

nd
 o

f I
N

R
 5

0.
55

 m
ill

io
n

	
-	

La
nd

 a
gg

re
ga

tin
g 

IN
R

 1
.4

7 
m

ill
io

n 
pu

rc
ha

se
d 

du
rin

g 
pr

io
r y

ea
rs

 fo
r g

et
tin

g 
th

e 
ra

il 
co

nn
ec

tiv
ity

 fr
om

 n
ea

re
st

 s
ta

tio
n 

up
to

 th
e 

po
rt 

bo
un

da
ry

 is
 re

gi
st

er
ed

 in
 th

e 
na

m
e 

of
 o

ur
 A

ss
oc

ia
te

 c
om

pa
ny

, 
P
ip
av
av
 R
ai
lw
ay
 C
or
po
ra
tio
n 
Li
m
ite
d,
 p
ur
su
an
t t
o 
G
ov
er
nm

en
t n
ot
ifi
ca
tio
n.

	
-	

La
nd

 a
gg

re
ga

tin
g 

IN
R

 2
4.

99
 m

ill
io

n 
w

as
 p

ur
ch

as
ed

 d
ur

in
g 

pr
io

r y
ea

rs
 fo

r h
an

di
ng

 it
 o

ve
r t

o 
G

ov
er

nm
en

t o
f G

uj
ar

at
, p

ur
su

an
t t

o 
th

e 
or

de
r i

ss
ue

d 
by

 H
on

’b
le

 S
up

re
m

e 
C

ou
rt.

 T
hi

s 
la

nd
 w

ill
 b

e 
ex

ch
an

ge
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

la
nd

 lo
ca

te
d 

in
si

de
 th

e 
po

rt 
pr

em
is

es
 w

hi
ch

 d
oe

s 
no

t f
or

m
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 c
ur

re
nt

 C
on

ce
ss

io
n 

w
ith

 G
uj

ar
at

 M
ar

iti
m

e 
B

oa
rd

 (G
M

B
).

	
-	

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

 o
f I

N
R

 2
44

.8
5 

m
ill

io
n 

in
cu

rr
ed

 to
w

ar
ds

 L
an

d 
Fi

lli
ng

 a
nd

 S
ite

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t.
2.

	
R

ef
er

 to
 n

ot
e 

31
 fo

r d
is

cl
os

ur
e 

of
 c

ap
ita

l c
om

m
itm

en
ts

 fo
r t

he
 a

cq
ui

si
tio

n 
of

 p
ro

pe
rty

, p
la

nt
 a

nd
 e

qu
ip

m
en

t.

3(
b)

(i)
	
C
ap
ita
l w

or
k 
in
 p
ro
gr
es
s

 A
s 
at

 
31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
7

 C
ap

ita
l w

or
k 

in
 p

ro
gr

es
s

 9
22

.2
1

 T
ot
al

 9
22

.2
1

	
C
ap
ita
l w

or
k-
in
-p
ro
gr
es
s 
m
ai
nl
y 
co
m
pr
is
es
 o
f C

on
ta
in
er
 h
an
dl
in
g 
Ya
rd
 C
ra
ne
s 
an
d 
N
ew

 O
ffi
ce
 C
om

pl
ex
 

3(
c)
 (i
)	
In
ta
ng

ib
le
 A
ss
et
s

 G
ro
ss
 C
ar
ry
in
g 
A
m
ou

nt
 

 A
cc
um

ul
at
ed
 A
m
or
tis
at
io
n 

N
et
 C
ar
ry
in
g 

A
m
ou

nt

 P
ar
tic
ul
ar
s 

 A
s 
at
  

1 
A
pr
il 
20
16
 

 A
dd

iti
on

s 
du

rin
g 
th
e 

ye
ar

 

 D
ed
uc
tio

ns
/ 

A
dj
us
tm

en
ts
 

du
rin

g 
th
e 

ye
ar

 

 A
s 
at
  

31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
7 

 1
 A
pr
il 

20
16

 
A
m
or
tis
at
io
n 

 C
ha
rg
e 
on

 
ac
co
un

t o
f 

A
m
or
tis
at
io
n 

fo
r t
he
 y
ea
r 

 O
n 

 
D
ed
uc
tio

ns
 / 

A
dj
us
tm

en
ts
 

 A
s 
at
  

31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
7 

A
m
or
tis
at
io
n 

 A
s 
at

 
31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
7 

 C
om

pu
te

r S
of

tw
ar

e 
 2

1.
62

 
 7

.4
9 

 - 
 2

9.
11

 
 1

5.
00

 
 5

.5
5 

 - 
 2

0.
55

 
 8

.5
6 

 T
ot
al

 2
1.

62
 

 7
.4

9 
 - 

 2
9.

11
 

 1
5.

00
 

 5
.5

5 
 - 

 2
0.

55
 

 8
.5

6 



8181

GUJARAT PIPAVAV PORT LTD.
Annual Report 2016-17

8181

No
tes t


o

 t
he 

S
tandal




o
ne 

f
inan


cial state






m
ents


 A
s at and 





f
o
r t
h

e yea


r
 ended 



3
1 Ma

r

ch
 2
01
7

(A
ll 

am
ou

nt
s 

in
 R

up
ee

s 
M

ill
io

ns
, u

nl
es

s 
ot

he
rw

is
e 

st
at

ed
)

3(
a)
(ii
)	
Pr
op

er
ty
, p
la
nt
 a
nd

 e
qu

ip
m
en
t [
1 
A
pr
il 
20
15
 to

 3
1 M

ar
ch
 2
01
6]

 G
ro
ss
 C
ar
ry
in
g 
A
m
ou

nt
 

 A
cc
um

ul
at
ed
 D
ep
re
ci
at
io
n 

N
et
 C
ar
ry
in
g 
A
m
ou

nt

 P
ar
tic
ul
ar
s 

 D
ee
m
ed
 

C
os
t  

as
 a
t  

1 
A
pr
il 
20
15
 

 A
dd

iti
on

s 
du

rin
g 
th
e 

ye
ar

 

 D
ed
uc
tio

ns
/ 

A
dj
us
tm

en
ts
 

du
rin

g 
th
e 

ye
ar

 

 A
dj
us
tm

en
t 

du
rin

g 
th
e 

ye
ar

 

 A
s 
at
  

31
 M
ar
ch
 

20
16

 

 1
 A
pr
il 
20
15

 
D
ep
re
ci
at
io
n 

 C
ha
rg
e 

on
 

ac
co
un

t o
f 

D
ep
re
ci
at
io
n 

fo
r t
he
 y
ea
r 

 O
n 

 
D
ed
uc
tio

ns
 / 

A
dj
us
tm

en
ts
 

 A
s 
at
  

31
 M
ar
ch
 

20
16

 
D
ep
re
ci
at
io
n 

 A
s 
at

 
31
 M
ar
ch
 

20
16

 

 A
s 
at

 
1 
A
pr
il 
20
15
 

La
nd

 a
nd

 s
ite

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
 3

21
.8

6 
 - 

 - 
 - 

 3
21

.8
6 

 - 
 - 

 - 
 - 

 3
21

.8
6 

 3
21

.8
6 

B
ui

ld
in

gs
 

 3
,2

44
.3

7 
 1

30
.1

8 
 - 

 - 
 3
,3
74
.5
5 

 - 
 5

2.
08

 
 - 

 5
2.

08
 

 3
,3
22
.4
7 

 3
,2
44
.3
7 

P
or

t R
oa

d 
- E

xt
er

na
l 

 7
34

.6
8 

 - 
 - 

 7
34

.6
8 

 - 
 5

0.
24

 
 - 

 5
0.

24
 

 6
84

.4
4 

 7
34

.6
8 

P
la

nt
, M

ac
hi

ne
ry

 a
nd

 E
qu

ip
m

en
t 

 5
,7

03
.2

6 
 1

38
.8

6 
 2

9.
29

 
 - 

 5
,8
12
.8
3 

 - 
 7

47
.4

3 
 (3

.5
2)

 7
43

.9
1 

 5
,0
68
.9
2 

 5
,7
03
.2
6 

D
re

dg
in

g 
 3

,7
62

.1
5 

 1
07

.0
2 

 - 
 - 

 3
,8
69
.1
7 

 - 
 8

9.
25

 
 - 

 8
9.

25
 

 3
,7
79
.9
2 

 3
,7
62
.1
5 

R
ai

lw
ay

 s
id

in
gs

 
 2

32
.6

9 
 - 

 - 
 - 

 2
32

.6
9 

 - 
 1

2.
62

 
 - 

 1
2.

62
 

 2
20

.0
7 

 2
32

.6
9 

Fu
rn

itu
re

, F
itt

in
gs

 a
nd

 L
ea

se
ho

ld
  

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 
 6

.5
1 

 2
.4

1 
 - 

 - 
 8

.9
2 

 - 
 2

.8
9 

 - 
 2

.8
9 

 6
.0

3 
 6

.5
1 

 M
ot

or
 V

eh
ic

le
s 

 1
1.

02
 

 6
.2

8 
 - 

 - 
 1

7.
30

 
 - 

 3
.8

8 
 - 

 3
.8

8 
 1

3.
42

 
 1

1.
02

 
 T
ot
al

 1
4,
01
6.
54
 

 3
84

.7
5 

 2
9.

29
 

 - 
 1
4,
37
2.
00
 

 - 
 9

58
.3

9 
 (3

.5
2)

 9
54

.8
7 

 1
3,
41
7.
13
 

 1
4,
01
6.
54
 

N
ot
es
 :

1.
	

La
nd

 a
nd

 s
ite

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t i
nc

lu
de

s 
	

-	
Fr

ee
ho

ld
 la

nd
 o

f I
N

R
 5

0.
55

 m
ill

io
n

	
-	

La
nd

 a
gg

re
ga

tin
g 

IN
R

 1
.4

7 
m

ill
io

n 
pu

rc
ha

se
d 

du
rin

g 
pr

io
r y

ea
rs

 fo
r g

et
tin

g 
th

e 
ra

il 
co

nn
ec

tiv
ity

 fr
om

 n
ea

re
st

 s
ta

tio
n 

up
to

 th
e 

po
rt 

bo
un

da
ry

 is
 re

gi
st

er
ed

 in
 th

e 
na

m
e 

of
 o

ur
 A

ss
oc

ia
te

 c
om

pa
ny

, 
P

ip
av

av
 R

ai
lw

ay
 C

or
po

ra
tio

n 
Li
m
ite
d,
 p
ur
su
an
t t
o 
G
ov
er
nm

en
t n
ot
ifi
ca
tio
n.

	
-	

La
nd

 a
gg

re
ga

tin
g 

IN
R

 2
4.

99
 m

ill
io

n 
w

as
 p

ur
ch

as
ed

 d
ur

in
g 

pr
io

r y
ea

rs
 fo

r h
an

di
ng

 it
 o

ve
r t

o 
G

ov
er

nm
en

t o
f G

uj
ar

at
, p

ur
su

an
t t

o 
th

e 
or

de
r i

ss
ue

d 
by

 H
on

’b
le

 S
up

re
m

e 
C

ou
rt.

 T
hi

s 
la

nd
 w

ill
 b

e 
ex

ch
an

ge
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

la
nd

 lo
ca

te
d 

in
si

de
 th

e 
po

rt 
pr

em
is

es
 w

hi
ch

 d
oe

s 
no

t f
or

m
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 c
ur

re
nt

 C
on

ce
ss

io
n 

w
ith

 G
uj

ar
at

 M
ar

iti
m

e 
B

oa
rd

 (G
M

B
).

	
-	

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

 o
f I

N
R

 2
44

.8
5 

m
ill

io
n 

in
cu

rr
ed

 to
w

ar
ds

 L
an

d 
Fi

lli
ng

 a
nd

 S
ite

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t.
2.

	
P

ur
su

an
t t

o 
S

ch
ed

ul
e 

II 
of

 th
e 

A
ct

 b
ei

ng
 e

ffe
ct

iv
e 

fro
m

 A
pr

il 
1,

 2
01

5 
th

e 
C

om
pa

ny
 h
as
 re
vi
se
d 
us
ef
ul
 li
fe
 o
f i
ts
 a
ss
et
s 
on
 c
er
ta
in
 fi
xe
d 
as
se
ts
 a
s 
pe
r t
he
 u
se
fu
l l
ife
 s
pe
ci
fie
d 
in
 P
ar
t ‘
C

’ o
f S

ch
ed

ul
e 

II 
of

 th
e 

A
ct

 o
r a

s 
pe

r t
he

 m
an

ag
em

en
t’s

 e
st

im
at

e 
ba

se
d 

on
 in

te
rn

al
 e

va
lu

at
io

n.
 A

s 
a 

re
su

lt 
of

 th
is

 c
ha

ng
e,

 th
e 

de
pr

ec
ia

tio
n 

ch
ar

ge
 fo

r t
he

 y
ea

r e
nd

ed
 3

1 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

6 
is

 h
ig

he
r b

y 
IN

R
 2

47
.1

7 
m

ill
io

n 
(o

f w
hi

ch
 IN

R
 2

0.
64

 m
ill

io
n 

pe
rta

in
s 

to
 a

ss
et

s 
w

ho
se

 li
fe

 is
 a

lre
ad

y 
ex

ha
us

te
d 

as
 o

n 
1 

A
pr

il 
20

15
).

3(
b)
(ii
)	
 C
ap
ita
l w

or
k 
in
 p
ro
gr
es
s

 A
s 
at

 
31
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
6 

 A
s 
at

 
1 
A
pr
il 
20
15
 

 C
ap

ita
l w

or
k 

in
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

 3
,9
15
.3
2 

 6
52

.5
7 

 T
ot
al

 3
,9
15
.3
2 

 6
52

.5
7 

	
C

ap
ita

l w
or

k-
in

-p
ro

gr
es

s 
m

ai
nl

y 
co

m
pr

is
es

 o
f C

on
ta

in
er

 y
ar

d 
ex

pa
ns

io
n,

 C
ra

ne
s,

 R
es

id
en

tia
l c

ol
on

y

3(
c)
(ii
)	
 In
ta
ng

ib
le
 A
ss
et
s

 G
ro
ss
 C
ar
ry
in
g 
A
m
ou

nt
 

 A
cc
um

ul
at
ed
 A
m
or
tis
at
io
n 

N
et
 C
ar
ry
in
g 
A
m
ou

nt

 P
ar
tic
ul
ar
s 

 D
ee
m
ed
 

C
os
t  

as
 a
t  

1 
A
pr
il 

20
15

 

 A
dd

iti
on

s 
du

rin
g 
th
e 

ye
ar

 

 D
ed
uc
tio

ns
/ 

A
dj
us
tm

en
ts
 

du
rin

g 
th
e 

ye
ar

 

 A
dj
us
tm

en
t 

du
rin

g 
th
e 

ye
ar

 

 A
s 
at
  

31
 M
ar
ch
 

20
16

 

 1
 A
pr
il 
20
15

 
A
m
or
tis
at
io
n 

 C
ha
rg
e 
on

 
ac
co
un

t o
f 

A
m
or
tis
at
io
n 

fo
r t
he
 y
ea
r 

 O
n 
D
e-

du
ct
io
ns
 / 

A
dj
us
tm

en
ts
 

 A
s 
at
  

31
 M
ar
ch
 

20
16

 
A
m
or
tis
at
io
n 

 A
s 
at

 
31
 M
ar
ch
 

20
16

 

 A
s 
at

 
1 
A
pr
il 
20
15
 

 C
om

pu
te

r S
of

tw
ar

e 
 2

0.
94

 
 0

.6
8 

 - 
 - 

 2
1.

62
 

 - 
 1

5.
00

 
 - 

 1
5.

00
 

 6
.6

2 
 2

0.
94

 

 T
ot
al

 2
0.

94
 

 0
.6

8 
 - 

 - 
 2

1.
62

 
 - 

 1
5.

00
 

 - 
 1

5.
00

 
 6

.6
2 

 2
0.

94
 



82

Notes to the Standalone financial statements As at and for the year ended 31 March 2017
(All amounts in Rupees Millions, unless otherwise stated)

82

4 (a)	 Investments

As at
31 March 2017

As at
31 March 2016

As at
1 April 2015

Investments in equity instruments (fully paid up) :

Unquoted

76,000,010 (31 March 2016 : 76,000,010, 1 April 2015 : 76,000,010) 
equity shares of INR 10 each of Pipavav Railway Corporation 
Limited. (Associate company of Gujarat Pipavav Port Limited)

830.00 830.00 830.00

Total investment in equity instruments 830.00 830.00 830.00

Total non-current investments 830.00 830.00 830.00

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 830.00 830.00 830.00

Aggregate amount of impairment in the value of investments  -  -  - 

4 (b)	 Other financials assets
As at

31 March 2017
As at

31 March 2016
As at

1 April 2015

Non current Current Non current Current Non current Current 

Security deposits  35.39  7.63  30.45  12.04  22.69  11.97 

Bank Deposits (Refer note below)  -  -  28.36  -  29.31  - 

Total other financials assets  35.39  7.63  58.81  12.04  52.00  11.97 

	 Note :	Of the above, bank deposits aggregating NIL (31 March 2016 : INR 26.66 million, 1 April 2015 : INR 27.91 million) is marked lien 
against bank guarantees issued to custom authorities and other third parties.

5 (a)	 Current tax assets (net)

As at
31 March 2017

As at
31 March 2016

As at
1 April 2015

 Advance Tax * 304.16 378.72 353.81 

 Total Current tax assets (net) 304.16 378.72 353.81 

	 * Net of Provision for tax of INR 1,440.35 million (March 2016 : INR 657.00 million, March 2015 : INR 657.00 million)

  (b)	 Current tax provisions (net)

As at
31 March 2017

As at
31 March 2016

As at
1 April 2015

 Provision for tax # 47.91 24.78 18.94 

 Total Current tax provisions (net) 47.91 24.78 18.94 

	 # Net of Advance tax of INR 687.29 million (March 2016 : INR 1,044.21 million, March 2015 : INR 268.06 million)

6.	 Deferred tax assets
	 a.  Tax expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Current tax

Current year  735.20  782.00 

MAT credit entitlement  (656.91)  (782.00)

Total  78.29  - 

Deferred tax  892.90  1,177.50 

Total income tax expense/(credit)  971.19  1,177.50 



83

Notes to the Standalone financial statements As at and for the year ended 31 March 2017
(All amounts in Rupees Millions, unless otherwise stated)

83

GUJARAT PIPAVAV PORT LTD.
Annual Report 2016-17

	 Reconciliation between the statutory income tax rate applicable to the Company and the effective income tax rate of the Company 
is as follows :

31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Accounting profit before tax  3,470.31  3,089.34 
Applicable tax rate of the reporting entity 34.608% 34.608%
Expected total tax expense  1,201.00  1,069.16 
Amount charged in Statement of Profit and Loss  971.19  1,177.50 

Difference  229.81  (108.34)

Tax effect of amounts which are (not deductible) /allowable in calculating taxable income:
(i) Expenditures not deductible for tax purpose  (8.46)  (21.98)
(ii) Dividend Received (Adjusted with expense disallowed u/s 14 A)  13.03  - 
(iii) Impact of Tax Holiday u/s 80 IA *  335.72  - 
(iv) Change in Tax Rate  -  2.74 
(v) Others  (110.48)  (89.10)

Total  229.81  (108.34)

	 *	As per the provisions of Indian Tax laws, the Company is eligible for a tax holiday under section 80IA of the Income Tax Act, 1961 for a 
block of 10 consecutive Assessment years out of the 15 years beginning of port operations. Accordingly, the Company is entitled to tax 
holiday commencing from 1 April 2007 until 31 March 2017. Minimum Alternative Tax will apply after lower of unabsorbed book loss or 
depreciation is adjusted against book profits during the years of tax holiday.

b (i).	 Deferred tax relates to the following:

31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015

Tax losses  -  797.08  1,821.94 
Expenditure deductible on payment basis  81.73  56.72  161.69 
Defined benefit obligations  17.32  20.95  33.23 
MAT credit entitlement  2,333.18  1,726.00  944.00 
Total deferred tax assets  2,432.23  2,600.75  2,960.86 

Set-off of deferred tax liabilities pursuant to set-off provisions  (2,016.18)  (1,899.26)  (1,866.29)

Net deferred tax assets  416.05  701.49  1,094.57 

	 Deferred tax liabilities

31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015

On difference between book depreciation and tax depreciation  2,016.18  1,899.26  1,866.29 

Total deferred tax liabilities  2,016.18  1,899.26  1,866.29 

b (ii).	Movement in deferred tax assets

Tax losses Expenditure 
deductible on 
Payment Basis

Defined benefit 
obligations

On difference 
between book 

depreciation and 
tax depreciation

Total

At 1 April 2015  1,821.94  161.69  33.23  (1,866.29)  150.57 
(Charged)/credited:
- to Statement of Profit and Loss  (1,024.86)  (104.97)  (14.70)  (32.97)  (1,177.50)
- to other comprehensive income  -  -  2.42  -  2.42 
At 31 March 2016  797.08  56.72  20.95  (1,899.26)  (1,024.51)

(Charged)/credited:
- to Statement of Profit and Loss  (797.08)  25.01  (3.91)  (116.92)  (892.90)
- to other comprehensive income  -  -  0.28  -  0.28 
At 31 March 2017  -  81.73  17.32  (2,016.18)  (1,917.13)
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7.	 Other non-current assets

As at
31 March 2017

As at
31 March 2016

As at
1 April 2015

 Capital advances 170.96 1.25 479.29 

 Total other non-current assets 170.96 1.25 479.29 

8.	 Inventories

As at
31 March 2017

As at
31 March 2016

As at
1 April 2015

 Stores and spares 130.35 146.33 129.04 

 Goods-in-transit - Stores and Spares 25.23 8.60 5.85 

 Total inventories 155.58 154.93 134.89 

	 Amounts recognised in statement of profit and loss
	 Write-downs of inventories including provision for inventory amounts to INR 24.96 million (31 March 2016 : INR 20.46 million). These were 

recognised as an expense (Refer note - 25) during the year and included in other expenses in Statement of Profit and Loss.

9 (a)	 Trade receivables

As at
31 March 2017

As at
31 March 2016

As at
1 April 2015

Trade receivables  156.97  148.54  206.62 

Receivables from related parties [Refer note - 37(b)]  148.23  160.11  167.25 

Less: Allowance for doubtful debts [Refer note -28(a)]  (19.47)  (20.16)  (17.90)

Total trade receivables  285.73  288.49  355.97 

	 Break-up of security details

Secured, considered good  49.16  48.64  46.10 

Unsecured, considered good  236.57  239.85  309.87 

Doubtful  19.47  20.16  17.90 

Total  305.20  308.65  373.87 

 Allowance for doubtful debts  (19.47)  (20.16)  (17.90)

Total trade receivables  285.73  288.49  355.97 

9 (b)	 Cash and cash equivalents

As at
31 March 2017

As at
31 March 2016

As at
1 April 2015

Cash on hand 0.05 0.19 0.30 

Balances with banks

-In current accounts 137.12 210.60 63.43 

-In Exchange Earners' Foreign Currency accounts 396.84  - 0.68 

Deposits with original maturity of less than three months  - 984.20 91.04 

 Total cash and cash equivalents 534.01 1,194.99 155.45 
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9 (c)	  Other bank balances

As at
31 March 2017

As at
31 March 2016

As at
1 April 2015

Deposits with original maturity of more than three months  
but less than 12 months * 2,986.47 1,753.49 2,344.79 

Unpaid share application money 0.53 0.53 0.53 
Unpaid dividend account 1.44  -  - 

 Total other bank balances 2,988.44 1,754.02 2,345.32 

	 *	Of the above, bank deposits aggregating INR 21.11 Million (31 March 2016 : NIL, 1 April 2015 : NIL) is marked lien against bank 
guarantees issued to customs and other third parties.

9 (d)	  Loans

As at
31 March 2017

As at
31 March 2016

As at
1 April 2015

Loan and advance to employees  2.40  3.00  2.72 

Total loans  2.40  3.00  2.72 

10 	 Other current assets

As at
31 March 2017

As at
31 March 2016

As at
1 April 2015

 Advance for supply of goods and services 67.31 48.69 34.26 

 Receivable under Served From India Scheme  -  - 123.25 
 Prepaid expenses 13.39 13.23 14.03 
 Balances with government authorities 9.97 8.22 23.61 
 Other receivables 0.61 0.08 8.36 

 Total other current assets 91.28 70.22 203.51 

11	 Equity share capital

As at
31 March 2017

As at
31 March 2016

As at
1 April 2015

Authorised share capital

600,000,000 (31 March 2016 : 600,000,000, 1 April 2015 : 
600,000,000) equity shares of INR 10 each  6,000.00  6,000.00  6,000.00 

 6,000.00  6,000.00  6,000.00 

Issued, subscribed and paid up share capital

483,439,910 (31 March 2016 : 483,439,910, 1 April 2015 : 
483,439,910) equity shares of INR 10 each, fully paid-up  4,834.40  4,834.40  4,834.40 

 4,834.40  4,834.40  4,834.40 

  a)	 Reconciliation of number of equity shares outstanding as at the beginning and at the end of reporting period

As at
31 March 2017

As at
31 March 2016

As at
1 April 2015

Number INR Number INR Number INR

Equity shares at the commencement of the period 483,439,910  4,834.40 483,439,910  4,834.40 483,439,910  4,834.40 

Issued during the period  -  -  -  -  -  - 

At the end of the period 483,439,910  4,834.40 483,439,910  4,834.40 483,439,910  4,834.40 
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 b)	 Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares
	 The Company has a single class of equity shares. Accordingly, all equity rank equally with regard to dividends and share in the Company's 

residual assets. The equity shares are entitled to receive dividend as declared from time to time. The voting rights of an equity shareholder 
on a poll (not on show of hands) are in proportion to its share of the paid-up equity capital of the Company. Voting rights cannot be exercised 
in respect of shares on which any call or other sums presently payable have not been paid.

	 On winding up of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the residual assets of the Company, remaining after 
distribution of all preferential amounts in proportion to the number of equity shares held.

c)	 Equity shares in the Company held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares #

Name of Shareholder Relationship
As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016 As at 1 April 2015

Number Percentage Number Percentage Number Amount

APM Terminals  
Mauritius Limited

Party with 
substantial 
interest

 207,903,931 43.01%  207,903,931 43.01%  207,903,931 43.01%

	 # As per the records of the Company, including its register of members.

12	 Reserves and surplus

As at
31 March 2017

As at
31 March 2016

As at
1 April 2015

 Securities premium reserve [Refer Note- (i) below]  14,288.87  14,288.87  14,288.87 

 Retained earnings [Refer Note- (ii) below]  1,071.71  842.54  (1,064.82)

 Total reserves and surplus  15,360.58  15,131.41  13,224.05 

 (i)	 Securities premium reserve *

As at
31 March 2017

As at
31 March 2016

 Opening balance  14,288.87  14,288.87 

 Closing balance  14,288.87  14,288.87 

	 *	Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of 
the Act.

 (ii)	 Retained earnings

As at
31 March 2017

As at
31 March 2016

 Opening balance  842.54  (1,064.82)

 Net profit for the year  2,499.12  1,911.84 

 Items of other comprehensive income recognised directly in retained earnings

 - Remeasurements of post employment benefit obligation, net of tax  (0.71)  (4.48)

 Dividends 

 - Final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2016  (918.54)  - 

 - Dividend distribution tax on final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2016  (186.99)  - 

 - Interim dividend for the year ended 31 March 2017  (966.88)  - 

 - Dividend distribution tax on interim dividend for the year ended 31 March 2017  (196.83)  - 

 Closing balance  1,071.71  842.54 
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13.	 Other financial liabilities

As at
31 March 2017

As at
31 March 2016

As at
1 April 2015

Non-current Current Non-current Current Non-current Current 

 Retention monies payable  25.71  98.60  19.05  130.87  50.25  28.39 

 Security deposits received  27.20  65.50  27.22  64.80  90.40  0.55 

 Capital creditors  -  588.79  -  637.33  -  302.09 

 Unclaimed dividend (Refer note below)  -  1.44  -  -  -  - 

 Unclaimed share application money  -  0.53  -  0.53  -  0.53 

 (Refer note below)

Other payables *  -  92.07  -  83.28  -  106.56 

Total other financial liabilities  52.91  846.93  46.27  916.81  140.65  438.12 

	 Note :	There are no amounts due for payment to the Investor Education and Protection Fund under Section 125 of The Companies Act 
2013 as at the year end.

	 * Includes INR 32.72 million (31 March 2016 : INR 64.52 million) payable to related parties

14.	 Employee benefits obligations

As at
31 March 2017

As at
31 March 2016

As at
1 April 2015

Non-current Current Non-current Current Non-current Current 

 Leave obligations [Refer note (i) below]  -  17.68  -  14.33  -  12.00 

 Gratuity [Refer note (ii) below]  5.08  11.34  11.59  11.72  2.92  9.29 

 Other employee benefits payables  9.14  50.32  18.66  41.65  22.38  51.19 

Total employee benefits obligations  14.22  79.34  30.25  67.70  25.30  72.48 

 (i) 	 Compensated absences
	 The leave salary is payable to all eligible employees for each day of accumulated leave on death or on resignation or upon superannuation. 

Amount charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss on account of compensated absences during the year amounts to INR 7.43 million (31 
March 2016: INR 3.68 million) and is included in Note 22 - ‘Employee benefits expenses’. Accumulated current provision for compensated 
absences aggregates to INR 17.68 million (31 March 2016: INR 14.33 million; 1 April 2015: 12.00 million) (Refer note 14).

  (ii) 	Post-employment obligations - Gratuity
	 The Company makes annual contribution to the Employee’s Group Gratuity-cum-Life Assurance Scheme of the Life Insurance Corporation 

of India, a funded defined benefit plan for employees. The scheme provides for lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, 
death while in employment or on termination of employment of an amount equivalent to 15 days salary payable for each completed year 
of service or part thereof in excess of six months. Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of service. Gratuity payments due to 
employees are processed disregarding the upper limits specified by Income Tax Act, 1961 and The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972.

	 The amount recognised in the balance sheet and movements in the net defined benefit obligation over the years are as follows :

Present value of 
obligation

Fair value of plan 
assets Net amount 

Balance as at 1 April 2015  37.17  (24.96)  12.21 

Current service cost  5.02  -  5.02 

Interest expense / (Income)  2.94  -  2.94 

Return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in interest 
(expense) / income  -  (1.98)  (1.98)

Total amount recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss  7.96  (1.98)  5.98 
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Present value of 
obligation

Fair value of plan 
assets Net amount 

Remeasurements

(Gain) / loss from change in financial assumptions  (0.13)  -  (0.13)

Experience (gain) / loss  6.78  0.25  7.03 

Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income  6.65  0.25  6.90 

Employers contributions  -  (1.78)  (1.78)

Benefit payments  (9.38)  9.38  - 

Balance as at 31 March 2016  42.40  (19.09)  23.31 

Present value of 
obligation

Fair value of plan 
assets Net amount 

Balance as at 1 April 2016  42.40  (19.09)  23.31 

Current service cost  6.15  -  6.15 

Interest expense / (income)  3.37  -  3.37 

Return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in interest 
(expense) / income  -  (1.52)  (1.52)

Total amount recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss  9.52  (1.52)  8.00 

Remeasurements

(Gain) / loss from change in demographic assumptions  (0.31)  -  (0.31)

(Gain) / loss from change in financial assumptions  3.44  -  3.44 

Experience (gain) / loss  (1.17)  (0.97)  (2.14)

Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income  1.96  (0.97)  0.99 

Employers contributions  -  (15.88)  (15.88)

Benefit payments  (3.40)  3.40  - 

Balance as at 31 March 2017  50.48  (34.06)  16.42 

	 The net liability disclosed above relates to funded plans are as follows :

 31 March 2017  31 March 2016  1 April 2015 

Present value of funded obligations  (50.48)  (42.40)  (37.17)

Fair value of plan assets  34.06  19.09  24.96 

Deficit of funded plan (Gratuity)  (16.42)  (23.31)  (12.21)
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	 The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows :

 31 March 2017  31 March 2016  1 April 2015 

Discount rate 7.12% 7.95% 7.92%
Salary growth rate 8.00% 8.00% 8.00%
Expected rate of return on plan assets 7.12% 7.95% 7.92%
Attrition rate 6.00% 4.00% 4.00%
Mortality Indian Assured 

lives mortality 
(2006-08)

Indian Assured 
lives mortality 

(2006-08)

Indian Assured 
lives mortality 

(2006-08)

 31 March 2017  31 March 2016 

Projected Benefit Obligation on Current Assumptions  50.48  42.40 
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Discounting  (4.10)  (3.95)
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Discounting  4.74  4.63 
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase  4.65  4.58 
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase  (4.11)  (3.98)
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover  (0.42)  (0.15)
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover  0.46  0.16 

	 Category of assets

 31 March 2017  31 March 2016  1 April 2015 

Insurance fund (100%)  34.06  19.09  24.96 

Total  34.06  19.09  24.96 

(iii)	 Risk exposure :
	 Though its defined benefits plan, the Company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed below

	 Changes in bond yields
	 A decrease in bond yield will increase plan liabilities, although this will be partially offset by increase in the plan's bond holding

	 Asset volatility
	 The plan liabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with reference to bond yields; if plan assets underperform this yield, this will 

create a deficit. Plan assets are invested with the Life Insurance Corporation of India Limited. It is subject to interest rate risk. The Company 
intends to maintain the above investments in the continuing years.

	 Maturity Analysis of Projected Benefit Obligation: From the Fund
	 Projected Benefits Payable in Future Years From the Date of Reporting

 31 March 2017  31 March 2016 

1st Following Year  2.85  2.50 
2nd Following Year  2.87  1.80 
3rd Following Year  3.06  2.01 
4th Following Year  5.00  2.10 
5th Following Year  4.16  3.94 
Sum of Years 6 To 10  22.29  16.52 

Total  40.23  28.87 

15	 Other non-current liabilities	

As at
31 March 2017

As at
31 March 2016

As at
1 April 2015

Deferred income on Government Grant  
(Refer note - 41(C)(1))  813.16  533.03  588.63 

Total other non-current liabilities  813.16  533.03  588.63 
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16	 Trade payables

As at
31 March 2017

As at
31 March 2016

As at
1 April 2015

Trade payables  198.06  128.78  217.78 

Dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (Refer note - 39)  0.95  0.24  1.46 

Trade payables to related parties [Refer note - 37(b)]  57.34  12.49  51.53 

Total Trade payables  256.35  141.51  270.77 

17	 Provisions

As at
31 March 2017

As at
31 March 2016

As at
1 April 2015

Claims (Refer note - 33)  366.16  355.04  363.04 

Total provisions  366.16  355.04  363.04 

18	 Other current liabilities

As at
31 March 2017

As at
31 March 2016

As at
1 April 2015

Deferred income on Government Grant  (Refer note - 41(C)(1))  74.30  55.65  55.65 

Statutory dues payables  4.41  10.54  45.02 

Accruals of Incentives and Rebates  535.44  442.60  419.02 

Income received in advance  3.31  5.30  5.60 

Advance from customers  216.31  191.74  207.88 

Total other current liabilities  833.77  705.83  733.17 

19	 Revenue from operations

For the year ended
31 March 2017

For the year ended
31 March 2016

 Income from port services  6,233.20  6,049.04 

 Other operating revenue  597.84  550.50 

Total revenue from operations  6,831.04  6,599.54 

20	 Other income

For the year ended
31 March 2017

For the year ended
31 March 2016

 Interest income 

 - banks  189.38  216.91 

 - others  0.09  0.96 

 Dividends received from Associate company (Refer note below)  38.00  - 

 Interest on income tax refund  36.84  - 

 Deferred Income recognised  74.30  55.65 

 Miscellaneous income  14.98  30.17 

Total other income  353.59  303.69 

	 Note : All dividends from equity investments relates to investments held at the end of the reporting period.
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21	 Operating expenses

For the year ended
31 March 2017

For the year ended
31 March 2016

Handling expenses  958.19  1,037.49 

Waterfront royalty (Refer note - 34)  160.46  152.59 

Business support service charges  47.00  52.79 

Other direct costs  47.23  77.81 

Total operating expenses  1,212.88  1,320.68 

22	 Employee benefits expense

For the year ended
31 March 2017

For the year ended
31 March 2016

 Salaries, wages and bonus  424.17  408.98 

 Contribution to provident fund and other funds (Refer note below)  19.64  19.64 

 Gratuity [Refer note - 14(ii)]  8.00  5.98 

 Leave compensation [Refer note - 14(i)]  7.43  3.68 

 Staff welfare expenses  24.91  25.84 

Total employee benefits expense  484.15  464.12 

	 The Company recognised INR 19.64 million (31 March 2016 : INR 19.64 million) for provident fund contribution in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss.

23	 Finance costs

For the year ended
31 March 2017

For the year ended
31 March 2016

 Financial charges  4.03  1.59 

Total finance costs  4.03  1.59 

24	 Depreciation and amortisation expense

For the year ended
31 March 2017

For the year ended
31 March 2016

 Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  1,059.60  958.39 

 Amortisation of intangible assets  5.55  15.00 

Total depreciation and amortisation expense  1,065.15  973.39 
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25	 Other expenses

For the year ended
31 March 2017

For the year ended
31 March 2016

 Power and fuel  255.72  248.32 

 Rent (Refer note - 32)  22.04  19.22 

 Repairs 

 - Building  10.48  24.25 

 - Machinery and equipment  170.23  177.89 

 - Others  55.28  162.48 

 Insurance  34.40  37.46 

 Rates and taxes  1.68  2.49 

 Travelling expenses  63.39  85.43 

 Legal and professional fees  70.40  61.72 

 Commission to Directors  15.00  - 

 Expenditure towards Corporate Social Responsibility  21.37  27.47 

 [Refer note 25(a) below] 

 Payment to auditors  4.02  3.55 

 [Refer note 25(b) below] 

 Advertisement and sales promotion  8.18  12.76 

 Communication expenses  7.27  6.48 

 Loss on sale / disposal of fixed assets (net) [Including costs for dismantling of 
assets of Nil (31 March 2016 : 35.71 million)]  20.15  61.35 

 Loss on foreign currency transactions and translations (net)  32.73  1.87 

 Bad debts and advances written off (net)  -  1.07 

 Provisions for inventory (net) (Refer note - 8)  -  20.46 

 Provisions for doubtful debts (net) [Refer note - 9(a)]  -  2.26 

 Provision for claims (Refer note - 33)  11.12  - 

 Freight and forwarding  3.34  5.70 

 Water charges expenses  28.34  12.73 

 Contract labour expenses  56.93  44.16 

 Write down of Inventories  24.96  - 

 Miscellaneous expenses  31.08  34.99 

Total other expenses  948.11  1,054.11 
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25(a)	Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

For the year ended
31 March 2017

For the year ended
31 March 2016

Amount required to be spent as per Section 135 of the Act  63.96  43.53 

Amount spent during the year  21.37@  20.76# 

(i) Construction/ acquisition of any asset  -  - 

(ii) On purposes other than (i) above  21.37  20.76 

Total corporate social responsibility expense  21.37  20.76 

	 @	Excludes advance paid of INR 19.06 million (31 March 2016 : 4.05 million). Company has committed to spend INR 51.52 million (31 
March 2016 : INR 12.30 million).

	 #	 Excludes amount of INR 6.71 million spent during the year since such was approved to be spent during the period ended 31 March 2015.

25(b)	Details of payment to auditors

For the year ended
31 March 2017

For the year ended
31 March 2016

Payment to auditor

As auditor

Audit fee 2.25 1.57

Tax audit fee 0.21 0.87

Limited review of quarterly results 1.09 1.09

In other capacity 

Other services 0.43  - 

Reimbursement of expenses 0.04 0.02

Total payment to auditor 4.02 3.55

26.	 Transfer Pricing
	 The Company’s international transactions with related parties are at arm’s length as per the independent accountants’ report 

for the year ended 31 March 2016. Management believes that the Company’s international transactions with related parties 
post 31 March 2016 continue to be at arm’s length and that the transfer pricing legislation will not have any impact on these 
financial statements, particularly on amount of tax expenses and that of provision of taxation.
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27.	 Fair Value of financial assets and liabilities carried at amortised cost 	

	 There are no financial assets and liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss or other comprehensive income. 
All the Financial instruments carried at amortised cost.

31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015

Carrying 
amount

Fair Value Carrying 
amount

Fair Value Carrying 
amount

Fair Value

Financial Assets

Non-Current Other financial assets

Security deposits 35.39 35.39 30.45 30.45 22.69 22.69

Bank deposits - - 28.36 28.36 29.31 29.31

Current Other financial assets  

Security deposits 7.63 7.63 12.04 12.04 11.97 11.97

Loans and advances to employees 2.40 2.40 3.00 3.00 2.72 2.72

Trade receivables 285.73 285.73 288.49 288.49 355.97 355.97

Cash and cash equivalents 534.01 534.01 1,194.99 1,194.99 155.45 155.45

Bank balance 2,988.44 2,988.44 1,754.02 1,754.02 2,345.32 2,345.32

Total Financial Assets 3,853.60 3,853.60 3,311.35 3,311.35 2,923.43 2,923.43

Financial Liabilities

Non-Current Other financial liabilities

Retention monies payable 25.71 25.71 19.05 19.05 50.25 50.25

Security deposits received 27.20 27.20 27.22 27.22 90.40 90.40

Current Other financial liabilities

Trade payables 256.35 256.35 141.51 141.51 270.77 270.77

Retention monies payable 98.60 98.60 130.87 130.87 28.39 28.39

Security deposits received 65.50 65.50 64.80 64.80 0.55 0.55

Capital creditors 588.79 588.79 637.33 637.33 302.09 302.09

Unclaimed dividend 1.44 1.44 - - - -

Unclaimed share application money 0.53 0.53 0.53 0.53 0.53 0.53

Other payables 92.07 92.07 83.28 83.28 106.56 106.56

Total Financial Liabilities 1,156.19 1,156.19 1,104.59 1,104.59 849.54 849.54

	 Financial instruments carried at amortised cost

	 Fair value of the current financial assets and current financial liabilities carried at amortised cost is not materially different 
from the carrying amount. In general, fair value is determined primarily based on the present value of expected future cash 
flows. 

28.	 Financial risk management

	 The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:

	 (a)	 Credit risk

	 (b)	 Liquidity risk
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	 (c)	 Market risk

	 The Company’s overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to 
minimise the potential adverse effects on the Company’s financial performance. Risk management is carried out by finance 
department under policies approved by the Board of Directors. 

	 (a)	 Credit risk

	 The Company has exposure to financial and commercial counterparties but has no particular concentration of customers 
or suppliers. To minimise the credit risk, security deposits and advance payments are taken from all major customers.
Our historical experience of collecting receivables, supported by the level of default, is that credit risk is low and so trade 
receivables are considered to be a single class of financial assets. 

	 Expected credit loss for trade receivables under simplified approach:

	 For the year ended 31 March 2017 :

Ageing Not Due 0-90 
Days

90-180 
Days

180-270 
Days

270-365 
Days > 365 Days Total

Gross Carrying amount 225.00 55.27 9.87 2.68 0.61 11.77 305.20

Expected credit losses - 3.95 2.59 0.71 0.45 11.77 19.47

Carrying amount of Trade receivables 225.00 51.32 7.28 1.97 0.16 - 285.73

	 For the year ended 31 March 2016:

Ageing Not Due 0-90 
Days

90-180 
Days

180-270 
Days

270-365 
Days > 365 Days Total

Gross Carrying amount 184.28 71.61 26.10 15.74 0.28 10.64 308.65

Expected credit losses - 0.67 2.57 6.13 0.15 10.64 20.16

Carrying amount of Trade receivables 184.28 70.94 23.53 9.61 0.13 - 288.49

	 As at 1 April 2015:

Ageing Not Due 0-90 
Days

90-180 
Days

180-270 
Days

270-365 
Days

> 365 
Days Total

Gross Carrying amount 251.99 78.56 22.77 8.55 3.65 8.35 373.87

Expected credit losses - 0.90 2.42 3.06 3.17 8.35 17.90

Carrying amount of Trade receivables 251.99 77.66 20.35 5.49 0.48 - 355.97

	 Liquidity risk

	 Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of 
funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities to meet obligations when due and to close out market 
positions. Management monitors Company’s liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents through Quarterly rolling 
forecasts and on the basis of expected cash flows. Company treasury maintains flexibility in funding through committed 
credit lines with Financial Institution.

	 Maturities of financial liabilities

	 The following table shows the maturity analysis of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractually agreed 
undiscounted cash flows as at the Balance Sheet date. Balances due within 12 months and more than 12 months equal 
their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant. 



96

Notes to the Standalone financial statements As at and for the year ended 31 March 2017
(All amounts in Rupees Millions, unless otherwise stated)

96

As at 31 March 2017 Notes Carrying 
Amount

Payable on 
Demand

Less than 
12 months

More than 
12 months

Trade payables 16  256.35 -  256.35 -

Retention monies payable 13 124.31 64.44 34.16 25.71

Security deposits received 13 92.70 65.50 - 27.20

Capital creditors 13 588.79 - 588.79 -

Unclaimed dividend 13 1.44 1.44 - -

Unclaimed share application money 13 0.53 0.53 - -

Other payables 13 92.07 - 92.07 -

As at 31 March 2016

Trade payables 16  141.51 -  141.51  -

Retention monies payable 13 149.92 44.02 86.85 19.05

Security deposits received 13 92.02 64.80 - 27.22

Capital creditors 13 637.33 - 637.33 -

Unclaimed share application money 13 0.53 0.53 - -

Other payables 13 83.28 - 83.28 -

As at 1 April 2015

Trade payables 16  270.77 -  270.77  -

Retention monies payable 13 78.64 - 28.39 50.25

Security deposits received 13 90.95 0.55 - 90.40

Capital creditors 13 302.09 - 302.09 -

Unclaimed share application money 13 0.53 0.53 - -

Other payables 13 106.56 - 106.56 -

	 As there is no committed credit facilities to meet obligations when due and to close out market positions, the Company is 
not exposed to liquidity risk.

	 (c)	 Market risk

	 Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, will affect the Company’s profit or 
the value of its holdings of financial instruments. Below sensitivity analyses relate to the position of financial instruments 
at 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016. It is assumed that the exchange rate sensitivities have a symmetric impact, i.e. an 
increase in rates results in the same absolute movement as a decrease in rates.

	 The sensitivity analyses show the effect on profit or loss and equity of a reasonably possible change in exchange rates and 
interest rates.

	 Foreign Currency risk

	 The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency transactions, primary with respect to USD 
and EURO. The Company’s business model incorporates assumptions on currency risk and ensures any exposure is 
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covered through the normal business operations. As the functional reporting currency is in INR, the foreign currency risk 
exists for the Company. 

	 Foreign currency exposure not covered by Forward Contracts as at 31 March 2017: 

Details
USD Exposure EURO Exposure

INR USD INR Euro

Receivables/Advance to Vendor 141.50 2.18 - -

159.51 2.41 - -

Payables 50.14 0.77 7.01 0.10

32.83 0.50 0.02  @

Cash and Bank Balance 396.84 6.12 - -

 @  @ - -

	 @	 Amount is below the rounding off norm adopted by the Company.
		  Amounts in italics represent amounts as at 31 March 2016

Details
Impact on profit after tax

31 March 2017 31 March 2016

USD sensitivity

INR/USD - Increase by 10% (31 March 2016-10%) 48.82 12.67

INR/USD - Decrease by 10% (31 March 2016-10%) (48.82) (12.67)

EUR sensitivity

INR/EUR  -Increase by 10% (31 March 2016-10%) (0.70) -

INR/EUR - Decrease by 10% (31 March 2016-10%) 0.70 -

29.	 Capital Management

	 The Company’s objective in managing its capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to optimize 
returns to our shareholders. The Company considers the following components of its Balance Sheet to be managed 
capital: 

	 1) Share Capital, 2) Share Premium; and 3) Retained Earnings

	 The Company’s capital structure is based on the Managements assessment of the balances of key elements to ensure 
strategic decisions and day to day activities. The capital structure of the Company is managed with a view of the overall 
macro-economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets.

	 The Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital structure with a focus to mitigate all existing and potential risks to the 
Company, maintain shareholder, vendor and market confidence and sustain continuous growth and development of the 
Company.

	 The Company’s focus is on keeping a strong total equity base to ensure independence, security, as well as high financial 
flexibility without impacting the risk profile of the Company. In order, to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company 
will take appropriate steps as may be necessary. The Company does not have any debt or financial covenants.

	 The Management monitors the return on capital as well as the level of dividend to shareholders. The Company goal is 
to continue to be able to provide return to shareholders by continuing to distribute dividends in future period. Refer the 
following table for the final and interim dividend declared and paid.



98

Notes to the Standalone financial statements As at and for the year ended 31 March 2017
(All amounts in Rupees Millions, unless otherwise stated)

98

	 Dividends

31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April  
2015

(a)    Equity shares

(i)	 Final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2016 of INR 1.90 per fully paid 
share  918.54  -  - 

Corporate dividend tax on above  186.99  -  - 

(ii) Interim dividend for the year ended 31 March 2017 of INR 2.00 per fully paid 
share  966.88 

 
 - 

 
- 

Corporate dividend tax on above  196.83  -  - 

(b)  Dividends not recognised at the end of the reporting period  870.19  918.54  - 

The directors have recommended the payment of a final dividend of INR 1.80 
per fully paid equity share (31 March 2016 – INR 1.90). This proposed dividend 
is subject to the approval of shareholders in the ensuing annual general meeting.

30.	 Traffic guarantee commitment
	 The Company has entered into tripartite Transportation and Traffic Guarantee Agreement with Pipavav Railway Corporation 

Limited (PRCL) and Indian Railways, to provide minimum volumes of 3 million metric tonnes for every Financial Year. The 
Company has consistently met its volume commitment from Financial Year 2010-11 till date and there is no shortfall on 
account of minimum traffic guarantees to be paid.

31.	 Capital and other commitments
	 (a)	 Capital commitments on account of Capital expenditure contracted and obligation under Export Promotion Capital 

Goods (‘EPCG’) at the end of the reporting period but not recognised as liabilities is as follows

Particulars 31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015

(a)	 Capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the reporting period 
but not recognised as liabilities (net of advances)

277.44 723.02 2,355.76

(b)	 Bonds/Undertaking given by the Company under Concessional Duty 
/ Exemption scheme to the Government Authorities (net of obligations 
fulfilled)

2,692.54 2,692.54 77.21

	 (b)	 During the year 2005 and prior to AP Moller Maersk group acquiring the complete shareholdings held by the original 
promoters, SKIL group, the Company had provided commitment of INR 350 million (31 March 2016: INR 350 million; 
1 April 2015: INR 350 million) towards consortium lending to a SKIL Group Company, Pipavav Shipyard Limited 
conditional to fulfilment of certain obligations by Pipavav Shipyard Limited and other parties. This arrangement has 
been closed and the Company is in the process of seeking discharge from this commitment. IL&FS (lead manager 
in the consortium) would be releasing the Company of its commitment once it receives a “No Dues certificate” from 
the Government of Gujarat.

32.	 Lease 

	 (i) 	 The Company has taken operating leases for office premises, concession agreement with GMB (including lease 
rental payable as per High Court order. These lease arrangements include both cancellable and non-cancellable 
leases. The leases have varying terms, escalation clauses and renewal rights. On renewal, the terms of the leases 
are renegotiated. 
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	 (ii) 	 Lease payments of INR 22.04 million (31 March 2016 INR 19.22 million) recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 
are shown as “Rent” under Other Expenses in Note 25.

	 (iii) 	 The future minimum lease payments payable under the said non-cancellable operating lease for rented premises 
are as follows: 

Particulars 31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015

Payable within one year 18.43 17.71 17.14

Payable between one and five years 60.65 61.56 84.99

Payable more than 5 years 85.59 98.48 110.31

	 (iv) 	 The Company has given a Total area of 1,111,813 Square Mtr. (31 March 2016: 1,111,813 Square Mtr.; 1 April 
2015: 1,111,813 Square Mtr.) of Land on Lease to various customers. The lease is upto 2028 which is the end of 
the Concession Period.

	 (v)	 Operating lease rental income of INR 225.98 million (31 March 2016 INR 198.46 million) recognised in Statement 
of Profit and Loss is included in Other Operating Revenue in Note 19.

	 (vi) 	 The future minimum lease payments receivable under the said non-cancellable operating lease for rented premises 
are as follows:

Particulars 31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015

Receivable within one year 169.89 158.81 157.54

Receivable between one and five years 834.79 830.66 812.21

Receivable more than five years 1,631.70 1,658.74 1,868.67

33.	 Provisions and Contingent liabilities 
	 Claims against Company not acknowledged as debt aggregates to INR 1,869.30 million (31 March 2016: INR 1,838.07 

million; 1 April 2015: INR 1,823.14 million). Provisions made in respect of the same aggregates to INR 365.04 million (31 
March 2016: INR 355.04 million; 1 April 2015: INR 355.04 million).

	 Above claim includes disputed claim with the associate Company, Pipavav Railway Corporation Limited of INR 699.33 
million (31 March 2016: INR 699.33 million; 1 April 2015: INR 699.33 million).

	 Other contingent liabilities in respect of taxation matter not acknowledged as debt aggregates to INR 1.57 million (31 
March 2016: INR 14.17 million; 1 April 2015: INR 38.27 million). Provisions made in respect of the same is INR 1.12 million 
(31 March 2016: NIL; 1 April 2015: INR 8.00 million). 

	 Movement in provisions

Litigations / Disputes Taxation Matters

31 March 
2017

31 March 
2016

1 April 
2015

31 March 
2017

31 March 
2016

1 April 
2015

At the commencement of the year 355.04 355.04 355.22  -- 8.00 21.80

Provision made during the year  10.00 -- 0.32 1.12 -- --

Provision reversed during the year -- --  (0.50) --  (8.00) (13.80)

At the end of the year 365.04 355.04  355.04 1.12 -- 8.00
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	 Future cash outflows in respect of above are determinable only on receipt of judgements/decisions pending with various 
authorities/forums and/or final outcome of the matters.

34.	 Concession Agreement with Government of Gujarat

	 Pursuant to the Concession agreement with the Government of Gujarat and Gujarat Maritime Board (GMB) dated 30 
September 1998, the Company is entitled towards government assistance and accordingly have discharged its liability 
towards waterfront royalty subject to the conditions led down in the aforesaid agreement. 

35.	 Earnings per share

Year ended 
31 March 2017

Year ended 
31 March 2016

Profit for the year (A) 2,498.41 1,907.36

Calculation of weighted average number of equity shares

Number of equity shares at the beginning of the year 483,439,910 483,439,910 

Number of equity shares at the end of the year 483,439,910 483,439,910 

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year (B) 483,439,910 483,439,910

Basic and diluted earnings per share (INR ) (A/B) 5.17 3.95

36.	 Interest in Associate company

	 Set out below is the associate of the Company as at 31 March 2017 which, in the opinion of the directors, is material 
to the Company. The entity listed below have share capital consisting solely of equity shares, which is held directly by 
the Company. The country of incorporation or registration is also their principal place of business, and the proportion of 
ownership interest is the same as the proportion of voting rights held. 

Name of Entity Place of 
Business

% of  
ownership Relationship Accounting 

method

Carrying amount

31 March 
2017

31 March 
2016

31 March 
2015

Pipavav Railway 
Corporation Limited

New Delhi 38.78 Associate Equity  
Method

830.00 830.00 830.00
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37.	 Related party transactions 

(a) 	 List of related parties and their relationship

Relation Party

A	 Party with substantial interest and its affiliates (i)	 APM Terminals Mauritius Limited, Mauritius

(ii)	 APM Terminals Management (Singapore) Pte Limited, Singapore

(iii)	 APM Terminals Management B.V., The Netherlands

(iv)	 Maersk Line A/S, Denmark (formerly known as  
A.P. Moller - Maersk A/S)

(v)	 APM Terminals India Private Limited, India

(vi)	 Maersk Line India Private Limited, India

(vii)	 GPRO Services India Private Limited, India

(viii)	 Maersk Training India Private Limited, India

(ix)	 Gateway Terminals India Private Limited, India

(x)	 APM Terminals Gothenburg, Gothenburg

(xi)	 Maersk Training Svendborg A/s, Denmark

B.	 Associate Pipavav Railway Corporation Limited

C.	 Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Key 
managerial personnel

A) Executive directors

Mr. Keld Pedersen (Managing director) (w.e.f. 1 May 2015)

Mr. Prakash Tulsiani (Managing director) (up to 31 March 2015)

B) Non-Executive directors

Mr. Tejpreet Singh Chopra 

Ms. Hina Shah 

Mr. Pradeep Mallick

Mr. Pravin Laheri 

Mr. Jan Damgaard Sorensen (up to 16 September 2016)*

Mr. Ahmed Hassan – (from 10 October 2016)*

Mr. Rizwan Soomar*

Mr. A.K.Rakesh –(up to 7 September 2016)*

C) Key managerial personnel 
Mr. Hariharan Iyer (Chief Financial Officer)

	 * No transaction during the year
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Name of Non-Executive 
Directors/Key Managerial 

personnel

Fees for attending 
Board/Committee 

meetings

Commission Managerial 
Remuneration 

Total

Mr. Tejpreet Singh Chopra 0.60
0.50

6.00
-

- 6.60
0.50

Ms. Hina Shah 0.95
0.75

3.00
-

- 3.95
0.75

Mr. Pradeep Mallick 1.00
0.90

3.00
-

- 4.00
0.90

Mr. Pravin Laheri 1.10
1.00

3.00
-

- 4.10
1.00

Mr. A.K Rakesh -
0.10

-
-

- -
0.10

Mr. Keld Pedersen - - 33.59
41.04

 33.59
41.04

Mr. Hariharan Iyer - - 21.22
17.15

21.22
17.15

Mr. Prakash Tulsiani # - - 9.20 9.20

	 Amounts in italics represent amounts as at 31 March 2016

	 # Tax on Managerial Remuneration paid on behalf of Mr. Prakash Tulsiani as per agreement.

38.	 Segment reporting
	 Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating 

Decision Maker (“CODM”) of the Company. Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer of the Company are the chief 
operating decision makers. The Company operates only in one Business Segment i.e. ‘Port Services’ which primarily 
includes services such as Marine services, Berth hire, Wharfage, Container Handling, Yard Operations, Stevedorage 
and the activities incidental thereto within India, hence does not have any reportable Segments as per Indian Accounting 
Standard 108 “Operating Segments”.

	 The Company having combined revenue of more than 10% of the total revenue from related parties of amounts to INR 
1,185.11 million.

39.	 Other notes 

	 Dues to Micro and Small suppliers
	 Under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (‘MSMED Act’) which came into force from 

2 October 2006, certain disclosures are required to be made relating to Micro, Small and Medium enterprises. On the 
basis of the information and records available with the Company, the details of outstanding dues to the Micro and Small 
enterprises as defined in the MSMED Act, 2006 as set out in the following disclosures: 

31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015

Principal amount due to any supplier as at the year end 0.95 0.24 1.46

Interest due on the principal amount unpaid at the year end to any supplier 0.05 0.05 0.05

Principal amounts paid to the suppliers beyond appointed day during the 
year 0.79 0.58 2.33
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31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015

Interest paid, other than under Section 16 of the MSMED Act, to supplier 
beyond the appointed day during the year

- - -

Interest paid, under Section 16 of the MSMED Act, to supplier beyond the 
appointed day during the year - @ -

Interest due and payable towards supplier for the payments already made
@ @ 0.05

Further interest remaining due and payable for earlier years 0.05 0.05 -

	 @ Amount is below the rounding off norm adopted by the Company.

40.	 Details of Specified Bank Notes (SBN) held and transacted during the period from 8th November, 2016 to 30th 
December, 2016

(Amount in INR)

Particulars SBNs Other denomination 
notes Total

Closing cash in hand as on November 08, 2016  225,000  21,012  246,012 

(+) Permitted receipts  -  -  - 

(+) Receipts for non-permitted transactions *  10,500  376,021  386,521

(-) Permitted payments  -  -  - 

(-) Amount deposited in Banks  235,500  -  235,500

(-) Paid for non-permitted transactions  -  307,326  307,326

Closing cash in hand as on December 30, 2016  -  89,707  89,707

	 * 	This pertains to collections in transit on 9 November 2016 and 10 November 2016 which were subsequently deposited 
in bank account.

	 Note :	Permitted receipt and permitted payments are not specifically defined in the notification. However, these would 
include transactions of receipt and payment of Specified Banking Notes as permitted by Reserve Bank of India 
from time to time. These would include payment for the medical treatment (hospitalisation in Government hospitals, 
medicine etc.), purchase at consumer cooperative stores operated under authorisation of Central or State 
Government, purchase of bus tickets at government bus stands, train tickets at railway station, air tickets at airport, 
toll charges at National Highway, utility bills, purchase of LPG/gas cylinders, school fees, payment towards any 
fees, charges, taxes or penalties, payable to the Central or State Government including Municipal and local bodies 
and fuel purchase etc.

41.	 First-time adoption of Ind AS

	 Transition to Ind AS

	 These are the Company’s first financial statements prepared in accordance with Ind AS.

	 The accounting policies set out in note 2 have been applied in preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 
March 2017, the comparative information presented in these financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016 and 
in the preparation of an opening Ind AS balance sheet at 1 April 2015 (the Company’s date of transition). In preparing 
its opening Ind AS balance sheet, the Company has adjusted the amounts reported previously in financial statements 
prepared in accordance with the accounting standards notified under Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as 
amended) and other relevant provisions of the Act (previous GAAP or Indian GAAP). An explanation of how the transition 
from previous GAAP to Ind AS has affected the Company’s financial position, financial performance and cash flows is set 
out in the following tables and notes.
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A.	 Exemptions and exceptions availed

	 Set out below are the applicable Ind AS 101 optional exemptions and mandatory exceptions applied in the transition from 
previous GAAP to Ind AS. 

	 A.1	 Ind AS optional exemption

	 a)	 Deemed Cost

		  Ind AS 101 permits a first-time adopter to elect to continue with the carrying value for all of its property, plant and 
equipment as recognised in the financial statements as at the date of transition to Ind AS, measured as per the 
previous GAAP and use that as its deemed cost as at the date of transition after making necessary adjustments for 
de-commissioning liabilities. This exemption can also be used for intangible assets covered by Ind AS 38 Intangible 
Assets. 

		  Accordingly, the Company has elected to measure all of its property, plant and equipment and intangible assets at their 
previous GAAP carrying value. 

	 b)	 Designation of previously recognised financial instruments

		  Ind AS 101 allows an entity to use the deemed cost in its opening balance sheet for investment in associate company.

		  Accordingly, the Company has elected to apply this exemption for its investment in equity investment. 

	 c)	 Leases 

		  Appendix C to Ind AS 17 requires an entity to assess whether a contract or arrangement contains a lease. In accordance 
with Ind AS 17, this assessment should be carried out at the inception of the contract or arrangement. Ind AS 101 
provides an option to make this assessment on the basis of facts and circumstances existing at the date of transition 
to Ind AS, except where the effect is expected to be not material. 

	 	 The Company has elected to apply this exemption for such contracts/arrangements.

	 A.2	 Ind AS mandatory exceptions

	 a)	 Estimates

		  An entity’s estimates in accordance with Ind ASs at the date of transition to Ind AS shall be consistent with estimates 
made for the same date in accordance with previous GAAP (after adjustments to reflect any difference in accounting 
policies), unless there is objective evidence that those estimates were in error. 

		  Ind AS estimates as at 1 April 2015 are consistent with the estimates as at the same date made in conformity with 
previous GAAP. The Company made estimates for Impairment of financial assets based on expected credit loss model 
in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition as these were not required under previous GAAP.

	 b)	 Classifications and measurement of financial assets

		  Ind AS 101 requires an entity to assess classification and measurement of financial assets on the basis of the facts 
and circumstances that exist at the date of transition to Ind AS. Consequently, the Company has applied the above 
assessment based on facts and circumstances exist at the transition date.
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B.  	 Reconciliations between previous GAAP and Ind AS (1 April 2015)

	 Ind AS 101 requires an entity to reconcile equity, total comprehensive income and cash flows for prior periods. The 
following tables represent the reconciliations from previous GAAP to Ind AS.

	 (i)   Reconciliation of equity as at date of transition (1 April 2015)

Notes to first-
time adoption

Regrouped
Previous GAAP*

Adjustments Ind AS

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, Plant and Equipment 41(C)(1)  13,372.26  644.28  14,016.54 

Capital work-in-progress  652.57  -  652.57 

Intangible assets  20.94  -  20.94 

Investments  830.00  -  830.00 

Financial Assets

  (i) Other financial assets 41(C)(10)  50.94  1.06  52.00 

Current Tax Assets (net)  353.81  -  353.81 

Deferred tax assets (net) 41(C)(6)  -  1,094.57  1,094.57 

Other non-current assets 41(C)(6)  1,423.29  (944.00)  479.29 

Total non-current assets  16,703.81  795.91  17,499.72 

Current assets

Inventories  134.89  -  134.89 

Financial Assets

   (i) Trade receivables  355.97  -  355.97 

  (ii) Cash and cash equivalents 41(C)(10)  156.51  (1.06)  155.45 

  (iii) Bank balance other than (ii) above  2,345.32  -  2,345.32 

  (iv) Loans  2.72  -  2.72 

  (v) Other financial assets  11.97  -  11.97 

 Other Current assets  203.51  -  203.51 

Total current assets  3,210.89  (1.06)  3,209.83 

Total Assets  19,914.70  794.85  20,709.55 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

Equity Share capital  4,834.40  -  4,834.40 

Other equity  - 

Reserves and surplus 41(C)(6)  13,073.48  150.57  13,224.05 

Total equity  17,907.88  150.57  18,058.45 
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Notes to first-
time adoption

Regrouped
Previous GAAP*

Adjustments Ind AS

Liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Financial liabilities

  (i) Other financial liabilities  140.65  -  140.65 

Employee benefit obligations  25.30  -  25.30 

Other non-current liabilities 41(C)(1)  -  588.63  588.63 

Total non-current liabilities  165.95  588.63  754.58 

Current liabilities

Financial Liabilities

  (i) Trade payables  270.77  -  270.77 

  (ii) Other financial liabilities  438.12  -  438.12 

Provisions  363.04  -  363.04 

Employee benefit obligations  72.48  -  72.48 

Current tax provisions (net)  18.94  -  18.94 

Other current liabilities 41(C)(1)  677.52  55.65  733.17 

Total current liabilities  1,840.87  55.65  1,896.52 

Total Liabilities  2,006.82  644.28  2,651.10 

Total equity and liabilities  19,914.70  794.85  20,709.55 

	 * 	The previous GAAP figures have been reclassified to conform to Ind AS presentation requirements for the purposes of 
this note.

	 (ii)   Reconciliation of equity as at 31 March 2016

Notes to first-time 
adoption

Regrouped Previous 
GAAP *

Adjustments Ind AS

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, Plant and Equipment 41(C)(1 & 2)  13,386.73  30.40  13,417.13 

Capital work-in-progress  3,915.32  -  3,915.32 

Intangible assets  6.62  -  6.62 

Investments  830.00  -  830.00 

Financial Assets

  (i) Other financial assets  58.81  -  58.81 

Current Tax Assets (net) 41(C)(10)  353.94  24.78  378.72 

Deferred tax assets (net) 41(C)(6 & 10)  -  701.49  701.49 

Other non-current assets 41(C)(6)  1,727.25  (1,726.00)  1.25 

Total non-current assets  20,278.67  (969.33)  19,309.34 
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Notes to first-time 
adoption

Regrouped Previous 
GAAP *

Adjustments Ind AS

Current assets

Inventories  154.93  -  154.93 

Financial Assets

  (i) Trade receivables 41(C)(10)  293.50  (5.01)  288.49 

  (ii) Cash and cash equivalents  1,194.99  -  1,194.99 

  (iii) Bank balance other than (ii) above  1,754.02  -  1,754.02 

  (iv) Loans  3.00  -  3.00 

  (v) Other financial assets  12.04  -  12.04 

 Other Current assets 41(C)(10)  85.42  (15.20)  70.22 

Total current assets  3,497.90  (20.21)  3,477.69 

Total Assets  23,776.57  (989.54)  22,787.04 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

Equity Share capital  4,834.40  -  4,834.40 

Other equity

Reserves and surplus 41(C)(2,3 & 4)  14,329.31  802.10  15,131.41 

Total equity  19,163.71  802.10  19,965.81 

Liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Financial liabilities

  (i) Other financial liabilities  46.27  -  46.27 

Employee benefit obligations 41(C)(10)  43.88  (13.63)  30.25 

Deferred tax liabilities 41(C)(10)  1,274.11  (1,274.11)

Other non-current liabilities 41(C)(1)  -  533.03  533.03 

Total non-current liabilities  1,364.26  (754.71)  609.55 

Current liabilities

Financial Liabilities

  (i) Trade payables  141.51  -  141.51 

  (ii) Other financial liabilities 41(C)(10)  833.55  83.26  916.81 

Provisions 41(C)(4)  1,465.79  (1,110.75)  355.04 

Employee benefit obligations 41(C)(10)  54.07  13.63  67.70 

Current tax provisions (net) 41(C)(10)  -  24.78  24.78 

Other current liabilities 41(C)(1 & 2)  753.68  (47.85)  705.83 

Total current liabilities  3,248.60  (1,036.94)  2,211.67 

Total Liabilities  4,612.86  (1,791.64)  2,821.22 

Total equity and liabilities  23,776.57  (989.54)  22,787.03 

	 *	 The previous GAAP figures have been reclassified to conform to Ind AS presentation requirements for the purposes of this note.
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	 (iii)   Reconciliation of total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2016

Notes to  
first-time 
adoption

Regrouped 
Previous GAAP *

Adjustments Ind AS

Revenue from operations  6,599.54  -  6,599.54 

Other income 41(C)(1)  248.04  55.65  303.69 

Total Income  6,847.58  55.65  6,903.23 

Expenses

Operating expenses  1,320.68  -  1,320.68 

Employee benefits expense 41(C)(7)  471.02  (6.90)  464.12 

Finance cost  1.59  -  1.59 

Depreciation and amortisation expense 41(C)(1, 2 & 3)  963.59  9.80  973.39 

Other Expenses  1,054.11  -  1,054.11 

Total expenses  3,810.99  2.90  3,813.89 

Profit before exceptional items and tax  3,036.59  52.75  3,089.34 

Exceptional items 41(C)(2 & 3)  (604.09)  604.09  - 

Profit before tax  3,640.68  (551.34)  3,089.34 

Tax expense :

Current tax  782.00  -  782.00 

Less : Minimum Alternative Tax Credit Entitlement  (782.00)  -  (782.00)

Deferred tax 41(C)(6 & 7)  1,274.11  (96.61)  1,177.50 

Total tax expense  1,274.11  (96.61)  1,177.50 

Profit for the year  2,366.57  (454.73)  1,911.84 

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Re-measurement of post-employment benefit 
obligations

41(C)(7)  -  6.90  (6.90)

Less: Income tax relating to these items 41(C)(7)  -  2.42  2.42 

Other comprehensive income for the year, 
net of tax

41(C)(7)  -  (4.48)  (4.48)

Total other comprehensive income for the year  2,366.57  (459.21)  1,907.36 

	 *	 The previous GAAP figures have been reclassified to conform to Ind AS presentation requirements for the purposes of this note.
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	 (iv)   Reconciliation of total equity as at 31 March 2016 and 1 April 2015

Notes to first-time 
adoption

31 March 2016 1 April 2015

Total equity (shareholder’s funds) as per previous GAAP  19,163.71  17,907.88 

Adjustments:

a) Deferred tax recognised 41(C)(6)  249.60  150.57 

b) Proposed dividend 41(C)(4)  1,110.75  - 

c) Exceptional items - Impairment reversal 41(C)(2 & 3)  (604.09)  - 

d) Depreciation on above impairment reversal 41(C)(2 & 3)  45.85  - 

Total adjustments  802.11  150.57 

Total equity as per Ind AS  19,965.82  18,058.45 

	 Reconciliation of total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2016

Notes to first-time 
adoption

31 March 2016

Profit after tax as per previous GAAP  2,366.57 
Add/(Less): Adjustmentsfor Ind AS
a) Deferred revenue on government grant 41(C)(1)  55.65 

b) Depreciation on government grant 41(C)(1)  (55.65)

c) Exceptional items - Impairment reversal 41(C)(2 & 3)  (604.09)

d) Depreciation on above impairment reversal 41(C)(2 & 3)  45.85 

e) Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations 41(C)(7)  6.90 

f) Deferred tax impact 41(C)(6)  96.61 

Net profit as per Ind AS  1,911.83 
Other comprehensive income
a) Re-measurement of post-employment benefit obligations 41(C)(6)  (6.90)

b) Less: Income tax relating to above 41(C)(6)  2.42 

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax  (4.48)
Total comprehensive income as per Ind AS  1,907.36 

	 Impact of Ind AS adoption on the statements of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2016

Notes to  
first-time 
adoption

Regrouped 
Previous 
GAAP*

Adjustments Ind AS

Net cash flow from operating activities 41(C)(10)  3,894.14  (0.08)  3,894.06 

Net cash flow from investing activities 41(C)(10)  (2,856.17)  3.24  (2,852.93)
Net cash flow from financing activities  (1.59)  -  (1.59)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 41(C)(10)  1,036.38  3.16  1,039.54 
Cash and cash equivalents as at 1 April 2015  155.45  -  155.45 
Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 March 2016 41(C)(10)  1,191.83  3.16  1,194.99 
Cash and cash equivalents as per previous GAAP 41(C)(10)  1,191.83  3.16  1,194.99 
Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of 
statement of cash flows 41(C)(10)  1,191.83  3.16  1,194.99 

	 * 	The previous GAAP figures have been reclassified to conform to Ind AS presentation requirements for the purposes of this note.
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C.	 Notes to first-time adoption :

1.	 Government Grant

	 As stated in the Note 2, on transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its 
property , plant and equipment recognised as at 1 April 2015 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying 
value as the deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment. However, in view of the Ind AS Transition Facilitation Group 
(ITFG) clarification bulletin dated 17 April 2017 the deemed cost of property, plant and equipment as at the transition date 
has been increased by INR 644.28 million being the unamortised Capital Subsidy/EPCG as on the date of the transition 
(Refer note 15 and 18). Consequent to the aforesaid adjustment, the Company has provided for incremental depreciation 
and also recognised deferred income (Refer note 20 and 24) to the extent of INR 55.65 million for the year ended 31 March 
2016 on the Government grant.

2.	 Plant, Property and Equipment

	 The Company has elected to apply the optional exemption as per Ind AS 101 to measure all of its property, plant and 
equipment, intangible assets as per previous GAAP at carrying value. In the year 2015-16, the Company based on physical 
assessment and business performance and financial projections for foreseeable future had reversed impairment provision 
on its fixed assets. However in the view of Accounting Standard Board (ASB) clarification on 30 June 2016, when an 
entity elects the deemed cost on the transition date (i.e. carrying values of PPE as per the previous GAAP) as the cost of 
its PPE, then any accumulated depreciation and provision for impairment under previous GAAP will have no relevance. 
Consequently, the reversal of impairment provision of INR 604.09 million in the year 2015-16 disclosed as exceptional item 
under previous GAAP will have no relevance. As a result: 

	 -	 Gross carrying value of PPE as at 31 March 2016 has decreased by INR 604.09 million. This has also resulted into 
decrease in depreciation by INR 45.85 million, and thus net impact on PPE as at 31 March 2016 is of INR 558.24 
million; and 

	 -	 Profit and total equity for the year ended 31 March 2016 has decreased by INR 558.24 million (exceptional item: 
reversal of impairment provision of INR 604.09 million less decrease in depreciation by INR 45.85 million)

3.	 In case of depreciation expense for the year ended 31 March 2016, the net impact of Ind AS adjustment mentioned in 
note 41 (C)(1) (increase in depreciation charge on Government Grant by INR 55.65 million) and 41 (C)(2) (decrease in 
depreciation charge by INR 45.85) is of increase in depreciation expense by INR 9.80 million. 

4.	 Proposed dividend 

	 Under the Indian GAAP, dividends proposed by the board of directors after the balance sheet date but before the approval 
of the Consolidated financial statements were considered as an adjusting events. Accordingly, provision for proposed 
dividend was recognised as a liability. Under Ind AS, such dividends are recognised when the same is approved by 
the shareholders in the general meeting. Accordingly, the liability for Proposed Dividend including Dividend Distribution 
Tax of INR 1,110.75 million as at 31 March 2016 (1 April 2015 – NIL) included under provisions has been reversed with 
corresponding adjustment to retained earnings. Consequently, the total equity increased by an INR 1,110.75 million

5.	 Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations

	 Under Ind AS, remeasurements i.e. actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan assets, excluding amounts included 
in the net interest expense on the net defined benefit liability are recognised in other comprehensive income instead of 
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. Under the previous GAAP, these remeasurements were forming part of the 
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss for the year. As a result of this change, the profit for the year ended 31 March 
2016 decreased by INR 4.49 million. There is no impact on the total equity as at 31 March 2016.

6.	 Deferred Tax

	 In accordance with the Indian GAAP the ‘deferred tax asset’ as of 31 March 2015 was not recognized, as they were 
not considered to be virtually certain of realization as of that date. With the adoption of Ind AS 12 effective 1 April 2016, 
the accounting standard requires the recognition of ‘deferred tax asset’ based on reasonable certainty, resulting in a 
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transitional adjustment to the Opening Balance Sheet as of 1 April 2015. Consequently, the deferred tax asset amounting 
to INR 150.57 million so recognised as at 1 April 2015 has been adjusted against the deferred tax liability during the 
financial year 2015-16.

	 Under previous GAAP, MAT is presented as separate line item in financial statement. Whereas under Ind AS same is 
required to be disclosed under deferred tax. There is no impact on the total equity and profit.

7.	 Other Comprehensive Income

	 Under Ind AS, all items of income and expense recognised in a period should be included in Statement of Profit and Loss 
for the period, unless a standard requires or permits otherwise. Items of income and expense that are not recognised in 
Statement of Profit or Loss but are shown in the Statement of Profit and Loss as ‘other comprehensive income’ includes 
remeasurement of defined benefit plans. The concept of other comprehensive income did not exist under previous GAAP.

8.	 Retained Earnings

	 Retained earnings as at 1 April 2015 has been adjusted consequent to the above Ind AS transition adjustments.

9.	 Interest Income 

	 The Company calculates the interest revenue by applying the effective interest method to the amortised cost of the 
financial asset in accordance with paragraph 5.4.1 (b) of Ind AS 109. Accordingly the Company has calculated the interest 
revenue by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount. In previous GAAP there was no concept of 
effective interest rate.

10.	 As required under paragraph (10C) of Ind AS 101 the Company has reclassified items that it recognised in accordance with 
previous GAAP as one type of asset, liability or component of equity, but are a different type of asset, liability or component 
of equity in accordance with Ind AS.

As per our report of even date attached.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered	 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Accountants LLP	 Gujarat Pipavav Port Limited
Chartered Accountants	 CIN:L63010GJ1992PLC018106
Firm Registration No: 012754N/N-500016

Priyanshu Gundana	 Keld Pedersen	 Pravin Laheri
Partner		  Managing Director	 Director
Membership No: 109553	 DIN : 07144184	 DIN: 00499080

		  Hariharan Iyer	 Manish Agnihotri
		  Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary

Ahmedabad		  Mumbai
11 May 2017		  11 May 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

To the Members of Gujarat Pipavav Port Limited

Report on the Consolidated Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) Financial Statements

1.	 We have audited the accompanying consolidated Ind AS financial statements of Gujarat Pipavav Port Limited (“hereinafter 
referred to as the Company”) and its associate company [refer Note (1)(B)] to the attached consolidated Ind AS financial 
statements), comprising of the consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2017, the consolidated Statement of Profit 
and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended and 
the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information prepared based on the relevant records (hereinafter referred to as “the Consolidated Ind AS Financial 
Statements”). 

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements 

2	 The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of these consolidated Ind AS financial statements in 
terms of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as “the Act”) that give a true and fair view of 
the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance, consolidated cash flows and changes in equity of the 
Company including its associate in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in India including the Indian 
Accounting Standards specified in the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) under Section 
133 of the Act. The Company’s Board of Directors is also responsible for ensuring accuracy of records including financial 
information considered necessary for the preparation of consolidated Ind AS financial statements. The respective Board of 
Directors of the Company and of its associate are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and its associate respectively and for preventing and 
detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgements 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which has been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated 
Ind AS financial statements by the Directors of the Company, as aforesaid.

Auditors’ Responsibility 

3.	 Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. While 
conducting the audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder including the 
accounting standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report.

4.	 We conducted our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing 
specified under Section 143(10) of the Act and other applicable authoritative pronouncements issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and pronouncements require that we comply with ethical requirements and 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated Ind AS financial statements are 
free from material misstatement.

5.	 An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated 
Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those 
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the consolidated 
Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view, in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness 
of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Board of Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
consolidated Ind AS financial statements.
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6.	 We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us, and matter specified in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified audit opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

7.	 a)	 The consolidated Ind AS financial statements include the Company’s share of net profit of Rs. 361.19 million, based on 
unaudited Ind AS financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2017 in respect of its associate company 
not audited by us. Further the comparative consolidated Ind AS financial information for the year ended 31 March 2016 
included in these consolidated Ind AS financial statements include Ind AS financial information of the associate company 
not audited by us. The Ind AS financial statement as at and for the year ended 31 March 2017 and the comparative Ind 
AS financial information as at and for the year ended 31 March 2016 in respect of the associate company is pending 
audit by their auditors. Our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements insofar as it relates to the amounts 
and disclosures included for the year ended on 31 March 2017 in respect of this associate company is based solely on 
such Ind AS financial information of the associate company for the year ended on 31 March 2017, as furnished to us by 
the Management of the Company.

	 b)	 Further, pending the audit of the associate company for the year ended on 31 March 2017 by their auditors, we are 
unable to report on the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting and operating effectiveness of 
such controls of the associate company incorporated in India as required to be reported by us.

Qualified Opinion 

8.	 In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for the effects of the 
matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph above, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements 
give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India of the consolidated state of affairs of the Company and its associate as 
at 31 March 2017, and their consolidated profit (including other comprehensive income), their consolidated cash flows and 
consolidated changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Other Matters

9.	 a)	 The comparative consolidated financial information of the transition date opening balance sheet as at 1 April 2015 
included in these consolidated Ind AS financial statements, are based on the previously issued statutory standalone 
financial statements of the Company as at and for the fifteen months period then ended and the financial statements 
of the associate company as at and for the year ended 31 March 2015 prepared in accordance with the Companies 
(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended) which were audited by other firms of Chartered Accountants who, vide 
their reports dated 25 May 2015 and 20 August 2015 respectively, expressed an unmodified opinion. The adjustments 
to those standalone financial statements of the Company for the differences in accounting principles adopted by the 
Company on transition to the Ind AS have been audited by us [Also refer note 7(a) above]. 

	 b)	 The standalone financial information of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2016 included in these consolidated 
Ind AS financial statements, are based on the previously issued statutory standalone financial statements of the Company 
as at and for the year ended 31 March 2016 prepared in accordance with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 
2006 (as amended) which were audited by us, on which we expressed an unmodified opinion dated 19 May 2016. 
The adjustments to those standalone financial statements of the Company for the differences in accounting principles 
adopted by the Company on transition to the Ind AS have been audited by us [Also refer note 7(a) above].

	 	 Our opinion is not qualified in respect of the above matters. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

10.	 As required by Section143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

	 (a)	 We have sought and, except for the possible effects of the matter described in the paragraph Basis for Qualified Opinion 
above, obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for 
the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements.
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	 (b)	 In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter described in the paragraph Basis for Qualified Opinion above, 
proper books of account as required by law maintained by the Company, its associate company incorporated in India 
including relevant records relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements have been 
kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books and records of the Company.

	 (c)	 The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive 
income), Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this 
Report, except for the possible effects of the matter described in the paragraph Basis for Qualified Opinion above, are 
in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained by the Company and its associate company incorporated in 
India including relevant records relating to the preparation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

	 (d)	 In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter described in the paragraph Basis for Qualified Opinion above, 
the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards specified under 
Section 133 of the Act.

	 (e)	 On the basis of the written representations received, except for the possible effects of the matter described in the 
paragraph Basis for Qualified Opinion above, from the directors of the Company as on 31 March 2017 taken on record 
by the Board of Directors of the Company none of the directors of the Company is disqualified as on 31 March 2017 from 
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

	 (f)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 
to us:

	 	 i.	 Except for the possible effects of the matter described in the paragraph Basis for Qualified Opinion above, the 
consolidated Ind AS financial statements disclose the impact, if any, of pending litigations as at 31 March 2017 on the 
consolidated financial position of the Company and its associate – Refer Note 33 to the consolidated Ind AS financial 
statements.

	 	 ii.	 Except for the possible effects of the matter described in the paragraph Basis for Qualified Opinion above, the 
Company and its associate did not have any material foreseeable losses on long term contracts as at 31 March 2017.

	 	 iii.	 There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the 
Company, and its associate company incorporated in India during the year ended 31 March 2017.

	 	 iv.	 Except for the possible effects of the matter described in the paragraph Basis for Qualified Opinion above, the 
Company has provided requisite disclosures in its consolidated Ind AS financial statements as to holdings as well 
as dealings in Specified Bank Notes during the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016 and based on 
audit procedures and relying on the management representation we report that the disclosures are in accordance 
with books of account maintained by the Company and as produced to us by the Management – Refer Note 40.

	 For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
	 Firm Registration Number: 012754N / N500016
	 Chartered Accountants

	 Priyanshu Gundana
Ahmedabad	 Partner
11 May 2017	 Membership Number 109553
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Consolidated Balance sheet as at 31 March 2017
(All amounts in Rupees Millions, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note No. As at
31 March 2017

As at
31 March 2016

As at
1 April 2015

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 3 (a)  16,753.33  13,417.13  14,016.54 
Capital work-in-progress 3 (b)  922.21  3,915.32  652.57 
Intangible assets 3 (c)  8.56  6.62  20.94 
Investment accounted for using the equity method 4 (a)  2,058.23  1,735.04  1,371.96 
Financial Assets
(i)	 Other financial assets 4 (b)  35.39  58.81  52.00 
Current tax assets (net) 5 (a)  304.16  378.72  353.81 
Deferred tax assets (net) 6 (b)  416.05  701.49  1,094.57 
Other non-current assets 7  170.96  1.25  479.29 
Total non-current assets  20,668.89  20,214.38  18,041.68 
Current assets
Inventories 8  155.58  154.93  134.89 
Financial Assets
(i)	 Trade receivables 9 (a)  285.73  288.49  355.97 
(ii)	 Cash and cash equivalents 9 (b)  534.01  1,194.99  155.45 
(iii)	 Bank balance other than (ii) above 9 (c)  2,988.44  1,754.02  2,345.32 
(iv)	Loans 9 (d)  2.40  3.00  2.72 
(v)	 Other financial assets 4 (b)  7.63  12.04  11.97 
Other Current assets 10  91.28  70.22  203.51 
Total current assets  4,065.07  3,477.69  3,209.83 
Total Assets  24,733.96  23,692.07  21,251.51 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share capital 11  4,834.40  4,834.40  4,834.40 
Other equity
(i)	 Reservs and surplus 12  16,588.81  16,036.45  13,766.01 
Total equity  21,423.21  20,870.85  18,600.41 
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i)	 Other financial liabilities 13  52.91  46.27  140.65 
Employee benefit obligations 14  14.22  30.25  25.30 
Other non-current liabilities 15  813.16  533.03  588.63 
Total non-current liabilities  880.29  609.55  754.58 
Current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
(i) Trade payables 16  256.35  141.51  270.77 
(ii) Other financial liabilities 13  846.93  916.81  438.12 
Provisions 17  366.16  355.04  363.04 
Employee benefit obligations 14  79.34  67.70  72.48 
Current tax provisions (net) 5 (b)  47.91  24.78  18.94 
Other current liabilities 18  833.77  705.83  733.17 
Total current liabilities  2,430.46  2,211.67  1,896.52 
Total Liabilities  3,310.75  2,821.22  2,651.10 
Total equity and liabilities  24,733.96  23,692.07  21,251.51 

The above Consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
As per our report of even date attached.
For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP For and on Behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Gujarat Pipavav Port Limited
Firm Registration No: 012754N/ N-500016 CIN:  L63010GJ1992PLC018106

Priyanshu Gundana Keld Pedersen Pravin Laheri
DirectorPartner Managing Director

Membership No: 109553 DIN : 07144184 DIN: 00499080

Hariharan Iyer  Manish Agnihotri 
Chief Financial Officer  Company Secretary 

Ahmedabad Mumbai
11 May 2017 11 May 2017
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Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2017
(All amounts in Rupees Millions, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note No. For the year ended
31 March 2017

For the year ended
31 March 2016

Revenue from operations 19  6,831.04  6,599.54 
Other income 20  315.59  303.69 
Total Income  7,146.63  6,903.23 

Expenses
Operating expenses 21  1,212.88  1,320.68 
Employee benefits expense 22  484.15  464.12 
Finance costs 23  4.03  1.59 
Depreciation and amortisation expense 24  1,065.15  973.39 
Other expenses 25  948.11  1,054.11 
Total expenses  3,714.32  3,813.89 

Profit before share of net profits of investments  
accounted for using equity method and tax  3,432.31  3,089.34 
Share of net profit of associates accounted for  
using the equity method

4 (a)
 361.19  363.09 

Profit before tax  3,793.50  3,452.43 
Tax expense :
For the year
	 Current tax 6 (a)  735.20  782.00 
	 Less : Minimum Alternative Tax Credit Entitlement 6 (a)  (656.91)  (782.00)
	 Deferred tax 6 (a)  892.90  1,177.50 
For earlier year
	 Adjustment of current tax  (49.73)  - 
	 Adjustment of Minimum Alternative Tax Credit Entitlement  49.73  - 
Total tax expense  971.19  1,177.50 
Profit for the year  2,822.31  2,274.93 
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(i)	 Re-measurement of post-employment benefit obligations  (0.99)  (6.90)
(ii)	 Share of other comprehensive income of associates  -  (0.01)
(iii)	 Less: Income tax relating (i) above  0.28  2.42 
(iv)	Less: Income tax relating (ii) above  -  - 
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax  (0.71)  (4.49)
Total comprehensive income for the year  2,821.60  2,270.44 
Earning per equity share [face value per share INR 10/- (31 March 2016: INR10/- )]
Basic earnings per share  5.84  4.71 
Diluted earnings per share  5.84  4.71 

The above Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

As per our report of even date attached.
For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP For and on Behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Gujarat Pipavav Port Limited
Firm Registration No: 012754N/ N-500016 CIN:  L63010GJ1992PLC018106

Priyanshu Gundana Keld Pedersen Pravin Laheri
DirectorPartner Managing Director

Membership No: 109553 DIN : 07144184 DIN: 00499080

Hariharan Iyer  Manish Agnihotri 
Chief Financial Officer  Company Secretary 

Ahmedabad Mumbai
11 May 2017 11 May 2017



118118

Consolidated Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2017
(All amounts are in Rupees Millions, unless otherwise stated)

A.	 Equity share capital
Notes Amounts

As at 1 April 2015  4,834.40 

Changes in the equity share capital 11  - 

As at 31 March 2016  4,834.40 

Changes in the equity share capital 11  - 

As at 31 March 2017  4,834.40 

B.	 Other equity

Attributable to owners of Gujarat Pipavav Port Limited

Reserves & Surplus

Total Other 
Equity

Particulars

Notes
Securities 
Premium 
Reserve

Retained 
Earnings

Balance at 1 April 2015 12(i)  14,288.87  (522.86)  13,766.01 

Profit for the year 12(ii)  -  2,274.93  2,274.93 

Other Comprehensive Income  (4.49)  (4.49)

Total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 
March 2016

 -  2,270.44  2,270.44 

Transaction with owners in their capacity as owners:

Dividends paid  -  -  - 

Balance at 31 March 2016  14,288.87  1,747.58  16,036.45 

Profit for the year  -  2,822.31  2,822.31 

Other Comprehensive Income  -  (0.71)  (0.71)

Total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 
March 2017

 -  2,821.60  2,821.60 

Transaction with owners in their capacity as owners:

Dividends paid ( Includes Dividend Distribution Tax) 12(ii)  -  (2,269.24)  (2,269.24)

Balance at 31 March 2017  14,288.87  2,299.94  16,588.81 

The above Consolidated Statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

As per our report of even date attached.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP	 For and on Behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants	 Gujarat Pipavav Port Limited
Firm Registration No: 012754N/ N-500016	 CIN:  L63010GJ1992PLC018106
	
Priyanshu Gundana	 Keld Pedersen	 Pravin Laheri
Partner	 Managing Director	 Director
Membership No: 109553	 DIN : 07144184	 DIN: 00499080

	 Hariharan Iyer	 Manish Agnihotri
	 Chief Financial Officer	 Company Secretary

Ahmedabad	 Mumbai
11 May 2017	 11 May 2017
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Consolidated Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2017
(All amounts in Rupees Millions, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended
31 March 2017

Year ended
31 March 2016

A. Cash flows from operating activities

Profit before tax  3,793.50  3,452.43 

Adjustments :

Share of profit of associate company  (323.19)  (363.09)

Deferred income recognised  (74.30)  (55.65)

Depreciation and amortisation expense  1,065.15  973.39 

Finance costs  4.03  1.59 

Interest income classified as investing cash flows  (189.47)  (217.87)

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment  20.15  61.35 

Sundry balances written back (net)  (0.98)  (16.21)

Write offs / provisions for current assets, loans and advances  -  23.79 

Foreign currency transactions and translations differences (net)  (4.36)  1.87 

Provision for claims  11.12  - 

Write down of Inventories  24.96  - 

 4,326.61  3,861.60 

Operating profit before working capital changes

Decrease in trade receivables  6.22  62.28 

Increase in inventories  (25.88)  (40.50)

(Increase)/Decrease in loans  0.60  (0.28)

Increase in other financial assets  (0.53)  (7.83)

(Increase)/Decrease in other non-current assets  (169.71)  478.04 

(Increase)/Decrease in other current assets  (21.06)  133.29 

Increase/(Decrease) in trade payables  117.30  (121.05)

Decrease in employee benefit obligations  (5.38)  (6.73)

Increase/(Decrease) in other financial liabilities  (64.68)  384.31 

Increase in non-current liabilities  373.08  - 

Increase/(Decrease) in other current liabilities  109.29  (48.00)

 319.25  833.53 

Cash generated from operations  4,645.86  4,695.13 

Income taxes paid  (587.78)  (801.07)

Net cash inflow from operating activities  4,058.08  3,894.06 
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Consolidated Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2017
(All amounts in Rupees Millions, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended
31 March 2017

Year ended
31 March 2016

B. Cash flows from investing activities

Payments for property, plant and equipment  (1,430.43)  (3,648.18)

(Payment for dismantling of fixed assets on disposal) /  
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets (net)  0.10  (14.92)

Interest received  167.46  231.45 

Decrease/(Increase) in deposits with banks (including earmarked balances) (net)  (1,184.05)  578.72 

Net cash outflow from investing activities  (2,446.92)  (2,852.93)

C. Cash flows from financing activities

Interest paid  (4.03)  (1.59)

Dividends paid to Company’s shareholders  (1,883.98)  - 

Dividend distribution tax paid on dividend  (383.82)  - 

Net cash outflow from financing activities  (2,271.83)  (1.59)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  (660.67)  1,039.54 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year  1,194.99  155.45 

Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents  (0.31)  - 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year  534.01  1,194.99 

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per the consolidated cash flow statement

31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Cash and cash equivalents as per above comprise of the following

Cash and cash equivalents [Refer note 9 (b)]  534.01  1,194.99 

Balance as per consolidated statement of cash flows  534.01  1,194.99 

The above Consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

As per our report of even date attached.
For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP For and on Behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Gujarat Pipavav Port Limited
Firm Registration No: 012754N/ N-500016 CIN: L63010GJ1992PLC018106

Priyanshu Gundana Keld Pedersen Pravin Laheri
DirectorPartner Managing Director

Membership No: 109553 DIN : 07144184 DIN: 00499080

Hariharan Iyer  Manish Agnihotri 
Chief Financial Officer  Company Secretary 

Ahmedabad Mumbai
11 May 2017 11 May 2017



121

GUJARAT PIPAVAV PORT LTD.
Annual Report 2016-17

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements  As at and for the year ended 31March 2017
(All amounts in Rupees Millions, unless otherwise stated)

1.	 (A) 	 Company overview

	 i.	 Gujarat Pipavav Port Limited, (“the Company”) was incorporated on 5 August 1992 to construct, operate and maintain 
an all-weather port at Pipavav, District Amreli, in the State of Gujarat.

	 ii.	 The port is designed to handle bulk, container, liquid cargo and RORO and to provide port services such as marine 
services, material handling and storage operations.

	 iii.	 The Company has entered into a 30 year Concession Agreement with Government of Gujarat and Gujarat Maritime 
Board (“GMB”) dated 30 September 1998 to engage in the business of developing, constructing, operating and 
maintaining the port on a BOOT (Build Own Operate Transfer) basis.

	 iv.	 During the year 2005, AP Moller-Maersk group together with certain financial investors acquired the complete 
shareholdings held by the original promoter viz. Seaking Infrastructure Limited (“SKIL”) group, on receipt of approval 
from Government of Gujarat, and Gujarat Maritime Board. Accordingly, AP Moller-Maersk group became the key 
promoter of the Company under the Concession agreement.

	 v.	 Pursuant to the approval of the shareholders of the Company in an extra ordinary general meeting held on 17 November 
2009, the Company has issued and allotted through Initial Public Offering (IPO) 108,695,652 equity shares of INR 10 
each at a premium of INR 36 per share aggregating to a total of INR 5,000 million to all categories of investors. The 
issue was made in accordance with the terms of the Company’s prospectus dated 30 August 2010 and the shares got 
listed on 9 September 2010 on Bombay Stock Exchange and National Stock Exchange.

	 (B)	 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

	 i.	 Associates

		  Associates are all entities over which the Company has significant influence but not control or joint control. This is 
generally the case where the Company holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates 
are accounted for using the equity method of accounting, after initially being recognised at cost.

	 ii.	 Equity method

		  Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to 
recognise the Company’s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee in The Consolidated Statement 
of Profit and Loss, and the Company’s share of other comprehensive income of the investee in other comprehensive 
income. Dividends received or receivable from associates are recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount of the 
investment.

		  When the Company’s share of losses in an equity-accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest in the entity, 
including any other unsecured long-term receivables, the Company does not recognise further losses, unless it has 
incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the other entity. 

		  Unrealised gains on transactions between the Company and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the 
Company’s interest in these entities. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of 
an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity accounted investees have been changed where 
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the group.

		  The carrying amount of equity accounted investments are tested for impairment in accordance with the policy described 
in note 2.9 below .

	 iii.	 Changes in ownership interests

		  When the Company ceases to equity account for an investment because of a loss of control or significant influence, 
any retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair value with the change in carrying amount recognised in 
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. This fair value becomes the initial carrying amount for the purposes of 
subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an associate. In addition, any amounts previously recognised in 
other comprehensive income in respect of that associate are accounted for as if the Company had directly disposed 
of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income 
are reclassified to profit or loss. 

	 	 If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but joint control or significant influence is retained, only a 
proportionate share of the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or 
loss where appropriate. 



122

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements  As at and for the year ended 31March 2017
(All amounts in Rupees Millions, unless otherwise stated)

	 iv.	 The Associate entity considered in the Consolidated financial statements is:

Sr. 
No. Name of the Company Country of

incorporation 
% voting power held
as at March 31, 2017

1 Pipavav Railway Corporation Limited 
(the ‘Associate Company’) India 38.78%

	 2.	 Significant accounting policies

		  This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these Consolidated financial 
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. 

	 2.1	 Basis of preparation of Consolidated financial statements 

		  (i)	 Compliance with Ind AS

		  The Consolidated financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 
notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 
2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act. 

	 	 The Consolidated financial statements up to year ended 31 March 2016 were prepared in accordance with the 
accounting standards notified under Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2006 (as amended) and other relevant 
provisions of the Act.

	 	 These Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017 are Company’s first Ind AS Consolidated 
financial statements. Refer note 43 for changes in Company’s financial position, financial performance and cash flows 
due to transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS. 

		  (ii)	 Historical cost convention

		  The Consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:

		  	 certain financial assets and liabilities and contingent consideration that is measured at fair value ; and 

		  	 defined benefit plans – plan assets measured at fair value

	 	 All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s operating cycle and other 
criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Act. Based on the nature of services and the time between the acquisition of 
assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating 
cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current and non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

	 2.2	 Use of estimates : 

		  The preparation of Consolidated financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make 
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and reported amounts of 
assets, liabilities, income and expenses and the disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date of the Consolidated 
financial statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are 
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognised prospectively in the accounting 
period in which such revision takes place. 

	 2.3	 Segment reporting

		  Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating 
decision maker.

	 	 Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer of the Company are the chief operating decision makers. Refer note 38 
for segment information presented.

	 2.4	 Foreign currency transactions

		  Items included in the Consolidated financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic 
environment in which the Company operates (‘the functional currency’). The Consolidated financial statements are 
presented in Indian Rupee (INR), which is Company’s functional and presentation currency. 
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		  Foreign currency transactions are recorded in Indian rupees using the rates prevailing on the date of the respective 
transactions. Exchange differences arising on foreign currency transactions settled during the period are recognised 
in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies 
as at the balance sheet date are translated into Indian Rupee at the closing exchange rates on that date; the resultant 
exchange differences are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. 

		  As at the balance sheet date non-monetary items denominated in foreign currency are carried at historical cost. All 
non-monetary items denominated in foreign currency are carried at historical cost or other similar valuations are 
reported using the exchange rate that existed when the values were determined.

	 2.5	 Revenue recognition 

		  The Company recognises revenue from rendering of services when services are rendered as per the contractual 
obligations, when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured and it is probable that the future economic benefits 
will flow to the entity.

		  Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. The amount disclosed as revenue 
is exclusive of service tax, education cess and net of trade allowance and rebates wherever applicable.

		  Interest income on deposits with bank is recognised on a time proportion basis at applicable interest rates.

	 2.6	 Government Grant

		  Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant 
will be received and the Company will comply with all attached conditions. 

	 	 Government grants relating to income are deferred and recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss 
over the period necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended to compensate and presented within 
other income. 

		  Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and equipment are included in non-current liabilities 
as deferred income and are credited to Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the 
expected lives of the related assets and presented within other income.

	 2.7	 Income taxes

		  Income tax expense comprises current tax (i.e. amount of tax for the period determined in accordance with the 
income-tax law) and deferred tax charge or credit (reflecting the tax effects of timing differences between accounting 
income and taxable income for the period).  Provision for current tax is based on the results for the year ended 31 
March, in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

		  Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of 
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the Consolidated financial statements. The deferred tax charge 
or credit and the corresponding deferred tax liabilities or assets are recognised using the tax rates and tax laws 
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognised for 
all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be 
available to utilise those temporary differences and losses. 

		  Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and 
liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities 
are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to 
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

	 	 Current and deferred tax is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it 
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised 
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively. 

		  Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) under the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 is recognised as deferred tax. The 
credit available under the said Act in respect of MAT is recognised as Deferred Tax Asset only to the extent there is 
convincing evidence that the Company will pay income tax in future periods and MAT credit can be carried forward to 
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set-off against the normal tax liability. MAT credit recognised as Deferred Tax Asset is reviewed at each Balance sheet 
date and written down to the extent there is no longer a convincing evidence to the effect that the Company will pay 
normal tax during the specified period.

	 2.8	 Leases

		  As a lessee

		  Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Company, as lessee, has substantially all the risks and rewards 
of ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s inception at the fair value 
of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding rental 
obligations, net of finance charges, are included in borrowings or other financial liabilities as appropriate. Each lease 
payment is allocated between the liability and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to the Consolidated Statement 
of Profit and Loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance 
of the liability for each period. 

	 	 Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the Company as 
lessee are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from 
the lessor) are charged to the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the period of 
the lease unless the payments are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the 
lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases. 

		  As a lessor

		  Lease income from operating leases where the Company is a lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line basis 
over the lease term unless the receipts are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate 
for the expected inflationary cost increases. The respective leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on 
their nature. Costs, including depreciation, incurred in earning the lease income are recognised as expenses.

	 2.9	 Impairment

		  Assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine if there is any indication of impairment. An impairment loss is 
recognised if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher 
of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash 
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of 
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or cash generating unit (CGU). 

		  For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets or CGU that 
generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs. 

	 	 Impairment losses are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. 

		  If as at the balance sheet date there is an indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists or 
has decreased, the assets or CGU’s recoverable amount is estimated. For assets, the impairment loss is reversed to 
the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, 
net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised. Such a reversal is recognised in the 
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

	 2.10	 Cash and cash equivalents

		  For the purpose of presentation in the Consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes 
cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original 
maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an 
insignificant risk of changes in value.

	 2.11	 Exceptional Items

		  Company recognises exceptional item when items of income and expenses within Consolidated Statement of Profit 
and Loss from ordinary activities are such size, nature or incidence that their disclosure is relevant to explain the 
performance of the enterprise for the period.
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	 2.12	 Inventories

		  Inventories comprise of stores, spares, loose tools, fuel and lubricants. Cost of inventories also include all other 
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Costs of purchased inventory are 
determined after deducting rebates and discounts. These are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value. 
Costs are assigned to individual items of inventory on the basis of first-in first-out basis. Systematic provisioning is 
made for inventories held for more than a year. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary 
course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

	 2.13	 Investment and Other Financial assets

		  (i)	 Classification

			   The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories :

			   l 	those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through 
profit or loss) ; and

			   l 	those measured at amortised cost

	 	 	 The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual 
terms of the cash flows.

	 	 	 For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in the Consolidated Statement of Profit 
and Loss or other comprehensive income. For investments in equity instruments, this will depend on whether the 
Company has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment 
at fair value through other comprehensive income.

		  (ii)	 Measurement

			   At initial recognition, the Company measures its financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of financial asset 
not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the 
financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in the 
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. 

			   Equity instruments

			   The Company initially measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the Company’s management has 
elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in other comprehensive income, there is no 
subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. 

	 	 	 Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in other gain/ 
(losses) in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. Impairment losses and reversal of impairment losses 
on equity investments measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from other changes in fair value. 

		  (iii)	 Impairment of financial assets 

			   The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried at 
amortised cost. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase 
in credit risk. 

		  (iv)	 Derecognition of financial assets 

			   A financial asset is derecognised only when 

			   l 	the Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset ;or 

			   l 	retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual 
obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients. 
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			   Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks 
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is derecognised. Where the 
entity has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset 
is not derecognised. 

	 	 	 Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of 
ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the Company has not retained control of the 
financial asset. Where the Company retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised 
to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset. 

		  (v)	 Income recognition

			   Dividends are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss only when the right to receive payment 
is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Company, and 
the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably. 

			   Transition to Ind AS

			   On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its investment in 
equity recognised as at 1 April 2015 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the 
deemed cost of the investment in equity.

	 2.14	 Offsetting financial instruments

		  Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a legally 
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset 
and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must 
be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company 
or the counterparty.

	 2.15	 Property, plant and equipment

		  Freehold land is carried at historical cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical 
cost less depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly 
attributable to the acquisition of items. Cost may also include transfers from equity of any gains or losses on qualifying 
cash flow hedges of foreign currency purchases of property, plant and equipment.

		  Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, 
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost 
of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is 
derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the Consolidated Statement of Profit 
and Loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

		  Transition to Ind AS

		  On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and 
equipment recognised as at 1 April 2015 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the 
deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment. 

		  Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

		  Depreciation is provided on the straight-line method, over the estimated useful life of each asset from the subsequent 
month of the date of purchase. Assets are depreciated as per useful life specified in Part ‘C’ of the schedule II of the 
Act. Based on internal technical evaluation following assets have a different useful life than prescribed by schedule II 
of the Act.
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Asset Details Life as per Schedule II

in Years

Technical Estimate

in Years

Ship to Shore Cranes 15 20

Power Distribution Systems 10 15

Carpeted Roads 10 20

Jetties Not defined 30

Dredging Not defined 50

Boundary Wall Not defined 20

Old Residential Complex 60 15

Marine Office Building 60 15

Warehouses 30 15

Guest houses 30 15

	 	 All assets costing individually INR 125,000 or less are depreciated fully in the year of purchase.

		  The useful lives are reviewed by the management at each reporting date and revised, if appropriate. In case of a 
revision, the unamortised depreciable amount is charged over the revised remaining useful life.

	 	 A fixed asset is eliminated from the Consolidated financial statements on disposal or when no further benefit is 
expected from its use and disposal. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with 
carrying amount. These are included in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss within other gains/ (losses). 

		  In accordance with Concession agreement all contracted immovable and movable assets shall be transferred to and 
shall vest in Gujarat Maritime Board ('GMB') at the end of the concession period, for consideration equivalent to the 
Depreciated Replacement Value (DRV). Since the DRV is currently not determinable, fixed assets are depreciated 
based on their estimated useful life.

	 2.16	 Acquired intangible assets 

		  Intangible assets that are acquired by the Company are measured initially at cost. After initial recognition, an intangible 
asset is carried at its cost less any accumulated amortisation and / or any accumulated impairment loss, if any. 

	 	 Intangible assets are amortised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss using the straight line method over 
their estimated useful lives, from the date that they are available for use. Accordingly, at present, these are being 
amortised on straight line basis based on the period of the licence in case of licensed software or for 3 years. Such 
intangible assets that are not yet available for use are tested annually for impairment. 

		  Amortisation method and useful lives are reviewed at each reporting date. If the useful life of an asset is estimated to 
be significantly different from previous estimates, the amortisation period is changed accordingly.

	 	 An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use and 
disposal. 

		  Losses arising from retirement and gains or losses arising from disposal of an intangible asset are measured as 
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the 
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

		  Transition to Ind AS

		  On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of intangible assets 
recognised as at 1 April 2015 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of 
intangible assets.  
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	 2.17	 Employee benefits

		  (i)	 Short-term obligations 
		  Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 

months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of 
employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when 
the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet. 

		  (ii)	 Post-employment obligations

		  Defined contribution plans:
		  A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays specified contributions to a 

separate entity and has no obligation to pay any further amounts. The Company makes specified monthly contributions 
towards employee provident fund to Government administered provident fund scheme which is a defined contribution 
plan. The Company’s contribution is recognised as an expense in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss 
during the period in which the employee renders the related service

		  Defined benefit plan: 
	 	 The Company’s gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company’s net obligation in respect of a defined 

benefit plan is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their 
service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value. Any unrecognised past 
service costs and the fair value of any plan assets are deducted. The calculation of the Company’s obligation under 
the plan is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method, which recognises each 
period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to 
build up the final obligation. The discount rates used for determining the present value of the obligation under defined 
benefit plan, are based on the market yields on Government securities as at the Balance sheet date.

	 	 All expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in employee benefits expense in the Consolidated 
Statement of Profit and Loss. The Company recognises gains and losses on the curtailment or settlement of a defined 
benefit plan when the curtailment or settlement occurs.

		  The Company has funded its gratuity liability with Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC) under the Group Gratuity 
cum Life Assurance (Cash Accumulation) Scheme.

	 	 The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation 
and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefits expense in the Consolidated Statement of 
Profit and Loss. 

		  Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are 
recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in retained 
earnings in the Consolidated statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet. 

	 	 Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are 
recognised immediately in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss as past service cost. 

		  (iii)	 Other Long term employee benefit obligation 
		  The employees can carry-forward a portion of the unutilised accrued compensated absences and utilise it in future 

service periods or receive cash compensation on termination of employment. Since the compensated absences do not 
fall due wholly within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service and 
are also not expected to be utilized wholly within twelve months after the end of such period, the benefit is classified as 
a long-term employee benefit obligations.The Company records an obligation for such compensated absences in the 
period in which the employee renders the services that increase this entitlement. The obligation is measured on the 
basis of independent actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method. Actuarial losses/ gains are recognised 
in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they arise.

		  The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional 
right to defer settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting period, regardless of when the actual settlement 
is expected to occur.
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	 2.18	 Provisions

		  A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation 
that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses. 

	 	 Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is 
determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an 
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small. 

		  Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the 
present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-
tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The 
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest expense. 

	 2.19	 Contingent liabilities

		  A contingent liability exists when there is a possible but not probable obligation, or a present obligation that may, but 
probably will not, require an outflow of resources, or a present obligation whose amount cannot be estimated reliably. 
Contingent liabilities do not warrant provisions, but are disclosed unless the possibility of outflow of resources is 
remote.

	 2.20	 Earnings per share (EPS)

		  The basic EPS is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity shareholders for the period by the 
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is computed by dividing the 
net profit attributable to the equity shareholders for the period by the weighted average number of equity and dilutive 
equity equivalent shares outstanding during the period, except where the results would be anti-dilutive.

	 2.21	 Dividends

		  Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriately authorised and no longer at the 
discretion of the entity, on or before the end of the reporting period but not distributed at the end of the reporting period. 

	 2.22	 Contributed equity

		  Equity shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are 
shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds. 

	 2.23 	Investment in Associate Company

		  Investment in associate are recognised at cost as per Ind AS 27. Except where investments accounted for at cost shall 
be accounted for in accordance with Ind AS 105, Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations, when 
they are classified as held for sale.

	 2.24	 Financial instruments measured at fair value

		  Financial instruments measured at fair value can be divided into three levels:

	 	 Level 1 – Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities; 

	 	 Level 2 – Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either 
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices);

	 	 Level 3 – Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data. Fair value of listed securities 
fall within level 1 of the fair value hierarchy. Non-listed shares and other securities fall within level 3 of the fair value 
hierarchy.

	 	 Fair value of level 3 assets and liabilities are primarily based on the present value of expected future cash flows. A 
reasonably possible change in the discount rate is not estimated to affect the Company’s profit or equity significantly.
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Notes to the Consolidated financial statements  As at and for the year ended 31March 2017
(All amounts in Rupees Millions, unless otherwise stated)

4(a)(i)	 Interests in Associates
	 Set out below is the associate of the company as at 31 March 2017 which, in the opinion of the directors, are material to the 

group. The entity listed below have share capital consisting solely of equity shares, which are held directly by the company. 
The country of incorporation or registration is also their principal place of business, and the proportion of ownership interest 
is the same as the proportion of voting rights held.

Name of entity Place of 
business

% of 
ownership 

interest
Relationship Accounting 

method

Quoted fair value Carrying amount #

31 March 
2017

31 March 
2016

1 April 
2015

31 March 
2017

31 March 
2016

1 April 
2015

Pipavav Railway 
Corporation 
Limited

India 38.78% Associate Equity 
method * * *  2,058.23  1,735.04  1,371.96 

	 Pipavav Railway Corporation Limited engages in the construction, operation, and maintenance of a railway line connecting 
Port of Pipavav to Surendranagar Junction of Western Railway in Gujarat. Its railway system provides single window 
transport solutions for the movement of bulk and containerized cargo.

	 *  Unlisted entity – No quoted price available.

	 #  Also refer note 41 and 42 (A.3)

	 Reconciliation to carrying amounts

31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015

Opening carrying amount  1,735.04  1,371.96  830.00 

Effect of transitional provisions provided in Accounting Standard 23 
-Accounting for Investments in Associates in Consolidated Financial 
Statements [Refer note 41 and 42 (A.3)]  -  -  541.96 

Profit for the year  361.19  363.09  - 

Other comprehensive income  -  (0.01)  - 

Dividend received  (38.00)  - -

Closing net assets  2,058.23  1,735.04  1,371.96 

4 (b)	 Other financials assets

As at
31 March 2017

As at
31 March 2016

As at
1 April 2015

Non current Current Non current Current Non current Current 

Security deposits  35.39  7.63  30.45  12.04  22.69  11.97 

Bank Deposits (Refer note below)  -  -  28.36  -  29.31  - 

Total other financials assets  35.39  7.63  58.81  12.04  52.00  11.97 

	 Note :	 Of the above, bank deposits aggregating NIL (31 March 2016: INR 26.66 million, 1 April 2015: INR 27.91 million) is marked lien 
against bank guarantees issued to custom authorities and other third parties.
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5 (a)	 Current tax assets (net)

As at
31 March 2017

As at
31 March 2016 As at 1 April 2015

 Advance Tax * 304.16 378.72 353.81 

 Total Current tax assets (net) 304.16 378.72 353.81 

	 * Net of Provision for tax of INR 1,440.35 million (March 2016 : INR 657.00 million, March 2015 : INR 657.00 million)

  (b)	 Current tax provisions (net)

As at
31 March 2017

As at
31 March 2016

As at
1 April 2015

 Provision for tax # 47.91 24.78 18.94 

 Total Current tax provisions (net) 47.91 24.78 18.94 

	 # Net of Advance tax of INR 687.29 million (March 2016 : INR 1,044.21million, March 2015 : INR 268.06 million)

6	 Deferred tax assets

	 a.  	 Tax expense recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Current tax

Current year  735.20  782.00 

MAT credit entitlement  (656.91)  (782.00)

Total  78.29  - 

Deferred tax  892.90  1,177.50 

Total income tax expense/(credit)  971.19  1,177.50 

	 Reconciliation between the statutory income tax rate applicable to the Company and the effective income tax 
rate of the Company is as follows :

31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Accounting profit before tax  3,793.50  3,452.43 

Applicable tax rate of the reporting entity 34.608% 34.608%

Expected total tax expense  1,312.85  1,194.82 

Amount charged in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss  971.19  1,177.50 

Difference  341.66  17.32 

Tax effect of amounts which are (not deductible) /allowable in calculating  
taxable income:

(i)	 Expenditures not deductible for tax purpose  (8.46)  (21.98)

(ii) 	 Share of profit of associate company  125.00  125.66 

(iii) 	 Impact of Tax Holiday u/s 80 IA *  335.72  - 

(iv) 	 Change in Tax Rate  -  2.74 

(v)  	Others  (110.60)  (89.10)

Total  341.66  17.32 

	 * As per the provisions of Indian Tax laws, the Company is eligible for a tax holiday under section 80IA of the Income Tax Act, 1961 
for a block of 10 consecutive Assessment years out of the 15 years beginning of port operations. Accordingly, the Company is entitled 
to tax holiday commencing from 1 April 2007 until 31 March 2017. Minimum Alternative Tax will apply after lower of unabsorbed book 
loss or depreciation is adjusted against book profits during the years of tax holiday.



134

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements  As at and for the year ended 31March 2017
(All amounts in Rupees Millions, unless otherwise stated)

  (b) (i)	 Deferred tax relates to the following:

31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April  2015

Tax losses  -  797.08  1,821.94 

Expenditure deductible on payment basis  81.73  56.72  161.69 

Defined benefit obligations  17.32  20.95  33.23 

MAT credit entitlement  2,333.18  1,726.00  944.00 

Total deferred tax assets  2,432.23  2,600.75  2,960.86 

Set-off of deferred tax liabilities pursuant to set-off 
provisions  (2,016.18)  (1,899.26)  (1,866.29)

Net deferred tax assets  416.05  701.49  1,094.57 

	 Deferred tax liabilities

31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April  2015
On difference between book depreciation and tax 
depreciation  2,016.18  1,899.26  1,866.29 

Total deferred tax liabilities  2,016.18  1,899.26  1,866.29 

  (b) (ii)	 Movement in deferred tax assets

Tax losses Expenditure 
deductible 

on Payment 
Basis

Defined 
benefit 

obligations

On difference 
between book 

depreciation and 
tax depreciation

Total

At 1 April 2015  1,821.94  161.69  33.23  (1,866.29)  150.57 

(Charged)/credited:

- 	 to Consolidated Statement of Profit and 
Loss

 
(1,024.86)  (104.97)  (14.70)  (32.97)  (1,177.50)

-	 to other comprehensive income  -  -  2.42  -  2.42 

At 31 March 2016  797.08  56.72  20.95  (1,899.26)  (1,024.51)

(Charged)/credited:

- 	 to Consolidated Statement of Profit and 
Loss  (797.08)  25.01  (3.91)  (116.92)  (892.90)

- 	 to other comprehensive income  -  -  0.28  -  0.28 

At 31 March 2017  -  81.73  17.31  (2,016.18)  (1,917.13)
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7	 Other non-current assets

As at
31 March 2017

As at
31 March 2016

As at
1 April 2015

 Capital advances 170.96 1.25 479.29 

 Total other non-current assets 170.96 1.25 479.29 

8	 Inventories

As at
31 March 2017

As at
31 March 2016

As at
1 April 2015

 Stores and spares  130.35 146.33 129.04 

 Goods-in-transit - Stores and Spares 25.23 8.60 5.85 

 Total inventories 155.58 154.93 134.89 
	 Amounts recognised in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
	 Write-downs of inventories including provision for inventory amounts to INR 24.96 million (31 March 2016 : INR 20.46 

million). These were recognised as an expense (Refer note - 25) during the year and included in other expenses in 
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

9 (a)	 Trade receivables

As at
31 March 2017

As at
31 March 2016

As at
1 April 2015

Trade receivables  156.97  148.54  206.62 

Receivables from related parties [Refer note - 37(b)]  148.23  160.11  167.25 

Less: Allowance for doubtful debts [Refer note -28(a)]  (19.47)  (20.16)  (17.90)

Total trade receivables  285.73  288.49  355.97 

	 Break-up of security details

Secured, considered good  49.16  48.64  46.10 

Unsecured, considered good  236.57  239.85  309.87 

Doubtful  19.47  20.16  17.90 

Total  305.20  308.65  373.87 

 Allowance for doubtful debts  (19.47)  (20.16)  (17.90)

Total trade receivables  285.73  288.49  355.97 

9 (b)	 Cash and cash equivalents	

As at
31 March 2017

As at
31 March 2016

As at
1 April 2015

Cash on hand 0.05 0.19 0.30 

Balances with banks

- In current accounts 137.12 210.60 63.43 

- In Exchange Earners' Foreign Currency accounts 396.84  - 0.68 

Deposits with original maturity of less than three 
months  - 984.20 91.04 

 Total cash and cash equivalents 534.01 1,194.99 155.45 
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9 (c)	  Other bank balances

As at
31 March 2017

As at
31 March 2016

As at
1 April 2015

Deposits with original maturity of more than three 
months but less than 12 months * 2,986.47 1,753.49 2,344.79 

Unpaid share application money 0.53 0.53 0.53 

Unpaid dividend account 1.44  -  - 

 Total other bank balances 2,988.44 1,754.02 2,345.32 

	 *	 Of the above, bank deposits aggregating INR 21.11 Million (31 March 2016: NIL, 1 April 2015 : NIL) is marked lien against bank 
guarantees issued to customs and other third parties.

9 (d)	 Loans

As at
31 March 2017

As at
31 March 2016

As at
1 April 2015

Loan and advance to employees  2.40  3.00  2.72 

Total loans  2.40  3.00  2.72 

10	 Other current assets

As at
31 March 2017

As at
31 March 2016

As at
1 April 2015

 Advance for supply of goods and services 67.31 48.69 34.26 

 Receivable under Served From India Scheme    -  - 123.25 

 Prepaid expenses  13.39 13.23 14.03 

 CENVAT receivables 9.97 8.22 23.61 

 Other receivables 0.61 0.08 8.36 

 Total other current assets 91.28 70.22 203.51 

11	 Equity share capital

As at
31 March 2017

As at
31 March 2016

As at
1 April 2015

Authorised share capital

600,000,000 (31 March 2016 : 600,000,000, 1 April  2015 : 
600,000,000) equity shares of INR 10 each  6,000.00  6,000.00  6,000.00 

 6,000.00  6,000.00  6,000.00 

Issued, subscribed and paid up share capital

483,439,910 (31 March 2016 : 483,439,910, 1 April 2015 :  
483,439,910) equity shares of INR 10 each, fully paid-up  4,834.40  4,834.40  4,834.40 

 4,834.40  4,834.40  4,834.40 
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 a)	 Reconciliation of number of equity shares outstanding as at the beginning and at the end of reporting period

Particulars As at
31 March 2017

As at
31 March 2016

As at
1 April 2015

Number INR Number INR Number INR

Equity shares at the 
commencement of the period

 
483,439,910 

 
4,834.40 

 
483,439,910 

 
4,834.40 

 
483,439,910 

 
4,834.40 

Issued during the period  -  -  -  -  -  - 

At the end of the period  
483,439,910  4,834.40 

 
483,439,910 

 
4,834.40 

 
483,439,910 

 
4,834.40 

b)	 Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares
	 The Company has a single class of equity shares. Accordingly, all equity rank equally with regard to dividends and share 

in the Company's residual assets. The equity shares are entitled to receive dividend as declared from time to time. The 
voting rights of an equity shareholder on a poll (not on show of hands) are in proportion to its share of the paid-up equity 
capital of the Company. Voting rights cannot be exercised in respect of shares on which any call or other sums presently 
payable have not been paid.

	 On winding up of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the residual assets of the Company, 
remaining after distribution of all preferential amounts in proportion to the number of equity shares held.

c)	 Equity shares in the Company held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares #

Name of Shareholder Relationship As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016 As at 1 April 2015

Number Percentage Number Percentage Number Percentage

APM Terminals Mauritius 
Limited

Party with 
substantial 
interest

 207,903,931 43.01%  207,903,931 43.01%  207,903,931 43.01%

	 # As per the records of the Company, including its register of members.

12	 Reserves and surplus

As at
31 March 2017

As at
31 March 2016

As at
1 April 2015

 Securities premium reserve [Refer note- (i) below]  14,288.87  14,288.87  14,288.87 

 Retained earnings [Refer note- (ii) below]  2,299.94  1,747.58  (522.86)

 Total reserves and surplus  16,588.81  16,036.45  13,766.01 

	 (i)	 Securities premium reserve *

As at
31 March 2017

As at
31 March 2016

 Opening balance  14,288.87  14,288.87 

 Closing balance  14,288.87  14,288.87 

	 * Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act.
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	 (ii)	  Retained earnings 

As at
31 March 2017

As at
31 March 2016

 Opening balance  1,747.58  (522.86)

 Net profit for the year  2,822.31  2,274.93 

Items of other comprehensive income  recognised directly in 
retained earnings
 Effect of transitional provisions 

 - Remeasurements of post employment benefit obligation, net of tax  (0.71)  (4.49)

 Dividends 
 - Final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2016  (918.54)  - 

 - Dividend distribution tax on final dividend for the year  
  ended 31 March 2016

 (186.99)  - 

 - Interim dividend for the year ended 31 March 2017  (966.88)  - 

- Dividend distribution tax on interim dividend for the year 
   ended 31 March 2017 

 (196.83)  - 

 Closing balance  2,299.94  1,747.58 

13	 Other financial liabilities

As at
31 March 2017

As at
31 March 2016

As at
1 April 2015

Non-current Current Non-current Current Non-current Current 

 Retention monies payable  25.71  98.60  19.05  130.87  50.25  28.39 

 Security deposits received  27.20  65.50  27.22  64.80  90.40  0.55 

 Capital creditors  -  588.79  -  637.33  -  302.09 

 Unclaimed dividend (Refer note below)  -  1.44  -  -  -  - 

 Unclaimed share application money  -  0.53  -  0.53  -  0.53 

 (Refer note below)

 Other payables *  -  92.07  -  83.28  -  106.56 

Total other financial liabilities  52.91  846.93  46.27  916.81  140.65  438.12 

	 Note : There are no amounts due for payment to the Investor Education and Protection Fund under Section 125 of The Companies Act 
2013 as at the year end.

	 * Includes INR 32.72 million (31 March 2016 : INR 64.52 million) payable to related parties

14	 Employee benefits obligations

As at
31 March 2017

As at
31 March 2016

As at
1 April 2015

Non-current Current Non-current Current Non-current Current 

 Leave obligations [Refer note (i) below]  -  17.68  -  14.33  -  12.00 

 Gratuity [Refer note (ii) below]  5.08  11.34  11.59  11.72  2.92  9.29 

 Other employee benefits payables  9.14  50.32  18.66  41.65  22.38  51.19 

Total employee benefits obligations  14.22  79.34  30.25  67.70  25.30  72.48 
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(i)  	 Compensated absences
	 The leave salary is payable to all eligible employees for each day of accumulated leave on death or on resignation or upon 

superannuation. Amount charged to the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss on account of compensated absences 
during the year is INR 7.43 million (31 March 2016: INR 3.68 million) and is included in Note 22 - ‘Employee benefits 
expenses’. Accumulated current provision for compensated absences aggregates to INR 17.68 million (31 March 2016: 
INR 14.33 million; 1 April 2015: 12.00 million) (Refer note 14).

(ii)  	 Post-employment obligations - Gratuity
	 The Company makes annual contribution to the Employee’s Group Gratuity-cum-Life Assurance Scheme of the Life 

Insurance Corporation of India, a funded defined benefit plan for employees. The scheme provides for lump sum payment 
to vested employees at retirement, death while in employment or on termination of employment of an amount equivalent 
to 15 days salary payable for each completed year of service or part thereof in excess of six months. Vesting occurs upon 
completion of five years of service. Gratuity payments due to employees are processed disregarding the upper limits 
specified by Income Tax Act, 1961 and The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972.

	 The amount recognised in the balance sheet and movements in the net defined benefit obligation over the years are as 
follows :

Present value of 
obligation

Fair value of plan 
assets Net amount 

Balance as at 1 April 2015  37.17  (24.96)  12.21 
Current service cost  5.02  -  5.02 
Interest expense / (income)  2.94  -  2.94 
Return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in interest 
(expense) / income  -  (1.98)  (1.98)
Total amount recognised in Consolidated Statement of 
Profit and Loss  7.96  (1.98)  5.98 
Remeasurements
(Gain) / loss from change in financial assumptions  (0.13)  -  (0.13)
Experience (gain) / loss  6.78  0.25  7.03 
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income  6.65  0.25  6.90 
Employers contributions  -  (1.78)  (1.78)
Benefit payments  (9.38)  9.38  - 
Balance as at 31 March 2016  42.40  (19.09)  23.31 

Present value of 
obligation

Fair value of plan 
assets

Net amount

1 April 2016  42.40  (19.09)  23.31 
Current service cost  6.15  -  6.15 
Interest expense / (income)  3.37  -  3.37 
Return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in 
interest (expense) / income  -  (1.52)  (1.52)
Total amount recognised in Consolidated Statement of 
Profit and Loss  9.52  (1.52)  8.00 
Remeasurements
(Gain) / loss from change in demographic assumptions  (0.31)  -  (0.31)
(Gain) / loss from change in financial assumptions  3.44  -  3.44 
Experience (gain) / loss  (1.17)  (0.97)  (2.14)
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income  1.96  (0.97)  0.99 
Employers contributions  (15.88)  (15.88)
Benefit payments  (3.40)  3.40  - 
31 March 2017  50.48  (34.06)  16.42 
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The net liability disclosed above relates to funded plans are as follows :

 31 March 2017  31 March 2016  1 April 2015 

Present value of funded obligations  (50.48)  (42.40)  (37.17)

Fair value of plan assets  34.06  19.09  24.96 

Deficit of funded plan (Gratuity)  (16.42)  (23.31)  (12.21)

	 The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows :

 31 March 2017  31 March 2016  1 April 2015 

Discount rate 7.12% 7.95% 7.92%

Salary growth rate 8.00% 8.00% 8.00%

Expected rate of return on plan assets 7.12% 7.95% 7.92%

Attrition rate 6.00% 4.00% 4.00%

Mortality Indian Assured lives 
mortality (2006-08)

Indian Assured lives 
mortality (2006-08)

Indian Assured lives 
mortality (2006-08)

 31 March 2017  31 March 2016

Projected Benefit Obligation on Current Assumptions  50.48  42.40 

Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Discounting  (4.10)  (3.95)

Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Discounting  4.74  4.63 

Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase  4.65  4.58 

Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase  (4.11)  (3.98)

Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover  (0.42)  (0.15)

Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover  0.46  0.16 

  	 Category of assets
 31 March 2017  31 March 2016  1 April 2015 

Insurance fund (100%)  34.06  19.09  24.96 

Total  34.06  19.09  24.96 

(iii)  	 Risk exposure :

	 Though its defined benefits plan, the Company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed 
below

	 Changes in bond yields
	 A decrease in bond yield will increase plan liabilities, although this will be partially offset by increase in the plan's bond 

holding

	 Asset volatility
	 The plan liabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with reference to bond yields; if plan assets underperform this 

yield, this will create a deficit. Plan assets are invested with the Life Insurance Corporation of India Limited. It is subject to 
interest rate risk. The Company intends to maintain the above investments in the continuing years.

	 Maturity Analysis of Projected Benefit Obligation: From the Fund
	 Projected Benefits Payable in Future Years From the Date of Reporting
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 31 March 2017  31 March 2016 

1st Following Year  2.85  2.50 

2nd Following Year  2.87  1.80 

3rd Following Year  3.06  2.01 

4th Following Year  5.00  2.10 

5th Following Year  4.16  3.94 

Sum of Years 6 To 10  22.29  16.52 

Total  40.23  28.87 

15  	 Other non-current  liabilities

As at
31 March 2017

As at
31 March 2016

As at
1 April 2015

Deferred income on Government Grant  
[Refer note - 42 (C)(1)]  813.16  533.03  588.63 

Total other non-current  liabilities  813.16  533.03  588.63 

16  	 Trade payables

As at
31 March 2017

As at
31 March 2016

As at
1 April 2015

Trade payables  198.01  128.73  217.73 

Dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (Refer note-39)  1.00  0.29  1.51 

Trade payables to related parties [Refer note - 37(b)]  57.34  12.49  51.53 

Total Trade payables  256.35  141.51  270.77 

17  	 Provisions

As at
31 March 2017

As at
31 March 2016

As at
1 April 2015

Claims (Refer note - 33)  366.16  355.04  363.04 

Total provisions  366.16  355.04  363.04 

18  	 Other current  liabilities
As at

31 March 2017
As at

31 March 2016
As at

1 April 2015
Deferred income on Government Grant  
[Refer note - 42(C)(1)]  74.30  55.65  55.65 
Statutory dues payables  4.41  10.54  45.02 
Accruals of Incentives and Rebates  535.44  442.60  419.02 
Income received in advance  3.31  5.30  5.60 
Advance from customers  216.31  191.74  207.88 
Total other current  liabilities  833.77  705.83  733.17 

19  	 Revenue from operations
For the year ended

31 March 2017
For the year ended

31 March 2016

 Income from port services  6,233.20  6,049.04 

 Other operating revenue  597.84  550.50 

Total revenue from operations  6,831.04  6,599.54 
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20  	 Other income
For the year ended

31 March 2017
For the year ended

31 March 2016

 Interest income 

 - banks  189.38  216.91 

 - others  0.09  0.96 

 Interest on income tax refund  36.84  - 

 Deferred Income recognised  74.30  55.65 

 Miscellaneous income   14.98  30.17 

Total other income  315.59  303.69 

21  	 Operating expenses
For the year ended

31 March 2017
For the year ended

31 March 2016

Handling expenses  958.19  1,037.49 

Waterfront royalty (Refer note - 34)  160.46  152.59 

Business support service charges  47.00  52.79 

Other direct costs  47.23  77.81 

Total operating expenses  1,212.88  1,320.68 

22  	 Employee benefits expense
For the year ended

31 March 2017
For the year ended

31 March 2016

 Salaries, wages and bonus  424.17  408.98 

 Contribution to provident fund and other funds (Refer note below)  19.64  19.64 

 Gratuity [Refer note - 14(ii)]  8.00  5.98 

 Leave compensation [Refer note - 14(i)]  7.43  3.68 

 Staff welfare expenses  24.91  25.84 

Total employee benefits expense  484.15  464.12 

	 The Company recognised INR 19.64 million (31 March 2016 : INR 19.64 million) for provident fund contribution in the 
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

23  	 Finance cost

For the year ended
31 March 2017

For the year ended
31 March 2016

 Financial charges  4.03  1.59 

Total finance costs  4.03  1.59 

24  	 Depreciation and amortisation expense

For the year ended
31 March 2017

For the year ended
31 March 2016

 Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  1,059.60  958.39 

 Amortisation of intangible assets  5.55  15.00 

Total depreciation and amortisation expense  1,065.15  973.39 
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25  	 Other expenses

For the year ended
31 March 2017

For the year ended
31 March 2016

 Power and fuel  255.72  248.32 
 Rent (Refer note - 32)  22.04  19.22 
 Repairs  
  - Building  10.48  24.25 
  - Machinery and equipment  170.23  177.89 
  - Others  55.28  162.48 
 Insurance  34.40  37.46 
 Rates and taxes  1.68  2.49 
 Travelling expenses  63.39  85.43 
 Legal and professional fees   70.40  61.72 
 Commission to Directors  15.00  - 
 Expenditure towards Corporate Social Responsibility   21.37  27.47 
 [Refer note 25(a) below] 
 Payment to auditors   4.02  3.55 
 [Refer note 25(b) below] 
 Advertisement and sales promotion  8.18  12.76 
 Communication expenses  7.27  6.48 
 Loss on sale / disposal of fixed assets (net) [Including costs for dismantling of assets 
of Nil (31 March 2016 : 35.71 million)]  20.15  61.35 
 Loss on foreign currency transactions and translations (net)  32.73  1.87 
 Bad debts and advances written off (net)  -  1.07 
 Provisions for inventory (net) (Refer note - 8)  -  20.46 
 Provisions for doubtful debts (net) [Refer note - 9(a)]  -  2.26 
 Provision for claims (Refer note - 33)  11.12  - 
 Freight and forwarding  3.34  5.70 
 Water charges expenses  28.34  12.73 
 Contract labour expenses  56.93  44.16 
 Write down of Inventories  24.96  - 
 Miscellaneous expenses  31.08  34.99 

Total other expenses  948.11  1,054.11 

25 (a) 	Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

For the year ended 
31 March 2017

For the year ended 
31 March 2016

Amount required to be spent as per Section 135 of the Act 	 63.96 	 43.53 

Amount spent during the year 	 21.37@ 	 20.76 #

(i) Construction/ acquisition of any asset 	 - 	 - 

(ii) On purposes other than (i) above 	 21.37 	 20.76 

Total corporate social responsibility expense 	 21.37 	 20.76 

	 @	Excludes advance paid of INR 19.06 million (31 March 2016: INR 4.05 million) for the year ended 31 March 2017. Company has 
committed to spend INR 51.52 million (31 March 2016: INR 12.30 million) for the year ended 31 March 2017.

	 # 	 Excludes amount of INR 6.71 million spent during the year since such was approved to be spent during the period ended 31 March 
2015.
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25 (b) 	Details of payment to auditors

For the year ended 
31 March 2017

For the year ended 
31 March 2016

Payment to auditor

As auditor

Audit fee 2.25 1.57

Tax audit fee 0.21 0.87

Limited review of quarterly results 1.09 1.09

In other capacity 

Other services 0.43  - 

Reimbursement of expenses 0.04 0.02

Total payment to auditor 4.02 3.55

26.	 Transfer Pricing

	 The Company’s international transactions with related parties are at arm’s length as per the independent accountants’ 
report for the year ended 31 March 2016. Management believes that the Company’s international transactions with related 
parties post 31 March 2016 continue to be at arm’s length and that the transfer pricing legislation will not have any impact 
on these Consolidated financial statements, particularly on amount of tax expenses and that of provision of taxation.

27.	 Fair Value of financial assets and liabilities carried at amortised cost

	 There are no financial assets and liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss or other comprehensive income. 
All the financial instruments are carried at amortised cost. 

31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015

Carrying 
amount

Fair Value Carrying 
amount

Fair Value Carrying 
amount

Fair Value

Financial Assets

Non- Current Other financial assets

Security deposits 35.39 35.39 30.45 30.45 22.69 22.69

Bank deposits - - 28.36 28.36 29.31 29.31

Current Other financial assets       

Security deposits 7.63 7.63 12.04 12.04 11.97 11.97

Loans and advances to employees 2.40 2.40 3.00 3.00 2.72 2.72

Trade receivables 285.73 285.73 288.49 288.49 355.97 355.97

Cash and cash equivalents 534.01 534.01 1,194.99 1,194.99 155.45 155.45

Bank balance 2,988.44 2,988.44 1,754.02 1,754.02 2,345.32 2,345.32

Total Financial Assets 3,853.60 3,853.60 3,311.35 3,311.35 2,923.43 2,923.43

Financial Liabilities

Non- Current Other financial liabilities

Retention monies payable 25.71 25.71 19.05 19.05 50.25 50.25

Security deposits received 27.20 27.20 27.22 27.22 90.40 90.40
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Current Other financial liabilities

Trade payables 256.35 256.35 141.51 141.51 270.77 270.77

Retention monies payable 98.60 98.60 130.87 130.87 28.39 28.39

Security deposits received 65.50 65.50 64.80 64.80 0.55 0.55

Capital creditors 588.79 588.79 637.33 637.33 302.09 302.09

Unclaimed dividend 1.44 1.44 - - - -

Unclaimed share application money 0.53 0.53 0.53 0.53 0.53 0.53

Other payables 92.07 92.07 83.28 83.28 106.56 106.56

Total Financial Liabilities 1,156.19 1,156.19 1,104.59 1,104.59 849.54 849.54

	 Financial instruments carried at amortised cost

	 Fair value of the current financial assets and current financial liabilities carried at amortised cost is not materially different 
from the carrying amount. In general, fair value is determined primarily based on the present value of expected future cash 
flows. 

28.	 Financial risk management

	 The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
	 (a)	 Credit risk
	 (b)	 Liquidity risk
	 (c)	 Market risk

	 The Company’s overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to 
minimise the potential adverse effects on the Company’s financial performance. Risk management is carried out by finance 
department under policies approved by the Board of Directors. 

	 (a)	 Credit risk
	 The Company has exposure to financial and commercial counterparties but has no particular concentration of customers 

or suppliers. To minimise the credit risk, security deposits and advance payments are taken from all major customers. 
Our historical experience of collecting receivables, supported by the level of default, is that credit risk is low and so trade 
receivables are considered to be a single class of financial assets. 

	 Expected credit loss for trade receivables under simplified approach.

	 For the year ended 31 March 2017:

Ageing Not Due 0-90 Days 90-180 
Days

180-270 
Days

270-365 
Days

> 365   
Days Total

Gross Carrying amount 225.00 55.27 9.87 2.68 0.61 11.77 305.20

Expected credit losses - 3.95 2.59 0.71 0.45 11.77 19.47

Carrying amount of Trade 
receivables

225.00 51.32 7.28 1.97 0.16 - 285.73

	 For the year ended 31 March 2016:

Ageing Not Due 0-90 Days 90-180 
Days

180-270 
Days

270-365 
Days

> 365   
Days Total

Gross Carrying amount 184.28 71.61 26.10 15.74 0.28 10.64 308.65

Expected credit losses - 0.67 2.57 6.13 0.15 10.64 20.16

Carrying amount of Trade 
receivables

184.28 70.94 23.53 9.61 0.13 - 288.49
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	 As at 1 April 2015:

Ageing Not Due 0-90 Days 90-180 
Days

180-270 
Days

270-365 
Days

> 365   
Days Total

Gross Carrying amount 251.99 78.56 22.77 8.55 3.65 8.35 373.87

Expected credit losses - 0.90 2.42 3.06 3.17 8.35 17.90

Carrying amount of Trade 
receivables

251.99 77.66 20.35 5.49 0.48 - 355.97

	 (b)	 Liquidity risk
	 Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of 

funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities to meet obligations when due and to close out market 
positions. Management monitors Company’s liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents through Quarterly rolling 
forecasts and on the basis of expected cash flows. Company treasury maintains flexibility in funding through committed 
credit lines with Financial Institution.

	 Maturities of financial liabilities
	 The following table shows the maturity analysis of the Company's financial liabilities based on contractually agreed 

undiscounted cash flows as at the Balance Sheet date. Balances due within 12 months and more than 12 months equal 
their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant. 

Notes Carrying 
Amount

Payable on 
Demand

Less than 
12 months

More than 
12 months

As at 31 March 2017

Trade payables 16       256.35 -     256.35 -
Retention monies payable 13 124.31 64.44 34.16 25.71
Security deposits received 13 92.70 65.50 - 27.20
Capital creditors 13 588.79 - 588.79 -
Unclaimed dividend 13 1.44 1.44 - -
Unclaimed share application money 13 0.53 0.53 - -
Other payables 13 92.07 - 92.07 -

As at 31 March 2016

Trade payables 16         141.51 -        141.51 -
Retention monies payable 13 149.92 44.02 86.85 19.05
Security deposits received 13 92.02 64.80 - 27.22
Capital creditors 13 637.33 - 637.33 -
Unclaimed share application money 13 0.53 0.53 - -
Other payables 13 83.28 - 83.28 -

As at 1 April 2015

Trade payables 16         270.77 -           270.77 -
Retention monies payable 13 78.64 - 28.39 50.25
Security deposits received 13 90.95 0.55 - 90.40
Capital creditors 13 302.09 - 302.09 -
Unclaimed share application money 13 0.53 0.53 - -
Other payables 13 106.56 - 106.56 -

	 As there is no committed credit facilities to meet obligations when due and to close out market positions, the Company is 
not exposed to liquidity risk.

	 (c)	 Market risk
	 Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, will affect the Company’s profit or 

the value of its holdings of financial instruments. Below sensitivity analyses relate to the position of financial instruments 
at 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016. It is assumed that the exchange rate sensitivities have a symmetric impact, i.e. an 
increase in rates results in the same absolute movement as a decrease in rates.
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	 The sensitivity analyses show the effect on profit or loss and equity of a reasonably possible change in exchange rates and 
interest rates.

	 Foreign Currency risk

	 The Company is exposed to foreign currency risk arising from foreign currency transactions, primarily with respect to USD 
and EURO. The Company’s business model incorporates assumptions on currency risk and ensures any exposure is 
covered through the normal business operations. As the functional reporting currency is in INR, the foreign currency risk 
exists for the Company. 

	 Foreign currency exposure not covered by Forward Contracts as at 31 March 2017: 

Details
USD Exposure EURO Exposure

INR USD INR Euro

Receivables/Advance to Vendor 141.50 2.18 - -
159.51 2.41 - -

Payables 50.14 0.77 7.01 0.10
32.83 0.50 0.02       @

Cash and Bank Balance 396.84 6.12 - -

       @      @ - -

	 @ Amount is below the rounding off norm adopted by the Company.
	 Amounts in italics represent amounts as at 31 March 2016

Details Impact on profit after tax

31 March 2017 31 March 2016

USD sensitivity
INR/USD -Increase by 10% (31 March 2016-10%) 48.82 12.67

INR/USD -Decrease by 10% (31 March 2016-10%) (48.82) (12.67)

EUR sensitivity
INR/EUR -Increase by 10% (31 March 2016-10%) (0.70) -

INR/EUR -Decrease by 10% (31 March 2016-10%) 0.70 -

29.	 Capital Management
	 The Company's objective in managing its capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to optimize 

returns to our shareholders. The Company considers the following components of its Balance Sheet to be managed 
capital: 

	 1) Share Capital, 2) Share Premium; and 3) Retained Earnings

	 The Company's capital structure is based on the Managements assessment of the balances of key elements to ensure 
strategic decisions and day to day activities. The capital structure of the Company is managed with a view of the overall 
macro-economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets.

	 The Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital structure with a focus to mitigate all existing and potential risks to the 
Company, maintain shareholder, vendor and market confidence and sustain continuous growth and development of the 
Company.

	 The Company's focus is on keeping a strong total equity base to ensure independence, security, as well as high financial 
flexibility without impacting the risk profile of the Company. In order, to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company 
will take appropriate steps as may be necessary. The Company does not have any debt or financial covenants.

	 The Management monitors the return on capital as well as the level of dividend to shareholders. The Company goal is 
to continue to be able to provide return to shareholders by continuing to distribute dividends in future period. Refer the 
following table for the final and interim dividend declared and paid.
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	 Dividends

 31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015

(a)    Equity shares

(i)	 Final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2016 of INR 1.90 per fully 
paid share  918.54  -     -   

       Corporate dividend tax on above       186.99               -                 -   

(ii) Interim dividend for the year ended 31  March 2017 of INR 2.00 per fully 
paid share

      966.88               -                 -   

      Corporate dividend tax on above       196.83               -                 -   

(b)  Dividends not recognised at the end of the reporting period        870.19 918.54               -   

The directors have recommended the payment of a final dividend of INR 
1.80 per fully paid equity share (31 March 2016 – INR 1.90). This proposed 
dividend is subject to the approval of shareholders in the ensuing annual 
general meeting.

30.	 Traffic guarantee commitment
	 The Company has entered into tripartite Transportation and Traffic Guarantee Agreement with Pipavav Railway Corporation 

Limited (PRCL) and Indian Railways, to provide minimum volumes of 3 million metric tonnes for every Financial Year. The 
Company has consistently met its volume commitment from Financial Year 2010-11 till date and there is no shortfall on 
account of minimum traffic guarantees to be paid.

31.	 Capital and other commitments
	 (a) 	Capital commitments on account of Capital expenditure contracted and obligation under Export Promotion Capital 

Goods (‘EPCG’) at the end of the reporting period but not recognised as liabilities is as follows :

Particulars 31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015

(a)	 Capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the reporting period 
but not recognised as liabilities (net of advances)

(b)	 Bonds/Undertaking given by the Company under Concessional 
Duty / Exemption scheme to the Government Authorities (net of 
obligations fulfilled)

277.44

2,692.54

723.02

2,692.54

2,355.76

77.21

	 (b) 	During the year 2005 and prior to AP Moller Maersk group acquiring the complete shareholdings held by the original 
promoters, SKIL group, the Company had provided commitment of INR 350 million (31 March 2016: INR 350 million; 
1 April 2015: INR 350 million) towards consortium lending to a SKIL Group Company, Pipavav Shipyard Limited 
conditional to fulfilment of certain obligations by Pipavav Shipyard Limited and other parties. This arrangement has 
been closed and the Company is in the process of seeking discharge from this commitment. IL&FS (lead manager in 
the consortium) would be releasing the Company of its commitment once it receives a “No Dues certificate” from the 
Government of Gujarat.

32.	 Lease 
	 (i)  	 The Company has taken operating leases for office premises, concession agreement with GMB (including lease 

rental payable as per High Court order). These lease arrangements include both cancellable and non-cancellable 
leases. The leases have varying terms, escalation clauses and renewal rights. On renewal, the terms of the leases 
are renegotiated. 

	 (ii) 	 Lease payments of INR 22.04 million (31 March 2016 INR 19.22 million) recognised in Consolidated Statement of 
Profit and Loss are shown as "Rent" under Other Expenses in Note 25.

	 (iii) 	The future minimum lease payments payable under the said non-cancellable operating lease for rented premises are 
as follows:
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(INR in million)

Particulars 31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015

Payable within one year
Payable between one and five years
Payable more than 5 years

18.43
60.65
85.59

17.71
61.56
98.48

17.14
84.99
110.31

	 (iv) 	The Company has given a total area of 1,111,813 Square Mtr. (31 March 2016: 1,111,813 Square Mtr.; 1 April 2015: 
1,111,813 Square Mtr.) of land on lease to various customers. The lease is upto 2028 which is the end of the concession 
period.

	 (v) 	 Operating lease rental income of INR 225.98 million (31 March 2016 INR 198.46 million) recognised in Consolidated 
Statement of Profit and Loss is included in Other Operating Revenue in Note 19.

	 (vi) 	The future minimum lease payments receivable under the said non-cancellable operating lease for rented premises 
are as follows:	 	

Particulars 31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015

Receivable within one year
Payable between one and five years
Receivable more than five years

169.81
834.79

1,631.70

158.81
830.66

1,658.74

157.54
812.21

1,867.67

33.	 Provisions and Contingent liabilities 

	 Claims against Company not acknowledged as debt aggregates to INR 1,869.30 million (31 March 2016: INR 1,838.07 
million; 1 April 2015: INR 1,823.14 million). Provisions made in respect of the same aggregates to INR 365.04 million (31 
March 2016: INR 355.04 million; 1 April 2015: INR 355.04 million).

	 Above claim includes disputed claim with the associate company, Pipavav Railway Corporation Limited of INR 699.33 
million (31 March 2016: INR 699.33 million; 1 April 2015: INR 699.33 million).

	 Other contingent liabilities in respect of taxation matter not acknowledged as debt aggregates to INR 1.57 million (31 
March 2016: INR 14.17 million; 1 April 2015: INR 38.27 million). Provisions made in respect of the same is INR 1.12 million 
(31 March 2016: NIL; 1 April 2015: INR 8.00 million). 

	 Movement in provisions

Litigations / Disputes Taxation Matters

31 March 
2017

31 March 
2016

1 April 2015 31 March 
2017

31 March 
2016

1 April 2015

At the commencement of the year 355.04 355.04 355.22 -- 8.00 21.80

Provision made during the year 10.00 -- 0.32 1.12 -- --

Provision reversed during the year -- -- (0.50) -- (8.00) (13.80)

At the end of the year 365.04 355.04 355.04 1.12 -- 8.00

	 Future cash outflows in respect of above are determinable only on receipt of judgements/decisions pending with various 
authorities/forums and/or final outcome of the matters.

34.	 Concession Agreement with Government of Gujarat

	 Pursuant to the Concession agreement with the Government of Gujarat and Gujarat Maritime Board (GMB) dated 30 
September 1998, the Company is entitled towards government assistance and accordingly have discharged its liability 
towards waterfront royalty subject to the conditions led down in the aforesaid agreement.
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35.	 Earnings per share

Year ended 
31 March 2017

Year ended 
31 March 2016

Profit for the year (A) 2,822.31 2,274.93
Calculation of weighted average number of equity shares
Number of equity shares at the beginning of the year 483,439,910 483,439,910 
Number of equity shares at the end of the year 483,439,910 483,439,910 
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year (B) 483,439,910 483,439,910
Basic and diluted earnings per share (INR ) (A/B) 5.84 4.71

36.	 Interest in other entities
	 Interest in associate
	 Set out below is the associate of the Company as at 31 March 2017 which, in the opinion of the directors, is material 

to the Company. The entity listed below have share capital consisting solely of equity shares, which is held directly by 
the Company. The country of incorporation or registration is also their principal place of business, and the proportion of 
ownership interest is the same as the proportion of voting rights held. 	

Name of Entity Place of 
Business

% of  
ownership

Relationship Accounting 
method

Carrying amount

31 March 2017 31 March 2016 31 March 2015

Pipavav Railway 
Corporation Limited

New Delhi 38.78 Associate Equity 
Method

830.00 830.00 830.00

37.	 Related party transactions 

	 (a) 	List of related parties and their relationship

Relation Party
A.	 Party with substantial interest and its affiliates (i)	 APM Terminals Mauritius Limited, Mauritius

(ii)	 APM Terminals Management (Singapore) Pte Limited, Singapore
(iii)	 APM Terminals Management B.V., The Netherlands
(iv)	 Maersk Line A/S, Denmark (formerly known as A.P. Moller - Maersk A/S)
(v)	 APM Terminals India Private Limited, India
(vi)	 Maersk Line India Private Limited, India
(vii)	 GPRO Services India Private Limited, India
(viii)	 Maersk Training India Private Limited, India
(ix)	 Gateway Terminals India Private Limited, India
(x)	 APM Terminals Gothenburg, Gothenburg
(xi)	 Maersk Training Svendborg A/s, Denmark

B. 	Associate Pipavav Railway Corporation Limited
C. 	Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Key 

managerial personnel
A)	 Executive directors
Mr. Keld Pedersen (Managing director) (w.e.f. 1 May 2015)
Mr. Prakash Tulsiani (Managing director) (up to 31 March 2015)

B)	 Non-Executive directors
Mr. Tejpreet Singh Chopra (Director)
Ms. Hina Shah (Director)
Mr. Pradeep Mallick (Director)
Mr. Pravin Laheri (Director)
Mr. Jan Damgaard Sorensen (up to 16 September 2016)*
Mr. Ahmed Hassan – (from 10 October 2016)*
Mr. Rizwan Soomar*
Mr. A.K.Rakesh –(up to 7 September 2016)*

C)	 Key managerial personnel 
Mr. Hariharan Iyer (Chief Financial Officer)

	 * No transaction during the year
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Name of Non-Executive Directors/Key 
Managerial personnel

Fees for attending Board/
Committee meetings

Commission Managerial 
Remuneration 

Total

Mr. Tejpreet Singh Chopra 0.60
0.50

6.00
-

- 6.60
0.50

Ms. Hina Shah 0.95
0.75

3.00
-

- 3.95
0.75

Mr. Pradeep Mallick 1.00
0.90

3.00
-

- 4.00
0.90

Mr. Pravin Laheri 1.10
1.00

3.00
-

- 4.10
1.00

Mr. A.K Rakesh -
0.10

-
-

- -
0.10

Mr. Keld Pedersen - - 33.59
41.04

 33.59
41.04

Mr. Hariharan Iyer - - 21.22
17.15

21.22
17.15

Mr. Prakash Tulsiani # - - 9.20 9.20

	 Amounts in italics represent amounts as at 31 March 2016
	 # Tax on Managerial Remuneration paid on behalf of Mr. Prakash Tulsiani as per agreement.

38.	 Segment reporting
	 Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating 

Decision Maker ("CODM") of the Company. Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer of the Company are the chief 
operating decision makers. The Company operates only in one Business Segment i.e. ‘Port Services' which primarily 
includes services such as Marine services, Berth hire, Wharfage, Container Handling, Yard Operations, Stevedorage 
and the activities incidental thereto within India, hence does not have any reportable Segments as per Indian Accounting 
Standard 108 "Operating Segments".

	 The Company having combined revenue of more than 10% of the total revenue from related parties amounts to INR 
1,185.11 million.

39.	 Other notes 
	 Dues to Micro and Small suppliers
	 Under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 ('MSMED Act') which came into force from 2 

October 2006, certain disclosures are required to be made relating to Micro, Small and Medium enterprises. On the 
basis of the information and records available with the Company, the details of outstanding dues to the Micro and Small 
enterprises as defined in the MSMED Act, 2006 as set out in the following disclosures: 

31 March 
2017

31 March 2016 1 April 2015

Principal amount due to any supplier as at the year end 0.95 0.24 1.46

Interest due on the principal amount unpaid at the year end to any supplier 0.05 0.05 0.05

Principal amounts paid to the suppliers beyond appointed day during the year 0.79 0.58 2.33

Interest paid, other than under Section 16 of the MSMED Act, to supplier beyond 
the appointed day during the year - - -

Interest paid, under Section 16 of the MSMED Act, to supplier beyond the 
appointed day during the year - @ -

Interest due and payable towards supplier for the payments already made @ @ 0.05

Further interest remaining due and payable for earlier years 0.05 0.05 -

	 @ Amount is below the rounding off norm adopted by the Company.
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40.	 Details of Specified Bank Notes (SBN) held and transacted during the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 
2016

	 (Amount in INR)

Particulars SBNs Other denomination 
notes

Total

Closing cash in hand as on 08 November 2016            225,000                        21,012              246,012 

(+) Permitted receipts -   -   -   

(+) Receipts for non-permitted transactions *        10,500                      376,021      386,521

(-) Permitted payments            -                                     -                   -   

(-) Amount deposited in Banks      235,500                                   -         235,500

(-) Paid for non-permitted transactions               -                      307,326       307,326

Closing cash in hand as on 30 December 2016           -                          89,707        89,707

	 * This pertains to collections in transit on 9 November 2016 and 10 November 2016 which were subsequently deposited in 
bank account.

	 Note: Permitted receipt and permitted payments are not specifically defined in the notification. However, these would 
include transactions of receipt and payment of Specified Banking Notes as permitted by Reserve Bank of India from time 
to time. These would include payment for the medical treatment (hospitalisation in Government hospitals, medicine etc.), 
purchase at consumer cooperative stores operated under authorisation of Central or State Government, purchase of bus 
tickets at government bus stands, train tickets at railway station, air tickets at airport, toll charges at National Highway, 
utility bills, purchase of LPG/gas cylinders, school fees, payment towards any fees, charges, taxes or penalties, payable 
to the Central or State Government including Municipal and local bodies and fuel purchase etc.

41.	 More than 50% of PRCL’s shareholding is held by Government/Public Sector Undertaking and it is therefore subject to a 
CAG Audit and associate company's audited Ind AS financial statements for the year ended 31 Match 2017 and 31 March 
2016 are yet to be released. Hence, company's share of net profit and other comprehensive income of INR 361.19 million 
and Nil for the year ended 31 March 2017 and share of net profit and other comprehensive income of INR 363.09 million 
and INR 0.71 million respectively for the year ended 31 March 2016 in respect of the associate company, included in 
the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statement of Company is based on associate company's management prepared Ind 
AS Financial information. The statutory auditors' have qualified their audit opinion on the Consolidated Ind AS financial 
statements stating that Company's share of net profit and other comprehensive income of INR 361.19 million and Nil 
respectively are based on un-audited financial information of the associate company.

42.	 First-time adoption of Ind AS

	 Transition to Ind AS

	 These are the Company’s first Consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with Ind AS.

	 The accounting policies set out in note 2 have been applied in preparing the Consolidated financial statements for the 
year ended 31 March 2017, the comparative information presented in these Consolidated financial statements for the 
year ended 31 March 2016 and in the preparation of an opening consolidated Ind AS balance sheet at 1 April 2015 (the 
Company’s date of transition). In preparing its opening Ind AS balance sheet, the Company has adjusted the amounts 
reported previously in Consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with the accounting standards notified 
under Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended) and other relevant provisions of the Act (previous 
GAAP or Indian GAAP). An explanation of how the transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS has affected the Company’s 
financial position, financial performance and cash flows is set out in the following tables and notes.

A.	 Exemptions and exceptions availed

	 Set out below are the applicable Ind AS 101 optional exemptions and mandatory exceptions applied in the transition from 
previous GAAP to Ind AS. 
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A.1	 Ind AS optional exemption
	 a)	 Deemed Cost
		  Ind AS 101 permits a first-time adopter to elect to continue with the carrying value for all of its property, plant and 

equipment as recognised in the Consolidated financial statements as at the date of transition to Ind AS, measured 
as per the previous GAAP and use that as its deemed cost as at the date of transition after making necessary 
adjustments for de-commissioning liabilities. This exemption can also be used for intangible assets covered by Ind AS 
38 Intangible Assets. 

		  Accordingly, the Company has elected to measure all of its property, plant and equipment and intangible assets at their 
previous GAAP carrying value. 

	 b)	 Designation  of previously recognised financial instruments
		  Ind AS 101 allows an entity to use the deemed cost in its opening balance sheet for investment in associate company.
		  Accordingly, the Company has elected to apply this exemption for its investment in equity investment. 
	 c)	 Leases 
		  Appendix C to Ind AS 17 requires an entity to assess whether a contract or arrangement contains a lease. In accordance 

with Ind AS 17, this assessment should be carried out at the inception of the contract or arrangement. Ind AS 101 
provides an option to make this assessment on the basis of facts and circumstances existing at the date of transition 
to Ind AS, except where the effect is expected to be not material. 

	 	 The Company has elected to apply this exemption for such contracts/arrangements.
A.2	 Ind AS mandatory exceptions
	 a)	 Estimates
		  An entity’s estimates in accordance with Ind ASs at the date of transition to Ind AS shall be consistent with estimates 

made for the same date in accordance with previous GAAP (after adjustments to reflect any difference in accounting 
policies), unless there is objective evidence that those estimates were in error. 

		  Ind AS estimates as at 1 April 2015 are consistent with the estimates as at the same date made in conformity with 
previous GAAP. The Company made estimates for Impairment of financial assets based on expected credit loss model 
in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition as these were not required under previous GAAP.

	 b)	 Classifications and measurement of financial assets
		  Ind AS 101 requires an entity to assess classification and measurement of financial assets  on the basis of the facts 

and circumstances that exist at the date of transition to Ind AS. Consequently, the Company has applied the above 
assessment based on facts and circumstances exist at the transition date.

A.3	 a)	 Pursuant to the applicability of sub section 3 of Section 129 of the Act to the Company w.e.f. 1 April 2015, the 
Company had prepared for the first time Consolidated financial statements for the financial year 2015-16 under 
previous GAAP. In such Consolidated financial statements prepared under previous GAAP, impact of transitional 
provisions as provided in Accounting Standard (AS) 23 ‘Accounting for Investment in Associates in Consolidated 
Financial Statements’ notified under Section 211(3C) of the Companies Act, 1956 [Companies (Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2006, as amended] was effected for the amount of investment in the associate company as at 1 April 2015. 
Consequent to the aforesaid impact of transitional provisions (i) Cost of investment in the associate company of INR 
830.00 million includes goodwill of INR 400.41 million; and (ii) The difference between value of investment as per 
equity method and carrying amount of the Investment of the associate company as at 31 March 2015 amounting to 
INR 541.96 million was adjusted to the balance of the retained earnings as at 1 April 2015.

	 b)	 Ind AS 101 "First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards" provides the option to apply Ind AS 103 prospectively 
from the transition date or from a specific date prior to the transition date. This provides relief from full retrospective 
application that would require restatement of all business combinations prior to the transition date. The Company 
elected to apply Ind AS 103 prospectively to business combinations occurring after its transition date. Business 
combinations occurring prior to the transition date have not been restated. Accordingly, the Company has elected to 
measure its investment in associate company at the carrying value determined as at 1 April 2015 as explained in the 
para–(a) above.

	 c)	 Since the Company has not reported consolidated equity as at 1 April 2015 in accordance with previous GAAP and 
therefore the Company has not included reconciliation of its consolidated equity at the date of transition to Ind AS.
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B.  	 Reconciliations between previous GAAP and Ind AS 

	 Ind AS 101 requires an entity to reconcile equity, total comprehensive income and cash flows for prior periods. The 
following tables represent the reconciliations from previous GAAP to Ind AS.

  (i)  	 Reconciliation of equity as at 31 March 2016

Notes to first-
time adoption

Regrouped 
Previous GAAP* Adjustments Ind AS

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 42(C)(1 & 2)  13,386.73  30.40  13,417.13 
Capital work-in-progress  3,915.32  -  3,915.32 
Intangible assets  6.62  -  6.62 
Investments accounted for using the equity  
method  1,688.73  46.31  1,735.04 
Financial Assets
  (i) Other financial assets  58.81  -  58.81 
Current Tax Assets (Net) 42(C)(10)  353.94  24.78  378.72 
Deferred tax assets (net) 42 (C)(6 & 10)  -  701.49  701.49 
Other non-current assets 42(C)(6)  1,727.25  (1,726.00)  1.25 
Total non-current assets  21,137.40  (923.02)  20,214.38 
Current assets
Inventories  154.93  -  154.93 
Financial Assets
   (i) Trade receivables 42(C)(10)  293.50  (5.01)  288.49 
   (ii) Cash and cash equivalents  1,194.99  -  1,194.99 
   (iii) Bank balance other than (ii) above  1,754.02  -  1,754.02 
   (iv) Loans  3.00  -  3.00 
  (v) Other financial assets  12.04  -  12.04 
 Other Current assets 42(C)(10)  85.42  (15.20)  70.22 
Total current assets  3,497.90  (20.21)  3,477.69 
Total Assets  24,635.30  (943.23)  23,692.07 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share capital  4,834.40  -  4,834.40 
Other equity
Reservs and surplus 42(C)(2,3 & 4)  15,188.04  848.41  16,036.45 
Total equity  20,022.44  848.41  20,870.85 
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
  (i) Other financial liabilities  46.27  -  46.27 

Employee benefit obligations 42(C)(10)  43.88  (13.63)  30.25 
Deferred tax liabilities 42(C)(10)  1,274.11  (1,274.11)  - 
Other non-current liabilities 42(C)(1)  -  533.03  533.03 
Total non-current liabilities  1,364.26  (754.71)  609.55 
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Notes to first-
time adoption

Regrouped 
Previous GAAP* Adjustments Ind AS

Current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
  (i) Trade payables  141.51  -  141.51 
  (ii) Other financial liabilities 42(C)(10)  833.55  83.26  916.81 
Provisions 42(C)(4)  1,465.79  (1,110.75)  355.04 
Employee benefit obligations 42(C)(10)  54.07  13.63  67.70 
Current tax provisions (net) 42(C)(10)  -  24.78  24.78 
Other current liabilities 42(C)(1 & 2)  753.68  (47.85)  705.83 
Total current liabilities  3,248.60  (1,036.93)  2,211.67 
Total Liabilities  4,612.86  (1,791.64)  2,821.22 
Total equity and liabilities  24,635.30  (943.23)  23,692.07 

	 * The previous GAAP figures have been reclassified to conform to Ind AS presentation requirements for the purposes of this note.

  (ii)  	Reconciliation of total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2016

Notes to first-
time adoption

Regrouped 
Previous GAAP * Adjustments Ind AS

Revenue from operations  6,599.54  -  6,599.54 

Other income 42(C)(1)  248.04  55.65  303.69 

Total Income  6,847.58  55.65  6,903.23 

Expenses

Operating expenses  1,320.68  -  1,320.68 

Employee benefits expense 42(C)(7)  471.02  (6.90)  464.12 

Finance cost  1.59  -  1.59 

Depreciation and amortisation expense 42(C)(1,2 & 3)  963.59  9.80  973.39 

Other Expenses  1,054.11  -  1,054.11 

Total expenses  3,810.99  2.91  3,813.89 

Profit before exceptional items and tax  3,036.59  52.75  3,089.34 

Exceptional items 42(C)(2 & 3)  (604.09)  604.09  - 

Share of net profit of associates accounted for  316.78  46.31  363.09 

Profit before tax  3,957.46  (505.03)  3,452.43 

Tax expense :

Current tax  782.00  -  782.00 

Less : Minimum Alternative Tax Credit Entitlement  (782.00)  -  (782.00)

Deferred tax 42(C)(6 & 7)  1,274.11  (96.61)  1,177.50 

Total tax expense  1,274.11  (96.61)  1,177.50 

Profit for the year  2,683.35  (408.43)  2,274.93 
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Notes to first-
time adoption

Regrouped 
Previous GAAP * Adjustments Ind AS

Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

(i)	 Re-measurement of post-employment 
benefit obligations 42(C)(7)  -  6.90  (6.90)

(ii)	 Share of other comprehensive income 
of associates 42(C)(7)  -  0.01  (0.01)

(iii)	Less: Income tax relating (i) above 42(C)(7)  -  (2.42)  2.42 

(iv)	Less: Income tax relating (ii) above 42(C)(7)  -  -  - 
Other comprehensive income for the 
year, net of tax 42(C)(7)  -  4.49  (4.49)

Total other comprehensive income for the year  2,683.35  (403.94)  2,270.44 

	 * The previous GAAP figures have been reclassified to conform to Ind AS presentation requirements for the purposes of this note.

 (iii)	 Reconciliation of total equity as at 31 March 2016

Notes to first-
time adoption 31 March 2016

Total equity (shareholder’s funds) as per previous GAAP including share of profit in associate  20,022.44 

Add : Adjustments to the share of profit based on audited accounts of associate  38.64 
Total equity (shareholder’s funds) as per previous GAAP  20,061.08 
Adjustments:
a) Ind AS adjustment in associate's profit  7.67 
a) Deferred tax recognised 42(C)(7)  249.60 
b) Proposed dividend 42(C)(4)  1,110.75 
c) Exceptional items - Impairment reversal 42(C)(2 & 3)  (604.09)
d) Depreciation on above impairment reversal 42(C)(2 & 3)  45.85 
Total adjustments  809.78 
Total equity as per Ind AS  20,870.86 

 	 Reconciliation of total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2016

Notes to first-
time adoption 31 March 2016

Profit after tax as per previous GAAP  2,683.35 
Add : Adjustments to the share of profit based on audited accounts of associate company  38.64 
Net profit as per Indian GAAP  2,721.99 
Add/(Less): Adjustmentsfor Ind AS
a) Deferred revenue on government grant 42(C)(1)  55.65 
b) Depreciation on government grant 42(C)(1)  (55.65)
c) Exceptional items - Impairment reversal 42(C)(2 & 3)  (604.09)
d) Depreciation on above impairment reversal 42(C)(2 & 3)  45.85 
e) Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations 42(C)(7)  6.90 
f) Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations of associate company                      @ 
g) Deferred tax impact 42(C)(6)  96.61 
h) Ind AS adjustment in associate's profit  7.67 
Net profit as per Ind AS  2,274.93 
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Notes to first-
time adoption 31 March 2016

Other comprehensive income

(i) Re-measurement of post-employment benefit obligations 42(C)(7)  (6.90)

(ii) Share of other comprehensive income of associates 42(C)(7)  (0.01)

(iii) Less: Income tax relating (i) above 42(C)(7)  2.42 

(iv) Less: Income tax relating (ii) above 42(C)(7)                      @ 

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax  (4.49)

Total comprehensive income as per Ind AS  2,270.44 

	 @ Amount is below the rounding off norm adopted by the Company.

	 Impact of Ind AS adoption on the statements of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2016

Notes to first-
time adoption

Regrouped 
Previous 

GAAP *
Adjustments Ind AS

Net cash flow from operating activities 42(C)(10)  3,894.14  (0.08)  3,894.06 

Net cash flow from investing activities 42(C)(10)  (2,856.17)  3.24  (2,852.93)

Net cash flow from financing activities  (1.59)  -  (1.59)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 42(C)(10)  1,036.38  3.16  1,039.54 

Cash and cash equivalents as at 1 April 2015  155.45  -  155.45 

Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 March 2016 42(C)(10)  1,191.83  3.16  1,194.99 

Cash and cash equivalents as per previous GAAP 42(C)(10)  1,191.83  3.16  1,194.99 

Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of 
statement of cash flows 42(C)(10)  1,191.83  3.16  1,194.99 

	 * The previous GAAP figures have been reclassified to conform to Ind AS presentation requirements for the purposes of this note.
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C.	 Notes to first-time adoption :

	 1.	 Government Grant
		  As stated in the Note 2, on transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of 

its property , plant and equipment recognised as at 1 April 2015 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that 
carrying value as the deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment. However, in view of the Ind AS Transition 
Facilitation Group (ITFG) clarification bulletin dated 17 April 2017 the deemed cost of property, plant and equipment as 
at the transition date has been increased by INR 644.28 million being the unamortised Capital Subsidy/EPCG as on 
the date of the transition (Refer note 15 and 18). Consequent to the aforesaid adjustment, the Company has provided 
for incremental depreciation and also recognised deferred income (Refer note 20 and 24) to the extent of INR 55.65 
million for the year ended 31 March 2016 on the Government grant.

	 2.	 Plant, Property and Equipment (PPE)
		  The Company has elected to apply the optional exemption as per Ind AS 101 to measure all of its property, plant 

and equipment, intangible assets as per previous GAAP at carrying value. In the year 2015-16, the Company based 
on physical assessment and business performance and financial projections for foreseeable future had reversed 
impairment provision on its fixed assets. However in the view of Accounting Standard Board (ASB) clarification on 
30 June 2016, when an entity elects the deemed cost on the transition date (i.e. carrying values of PPE as per 
the previous GAAP) as the cost of its PPE, then any accumulated depreciation and provision for impairment under 
previous GAAP will have no relevance. Consequently, the reversal of impairment provision of INR 604.09 million in the 
year 2015-16 disclosed as exceptional item under previous GAAP will have no relevance. As a result: 

	 	 -	 Gross carrying value of PPE as at 31 March 2016 has decreased by INR 604.09 million. This has also resulted 
into decrease in depreciation by INR 45.85 million, and thus net impact on PPE as at 31 March 2016 is of INR 
558.24 million; and 

	 	 -	 Profit and total equity for the year ended 31 March 2016 has decreased by INR 558.24 million (exceptional item: 
reversal of impairment provision of INR 604.09 million less decrease in depreciation by INR 45.85 million)

	 3.	 In case of depreciation expense for the year ended 31 March 2016, the net impact of Ind AS adjustment mentioned in 
note 42 (C)(1) (increase in depreciation charge on Government Grant by INR 55.65 million) and 42 (C)(2) (decrease 
in depreciation charge by INR 45.85) is of increase in depreciation expense by INR 9.80 million. 

	 4.	 Proposed dividend

		  Under the Indian GAAP, dividends proposed by the board of directors after the balance sheet date but before the 
approval of the Consolidated financial statements were considered as an adjusting events. Accordingly, provision 
for proposed dividend was recognised as a liability. Under Ind AS, such dividends are recognised when the same 
is approved by the shareholders in the general meeting. Accordingly, the liability for Proposed Dividend including 
Dividend Distribution Tax of INR 1,110.75 million as at 31 March 2016 (1 April 2015 – NIL) included under provisions 
has been reversed with corresponding adjustment to retained earnings. Consequently, the total equity increased by 
an INR 1,110.75 million.

	 5.	 Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations

		  Under Ind AS, remeasurements i.e. actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan assets, excluding amounts 
included in the net interest expense on the net defined benefit liability are recognised in other comprehensive income 
instead of Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. Under the previous GAAP, these remeasurements were forming 
part of the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss for the year. As a result of this change, the profit for the year ended 
31 March 2016 decreased by INR 4.49 million. There is no impact on the total equity as at 31 March 2016.

	 6.	 Deferred Tax

		  In accordance with the Indian GAAP the ‘deferred tax asset’ as of 31 March 2015 was not recognized, as they were 
not considered to be virtually certain of realization as of that date. With the adoption of Ind AS 12 effective 1 April 
2016, the accounting standard requires the recognition of ‘deferred tax asset’ based on reasonable certainty, resulting 
in a transitional adjustment to the Opening Balance Sheet as of 1 April 2015. Consequently, the deferred tax asset 
amounting to INR 150.57 million so recognised as at 1 April 2015 has been adjusted against the deferred tax liability 
during the financial year 2015-16.
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	 	 Under previous GAAP, MAT is presented as separate line item in financial statement. Whereas under Ind AS same is 
required to be disclosed under deferred tax. There is no impact on the total equity and profit.

	 7.	 Other Comprehensive Income

		  Under Ind AS, all items of income and expense recognised in a period should be included in Consolidated Statement 
of Profit or Loss for the period, unless a standard requires or permits otherwise. Items of income and expense that 
are not recognised in Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss but are shown in the Consolidated Statement of Profit 
or Loss as ‘other comprehensive income’ includes remeasurements of defined benefit plans. The concept of other 
comprehensive income did not exist under previous GAAP.

	 8.	 Retained Earnings

		  Retained earnings as at 1 April 2015 has been adjusted consequent to the above Ind AS transition adjustments.

	 9.	 Interest Income

		  The Company calculates the interest revenue by applying the effective interest method to the amortised cost of the 
financial assets in accordance with paragraph 5.4.1 (b) of Ind AS 109. Accordingly the Company has calculated the 
interest revenue by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount. In previous GAAP there was no 
concept of effective interest rate.

	 10.	 As required under paragraph (10C) of Ind AS 101 the Company has reclassified items that it recognised in accordance 
with previous GAAP as one type of asset, liability or component of equity, but are a different type of asset, liability or 
component of equity in accordance with Ind ASs.
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Partner	 Managing Director	 Director
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
Dear Members,

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors, I am pleased to present the Annual Report of Gujarat Pipavav Port Limited ('the Company') with 
stthe first Ind AS compliant Financial Statements for the year ended 31  March 2017. 

Your Company holds 38.8% shares in Pipavav Railway Corporation Limited (PRCL), an Associate Company as per the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the Annual Report comprises the Standalone Financial Statements and the Consolidated Financial 

stStatements for the year ended 31  March 2017. 

During the year, your Company reported a Standalone Net Profit of Rs. 2,499 Million an increase of over 31% compared to the previous 
year. The Company's objective is to sustain a steady and consistent distribution of Dividend to its Shareholders subject to availability of 
profits, the Company's future funding needs and the applicable laws. Accordingly, the Company declared and paid an Interim Dividend of 
Rs. 2.00 per share and is pleased to recommend a Final Dividend of Rs. 1.80 per share. 

The Global Container Shipping Lines, our direct customers, faced historically low freight rates during the year 2016. The excess capacity build up coupled with continued 
slow down in global trade adversely impacted the Shipping Lines. This led to one of the major carrier going out of business. The Shipping Industry is also going through the 
consolidation phase and the Lines are getting into slot sharing arrangements to reduce their operating cost in the weak market conditions. The Industry is expecting that 
these measures will lead to gradual recovery in freight rates and provide relief to the highly stretched financials of the Shipping Lines. In the muted global environment, India 
continues to remain a country with potential of strong GDP growth ~7%. The Container Shipping trade on the West Coast of India that handles almost two-thirds of the 
country's container business, is growing at ~6%. Though it has caused certain imbalance in the trade because of strong imports and relatively low exports. As far as the Dry 
Bulk cargo business is concerned, Coal and Fertiliser are the two main commodities imported in the country. The trend of reduction in Coal imports continues due to much 
improved availability of domestic coal and competitive pricing of Solar Energy. The Fertiliser imports are driven by the Government's policies but the compulsory Neem 
coating required to be done by the Port at which the imported fertilizer is discharged as per the Government's directive in order to prevent diversion of this subsidized 
commodity has also resulted into reduction of its imports. The Government of India's launch of Pradhan Mantri Ujjwala Yojana scheme is targeted to increase the coverage of 
population having supply of LPG. The population getting covered with LPG connection is rapidly increasing from ~62% in April 2016  to ~73% in March 2017 and the target is 
to reach ~96% of the population by 2018-19. The Government is moving aggressively to meet its target by 2018-19. This development will have a positive effect of reducing 
air pollution and improving the local environment in rural areas. Your Company sees good potential in the growth of LPG imports in order for the Government to achieve its 
target. RORO is another business that is progressing well through Auto companies in Gujarat. Going forward, the Company's focus areas will be Containers, Liquid and 
RORO business. 

AP Moller Maersk in partnership with the Confederation of Indian Industries (CII) had recently carried out an extensive study on current obstacles to Indian logistics and 
associated trade growth. The study found that the cost of trade in India is amongst the highest in the world when compared to the peer countries. Indian transport and 
logistics costs represent 14.4% of its Gross Domestic Product (GDP) compared to 8% for China. The study covered four businesses namely Textiles and Garments, 
Pharmaceuticals, Electronics and Auto Components. The data indicated that India's indirect cost of trade (including delays, road congestion and non-essential paperwork) 
represent as much as 38% to 47% of total transportation and logistics cost. A reduction of these extraneous costs by 10% would create the potential for up to 5% to 8% in 
additional exports for the country or USD 5.5 billion in additional export revenue above the current level of about USD 63.3 billion in these four sectors. 

The State of Gujarat has been at the forefront in Industrialization and the Auto companies recently set up in Sanand- Mehsana region have been quite successful. These can be 
an example for the other industries to set up their manufacturing facility in the Dholera Industrial Region which is being promoted by the State Government. 

th thYour Company along with all other ports within the portfolio of its parent APM Terminals observed 17  to 20  April 2017 as Global Safety Day. The theme this year was “24/7 
SAFE” with focus on Night Operations and Night Shifts functioning at the Ports and Terminals. Several programmes were conducted during the period involving Skits and 
Spot Quiz by  various departments. The families of the employees were also involved wherein a Drawing Competition for Safety posters was conducted for children and the 
Ladies had conducted Skits. The winners were felicitated by the Executive team of the Company and the Programme concluded with the Managing Director's address to all 
the employees, their families and the Contractor's employees. As part of the global initiative, APM Terminals has four underlying principles- Safety is the license to operate; 
has no hierarchy; it means no compromise and all companies should be actively committed to it. Your Company is committed to highest Safety standards and has set 
stringent Safety rules for the Truck Drivers entering the Port. During the calendar year 2016, the Port's Health, Safety, Security and Environment (HSSE) Team conducted 
34,900 Training sessions for the Truck Drivers making them aware about the Safety measures they need to follow. The drivers are required to compulsorily undergo 
Refresher Safety course every six months before entering the Port. 

Your Company as a good and responsible Corporate Citizen has taken certain initiatives during the year towards providing the services that contribute to lifecycle 
sustainability. Some of the major initiatives taken are Conversion of 18 Rubber Tyre Gantry Cranes from Diesel to Electric, Purchase of 2 new Rubber Tyre Gantry Cranes 
operating on electric, Replacement of 2782 High Voltage Sodium Vapour Lamps with LED lights inside the port premises resulting into energy savings of over 50% and 100% 
utilization of treated domestic waste water for development of green belt and reducing the requirement for fresh water. The HSSE department has set up a dedicated Waste 
Management Cell which is responsible for segregation of all waste at source, its storage, recovery and recycle. All Hazardous waste is collected and stored in a dedicated area 
and is sold only to authorized re-cyclers and re-processors. Certain garbage and hazardous waste that can be used as fuel by the cement factories in the vicinity, is disposed 
off accordingly.     

On behalf of the Board of Directors of the Company, I take this opportunity to express our sincere appreciation to our Shareholders, Vendors, Customers for their continuous 
support, our Associate Company Pipavav Railway Corporation Limited and to our Employees for their dedication and commitment. I also thank the State and Central 
Government bodies and my colleagues on the Board for their support, guidance and valuable insight. I look forward with optimism towards a sustained economic growth in 
India and a very exciting and prosperous year ahead for Gujarat Pipavav Port Limited. 

With Best Wishes,

Yours truly,

Tejpreet Singh Chopra
Chairman

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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